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Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K containgaie forward-looking statements, including withdimitation, statements concerning our
operations, economic performance and financial timmd These forward-looking statements are madsyant to the safe harbor provisions of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9%orward-looking statements are developed by @oimdp currently available information
with our beliefs and assumptions and are geneiddiytified by the words "believe,” "expect,” "ampiate" and other similar expressions.
Forward-looking statements do not guarantee fyteréormance, which may be materially different fridmat expressed in, or implied by, any
such statements. Readers are cautioned not to yntaltes reliance on these forward-looking statemevtigch speak only as of their dates.

These forward-looking statements are béagely on our current beliefs, assumptions anceetgiions of our future performance taking
into account all information currently availableus. These beliefs, assumptions and expectationstange as a result of many possible e\
or factors, not all of which are known to us orhiritour control, and which could materially affactual results, performance or achievements.
Factors that may cause actual results to vary fsanforward-looking statements include, but arelimoited to:

. factors described in this Annual Report on FormK]@cluding those set forth under the captionssiRtactors” and "Busines
. defaults by borrowers in paying debt service orstaunding items

. impairment in the value of real estate propertyuseg our loans;

. availability of mortgage origination opportunitiasceptable to us;

. national and local economic and business conditi

. general and local commercial real estate propentylitions;

. changes in federal government policies;

. changes in federal, state and local governmenia &nd regulations;
. increased competition from entities engaged in gag¢ lending

. changes in interest rates; and

. the availability of and costs associated with sesraf liquidity.

In light of these risks and uncertaintibgre can be no assurances that the results rterie the forwardeoking statements contained
this Annual Report on Form 1R-will in fact occur. Except to the extent requireg applicable law or regulation, we undertake hbgation to,
and expressly disclaim any such obligation to, teda revise any forwarbboking statements to reflect changed assumptitiespccurrence 1
anticipated or unanticipated events, changes toduesults over time or otherwise.
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PART |
Item 1. Business.

The following description of the business shoulddael in conjunction with the information includeldewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2010. This datsan contains forward-looking statements thatdlve risks and uncertainties.
Actual results could differ significantly from thesults discussed in the forwelooking statements due to the factors set forttRisk Factors'
and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-4feRences in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to,"Weur," "us," or the "Company,"
refer to Starwood Property Trust, Inc. All amouate in thousands (000's) except share and per stiate.

General

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. is a Marylaodporation that commenced operations on Augus2Q@9, upon the completion of our initial
public offering. We are focused primarily on origting, investing in, financing and managing comrizmortgage loans and other
commercial real estate debt investments, commeraialgage-backed securities ("CMBS"), and otherroantial real estate-related debt
investments. In addition, we may also invest in pwarcial properties subject to net leases, residiemibrtgage loans and residential mortgage-
backed securities ("RMBS"). We collectively referdtommercial mortgage loans, other commercialestdte debt investments, CMBS, other
commercial real estatelated debt investments, residential mortgagesioemmmercial properties subject to net leasesRMBS as our targe
assets. We make certain investments in RMBS thatseeas a primary alternative investment for oailakle cash.

Our objective is to provide attractive refjusted returns to our investors over the long t@rimarily through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. In order to achigese objectives, we are focusing on asset seleatidrthe relative value of various sectors
within the debt market to construct a diversifiaddastment portfolio designed to produce attraatgtarns across a variety of market conditions
and economic cycles. We intend to employ leveragthe extent available, to fund the acquisitiorof target assets and to increase potential
returns to our stockholders. We are organizedtadding company and conduct our business prim#nilgugh our various subsidiaries.

Since the closing of our initial public effing, we have focused primarily on opportunitiest texist in the U.S. commercial mortgage loan,
commercial real estate debt, and CMBS and RMBS etark\s market conditions change over time, we agjyst our strategy to take
advantage of changes in interest rates and craaiads as well as economic and credit conditioresb@lieve that the diversification of our
portfolio of assets, our expertise among the taagsét classes, and the flexibility of our strateglposition us to generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our stockholders in a varigtgssets and market conditions.

We are externally managed and advised AyN&éhagement, LLC (our "Manager”) pursuant to #ments of a management agreement.
manager is controlled by Barry Sternlicht, our Ciain and Chief Executive Officer. SPT Managemeh€ s an affiliate of Starwood Capit
Group, a privately-held private equity firm foundaad controlled by Mr. Sternlicht. Since its indeptin 1991, Starwood Capital Group
(including Starwood Capital-named affiliates cotitd by Mr. Sternlicht) has sponsored numerous appdstic funds, including dedicated
debt funds, dedicated hotel funds and several atand and co-investment partnerships.

We have elected to be taxed as a reakdstatstment trust ("REIT") for U.S. federal incotag purposes commencing with our taxable
year ended December 31, 2009. We generally wilbeotubject to U.S. federal income taxes on owafixincome to the extent that '
annually distribute all of our taxable income tocktholders and maintain our qualification as a REVE also operate our business
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in a manner that permits us to maintain our exesngtiom registration under the Investment Compaaydf 1940, as amended (the "1940
Act").

Our corporate headquarters office is latate591 West Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, Connectitut our telephone number is (203) 422-
8100.

Investment Strategy

We seek to maximize returns for our stodléis by constructing and managing a diversifiedfplio of our target assets. Our investment
strategy may include, without limitation, the follng:

. focusing on acquiring debt positions with implieasts at deep discounts to replacement ¢

. focusing on supply and demand fundamentals andipgrsnvestments in high population and job growiairkets wher:
demand for all real estate asset classes is nke$t lio be present;

. targeting markets with barriers to entry other thapital;

. structuring transactions with an amount of leverdge reflects the risk of the underlying assedshcflow stream, attempting

match the rate and duration of the financing whth einderlying asset's cash flow, and hedging spteelcharacteristics; and

. seeking to take advantage of pricing dislocatiaested by distressed sellers or distressed capitadtures and pursuir
investments with attractive risk-reward profiles.

In order to capitalize on the changing sétisvestment opportunities that may be presetiénvarious points of an economic cycle, we
may expand or refocus our investment strategy hyhasizing investments in different parts of theitedystructure and different sectors of real
estate. Our investment strategy may be amendedtinoento time, if recommended by our Manager angr@yped by our board of directors,
without the approval of our stockholders. In additto our Manager making direct investments onbainalf, we may enter into joint ventures
or management agreements with persons that haeeabkpgpertise or sourcing capabilities.

Financing Strategy

Subject to maintaining our qualificationeaREIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes andeaemption from the 1940 Act, we may
finance the acquisition of our target assets, éoetktent available to us, through the following imoels:

. sources of private financing, including long- ahdm-term repurchase agreements and warehouseaahdtedit facilities;
. securitizations; and
. public offerings of our equity or debt securiti

We may also utilize other sources of finagdo the extent available to us.
Our Target Assets

We invest in target assets secured prignhyilU.S. collateral. We may originate or acquoarls and other debt investments backed by
commercial real estate ("CRE"), where the realieaallue of the underlying real estate collateraleiemed to be more than the price paid for
the loans or securities, as applicable. We mayialsst in commercial properties subject to nesésaas well as in residential mortgage loans
and RMBS. We may invest in performing and non-p@anfag mortgage loans and other real estate-relatats and debt investments, but we
will not target any "near term loan to own" investmts, which our Manager considers to be mortgageslor other real estate-related loan or
debt investments where the proposed originatocquigor of any such investment has
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the intent and/or expectation of foreclosing onoibtrerwise acquiring the real property securingltla@ or investment at any time within the
first 18 months of its origination or acquisitiohtbe loan or investment. We may acquire targettashirough portfolio or other acquisitions.
Our Manager targets markets where it has a viethemxpected cyclical recovery as well as expentisbe real estate collateral underlying
assets being acquired. We seek situations whenedzil or holder of a loan or security is in a cornised situation due to the relative size of
its CRE portfolio, the magnitude of non-performingns, or regulatory/rating agency issues drivepdigntial capital adequacy or
concentration issues.

Our target assets include the followingetypf loans and other investments with respeoboncercial real estate:

. whole mortgage loans¢ loans secured by a first mortgage lien on a coroiaeproperty which provide lor-term mortgage
financing to commercial property developers or osrgenerally having maturity dates ranging froneéhto ten years;

. bridge loans: whole mortgage loans secured by a first mortdi@geon a commercial property which provide inteombridge
financing to borrowers seeking short-term capitpldally for the acquisition of real estate;

. B-Notes: typically a privately negotiated loan that isweal by a first mortgage on a single large comnaéprioperty or grou|
of related properties and subordinated to an A Netaired by the same first mortgage on the sanpepyoor group;

. mezzanine loans:loans made to commercial property owners thasacered by pledges of the borrower's ownershgrests i
the property and/or the property owner, subordit@tghole mortgage loans secured by first or secondgage liens on the
property and senior to the borrower's equity ingheperty;

. construction or rehabilitation loans:mortgage loans and mezzanine loans to financed$ieof construction or rehabilitation of
a commercial property;

. CMBS: securities which are collateralized by commergialtgage loans, including:
. senior and subordinated investment grade CMBS,
. below investment grade CMBS, a

. unrated CMBS

. corporate bank debt:term loans and revolving credit facilities of co@rcial real estate operating or finance compaseiash of
which are generally secured by such companiestsasse

. corporate bonds debt securities issued by commercial real esia¢eating or finance companies which may or maybex
secured by such companies' assets, including:

. investment grade corporate bonds,
. below investment grade corporate bor
. unrated corporate bonds, and
. net leases: commercial properties subject to net leases, eiases typically have longer terms than grosseleaequire

tenants to pay substantially all of the operatiagte associated with the properties and often bamtractually specified rent
increases throughout their terms.

Our target assets also include the follgwiypes of loans and debt investments relatingsalential real estate:
. residential mortgage loans:loans secured by a first mortgage lien on a esdidl property; and
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. RMBS: securities collateralized by residential mortgkges, including:

. Agency RMBS RMBS for which a U.S. Government agency or affaliechartered corporation guarantees paymen
principal and interest on the securities, and

. Non-Agency RMBS:RMBS that are not guaranteed by any U.S. Govenhagency or federally chartered corporation.
Our Portfolio
Investment Activities

The following table sets forth the amouheach category of commercial real estate investsnge owned across various property type
of December 31, 2010:

Weighted
Carrying Face % Net Average

Investment Value Amount Owned Financing Investment Rating Vintage
First

mortgage:
Loan

acquisitio $ 490,40¢ $ 525,48t 10(% $ 326,09:0 $ 164,31: N/A 1999- 200¢
Loan

originatiol 461,73t 466,30: 10(% 63,08¢ 398,65( N/A  2009- 201(
Total first

mortgage: 952,14« 991,79: 389,18( 562,96«
Subordinate

loans and

mezzanin

loans
Loan

acquisitio 378,11 438,72¢ 10(% 73,26( 304,85: N/A 1999- 2007
Loan

originatiol 94,98" 95,08: 10(% — 94,987 N/A 2010
Total

subordina

debt 473,09¢ 533,81 73,26( 399,83¢
CMBS—

AFS** 275,15! 275,26¢ 81%" 171,30: 103,85( AA-  2001-201C
RMBS—

AFS** 122,52! 140,57¢ 10(% — 122,52 BB-  2003- 2007
Other

Investmer 14,177 13,29¢ 10(% — 14,177 N/A N/A

$ 1,837,100 $ 1,954,74: $ 633,74 $ 1,203,35!

* Includes loans held-for-sale at fair value, refeFbotnote 13
i Commercial and residential mortgage-backed, aveilfdr-sale ("AFS") securities.
N Reflects one consolidated joint venture in whiolh @ompany has a 75% ownership interest

As of December 31, 2010, the Company'd tot@stment portfolio had the following characstics based on carrying values:

Collateral Property Type Geographic Location

Hospitality 40.2% Northeas 10.%%
Industrial 5.1% Mid-Atlantic 9.4%
Office 19.6% Southeas 11.5%
Retail 23.8% Southwes 8.5%
Residentia 6.9% Midwest 23.5%
Other 1.6% West 19.8%
Mixed Use 2.6% International 16.4%

100.% 100.%



As of December 31, 2010, all of our investits were performing as expected.
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The following table sets forth the amouheach category of commercial real estate investsnge owned across various property type
of December 31, 2009:

Weighted
Carrying Face % Net Average
Investment Value Amount Owned Financing Investment Rating Vintage
First mortgage
Loan
acquisitions $ 78,08( $ 104,70: 10C% $ — $ 78,08( N/A 1999
Loan
originations 104,70: 107,72: 100% — 104,70: N/A 2009
Total first
mortgage: 182,78: 212,42: — 182,78.
Subordinated
loans and
mezzanine
loans
Loan
acquisitions 31,73¢ 42 ,56( 10(% — 31,73¢  N/A 1999
Loan
originations — — — — N/A
Total
subordinatec
debt 31,73¢ 42,56( — 31,73¢
CMBS—
HTM*** 245,89¢ 256,41 79%" 171,39 74,50 AAA 2001- 2007
RMBS—AFS — — — —
$ 460,41° $ 511,39 $ 171,39 $ 289,02

el Commercial and residential mortgage-backed, helahdturity ("HTM") securities.

A Reflects one consolidated joint venture in whiol @ompany has a 75% ownership interest.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company's iot@stment portfolio had the following characstics based on carrying values:

Collateral Property Type Geographic Location
Hospitality 32.7% Northeas 14.1%
Industrial 26.5% Mid-Atlantic 14.8%
Office 18.(% Southeas 35.9%
Retail 16.2% Southwes 5.3%
Residentia 5.1% Midwest 8.7%
Other 1.2% West 17.2%
Mixed Use 0.3% International 4.0%
100.(% 100.(%

Our investment process includes sourcirysameening of investment opportunities, asseseirgstment suitability, conducting interest
rate and prepayment analysis, evaluating cashdludvcollateral performance, reviewing legal streeetand servicer and originator information
and investment structuring, as appropriate, to s@ekttractive return commensurate with the riskaveebearing. Upon identification of an
investment opportunity, the investment will be sered and monitored by us to determine its impachamtaining our REIT qualification and
our exemption from registration under the 1940 A¢ée will seek to make investments in sectors wherdiave strong core competencies and
believe market risk and expected performance caedmonably quantified.

We evaluate each one of our investment dppibies based on its expected risk-adjusted netelative to the returns available from other,
comparable investments. In addition, we evaluate o@portunities based on their relative expectégins compared to comparable positions
held in our portfolio. The terms of any leveragaitable to us for use in funding an investment pase are also taken into consideration, a
any risks posed by illiquidity or correlations witther securities in the portfolio. We also devedomacro outlook with respect to each target
asset class by examining factors
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in the broader economy such as gross domestic prddterest rates, unemployment rates and avétiabf credit, among other things. We
also analyze fundamental trends in the relevagetasset class sector to adjust/maintain our akifior that particular target asset class.

Loans

Our primary focus is to build a portfolib@mmercial mortgage loans at attractive risk ajd returns by focusing on the underlying real
estate fundamentals and credit analysis of theola@ns. For the year ended December 31, 2010, \g@ated 10 loans and acquired 21 loar
the secondary market, as summarized below:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Carrying Face Average Life
Investment Value Amount Coupon (years)
First
mortgages $ 901,84° $ 941,05! 6.72% 3.€
Subordinate
debt 473,09¢ 533,81: 7.0% 4.6
Loans held it
securitizati
trust 50,29: 50,73¢ 5.0(% 4.4

Total Loans $ 1,425,24: $ 1,525,60!

We continually monitor borrower performareg®l complete a detailed, loan-by-loan formal dredliiew on a quarterly basis. The results
of this review are incorporated into our quarterdgessment of the adequacy of loan loss reserses. Becember 31, 2010, all loans were
performing as expected and no allowance for loasdse was deemed necessary.

TALF Financed CMBS

During the period ended December 31, 20@9invested a net $23 million in AAA rated Class BRIBS at an average price of 99.97%
par. There were no TALF CMBS securities purchasgihd 2010. The CMBS are secured by diversified pddixed rate commercial
mortgage loans and had a weighted average coupmuyaisition of approximately 5.69%.

The CMBS were financed through the TALFgyeom at an average rate of 3.82%. The balancgwaneayable without penalty. The
Starwood Private Real Estate Funds exercised 2B&tr co-investment rights with regard to this inwestit and the TALF financed CMBS are
held in a joint venture that is a 75% owned, codstéd subsidiary of ours.

The CMBS have an expected pay-off of twthtee years, however, the base case return analysimed extensions though five years
from acquisition.

Single-Borrower Commercial Mortgage-Backed Seaesiti

During the year ended December 31, 201Qtfamgeriod from August 17, 2009 (Inception) to Baber 31, 2009, we invested
$18.5 million and $43.0 million, respectively, innous CMBS, which are secured by a single mortgegene or more properties and were
acquired on average at 84% of par. For the yeagcebe:cember 31, 2010, approximately $29.8 millmm44% of the CMBS, are investment
grade, with the balance rated BBB or higher by &ath & Poor's Ratings Services, Inc. ("S&P") oreguivalent rating, and the majority are
secured by high quality hotel assets in marketh giggnificant barriers to entry. The underwritimglicates limited principal risk, but base case
analysis assumes maximum extensions under the tdrthe offering documents governing such bondgragimately $54.3 million, or 80%
of the CMBS, are fixed rate with a weighted averegapon of
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6.5%. The $13.6 million floating rate CMBS pay ari@ge spread of 1.30% over the index, which isotieemonth London Interbank Offered
Rate ("LIBOR").

Weighted Weighted

Total Weighted Average

Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value Fair Average Average Life
December 31, 2011 Cost Gains Losses Adjustment Value Coupon Rating (Years)
CMBS $266,76: $ 9,07« $ (683 % 8,391 $275,15! 5580 AA- 1.84
RMBS 120,82° 2,49t (797) 1,69¢ 122,52! 0.57% BB- 1.2¢

$387,59: $ 11,56¢ $ (1,480 $ 10,08¢ $397,68!

Weighted Weighted

Total Weighted Average
Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value Fair Average Average Life
December 31, 200! Cost Gains Losses Adjustment Value™ Coupon Rating (Years)
CMBS $245,89¢ $ 3,561 $ — $ — $249,45° 5.65% AAA 2.84
RMBS — — — — —
$245,89¢ $ 3,561 $ — $ — $249,45°

AN As of December 31, 2009, all CMBS were classifisdheeld-tomaturity.” Therefore, this represents the book @aifithe
CMBS securities

Summary of Interest Characteristics

As described in Iltem 7—"Management's Disgusand Analysis of Financial Condition and ResaoftOperations,” and Item 7A—
"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about kéaRisk," we utilize certain interest rate riskmagement techniques, including both
asset/liability matching and certain other hedgmagsactions, in order to mitigate our exposuriaterest rate risk.

As of December 31, 2010, 73.8% of our itwvesnts were comprised of fixed rate loans and #&siwith a weighted average coupon of
7.75% and weighted average life of 3.4 years, wage®5.4% of our investments were comprised of bieate loans and securities with a
LIBOR based index with a weighted average spredd#§% and weighted average life of 3.9 years a8%®f our investments represented
other investments.

As of December 31, 2009, 97.6% of our itmesnts were comprised of fixed rate loans and #gesiwith a weighted average coupon of
7.0%. Only 2.4% of our investments, or approximagl1.1 million, of single borrower CMBS was vatmbate with a LIBOR based index.
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Summary of Maturities

As of December 31, 2010, our investmentfplio had a weighted average maturity of 3.5 yehesed on management's judgment of
extension options being exercised. The table bslwws the carrying value expected to mature annoa#r the next ten years.

Number of

Investments Carrying % of
Year of Maturity Maturing Value Total
2011 47 $ 464,66( 25.5%
2012 9 152,74« 8.4%
2013 5 278,75:¢ 15.2%
2014 6 192,04: 10.5%
2015 4 294,50t 16.2%
2016 6 271,79: 14.%
2017 3 78,85¢ 4.2%
2018 — — 0.C%
2019 — — 0.C%
2020 and thereafte 9 89,57: 4.5%
Total 89 $ 1,822,922 100.%
* Includes 34 RMBS with a carrying value of $122 3lion as of December 31, 201

Regulation

Our operations are subject, in certainainsés, to supervision and regulation by state ederl governmental authorities and may be
subject to various laws and judicial and admintsteadecisions imposing various requirements astrictions, which, among other things:
(1) regulate credit granting activities; (2) esisiibimaximum interest rates, finance charges arer atiarges; (3) require disclosures to
customers; (4) govern secured transactions; ansetxollection, foreclosure, repossession andnsldiandling procedures and other trade
practices. Although most states do not regulatenceruial finance, certain states impose limitationsnterest rates and other charges and on
certain collection practices and creditor remedaesl, require licensing of lenders and financieid alequate disclosure of certain contract
terms. We are also required to comply with cerpamvisions of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act tlaa¢ applicable to commercial loans. We
intend to conduct our business so that neitheraveany of our subsidiaries are required to regiatean investment company under the 1940
Act.

In the judgment of management, existingus¢és and regulations have not had a material adweffect on our business. In the wake of the
recent financial crisis, legislators in the Uni@thtes and in other countries have said that gresgelation of financial services firms is
needed, particularly in areas such as risk managetegerage and disclosure. While we expect tbat regulations in these areas will be
adopted in the future, it is not possible at thitetto forecast the exact nature of any futureslegjion, regulations, judicial decisions, orders or
interpretations, nor their impact upon our futuusibess, financial condition or results of operatior prospects.

Competition

We are engaged in a competitive busin@ssut investment activities, we compete for oppuittes with numerous public and private
investment vehicles, including financial institut&) specialty finance companies, mortgage banksiqe funds, opportunity funds, hedge
funds, insurance companies, REITs and other itistital investors, as well as individuals. Many catifors are significantly larger than us,
have well established operating histories and naae lyreater access to
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capital, more resources and other advantages ava@hese competitors may be willing to accept loseéurns on their investments or to
compromise underwriting standards and, as a remuitprigination volume and profit margins coulddmb/ersely affected.

The Manager

We are externally managed and advised byanager and benefit from the personnel, relatigpgessand experience of our Manager's
executive team and other personnel of Starwoodt&laproup. Pursuant to the terms of a managemeatatwent between our Manager and us,
our Manager provides us with our management teatrappropriate support personnel. Pursuant to asstment advisory agreement between
our Manager and Starwood Capital Group Managené&@, our Manager has access to the personnel awdirees of Starwood Capital
Group necessary for the implementation and exetwi@ur business strategy.

Our Manager is an affiliate of Starwood TapGroup, a privately-held private equity firmuioded and controlled by Mr. Sternlicht.
Starwood Capital Group has invested in most mdgmses of real estate, directly and indirectlyptigh operating companies, portfolios of
properties and single assets, including multifapol§ice, retail, hotel, residential entitled laadd communities, senior housing, mixed-use and
golf courses. Starwood Capital Group invests dedift levels of the capital structure, includirggity, preferred equity, mezzanine debt and
senior debt, depending on the asset risk profiteraturn expectation.

Our Manager draws upon the experience a&pdrése of Starwood Capital Group's team of prifesals and support personnel operating
in eleven cities across six countries. Our Manadgy benefits from Starwood Capital Group's dedid@sset management group operating in
offices located in the United States and abroad alse benefit from Starwood Capital Group's portfehanagement, finance and
administration functions, which address legal, cliimmge, investor relations and operational matt&sset valuation, risk management and
information technologies in connection with thefpenance of our Manager's duties.

Taxation of the Company

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT uthgelinternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedQibde™), for federal income tax
purposes. We generally must distribute annuallgadt 90% of our taxable income, subject to cerdijnstments and excluding any net capital
gain, in order for federal corporate income taxtocpply to our earnings that we distribute. Te éxtent that we satisfy this distribution
requirement, but distribute less than 100% of emable income, we will be subject to federal cogp@income tax on our undistributed taxable
income. In addition, we will be subject to a 4% deductible excise tax if the actual amount thapas out to our stockholders in a calendar
year is less than a minimum amount specified ufetiral tax laws. Our qualification as a REIT adepends on our ability to meet varic
other requirements imposed by the Code, whicheetabrganizational structure, diversity of stogknership and certain restrictions with
regard to owned assets and categories of income tfualify for taxation as a REIT, we will gendyalot be subject to United States federal
corporate income tax on our taxable income thatiisently distributed to stockholders.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may bejsabto certain federal excise taxes and statd@ral taxes on our income and property. If we
fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, will e subject to federal income taxes at regutaporate rates (including any applicable
alternative minimum tax) and will not be able tatify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable yeREITs are subject to a number of
organizational and operational requirements urfieCtode.
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The Company formed several taxable REITS®fries ("TRS") in 2010 to reduce the impactta prohibited transaction tax and to avoid
penalty for the holding of assets not qualifyingeal estate assets for purposes of the REIT tesstst Any income associated with a TRS is
fully taxable because a TRS is subject to fedardlstate income taxes as a domestic C corporasisecbupon its net income.

See Iltem 1A—"Risk Factors—Risks Relate@®to Taxation as a REIT" for additional tax statf®rmation.
Leverage Policies

We employ leverage, to the extent availatoléund the acquisition of our target assetstaridcrease potential returns to our stockholc
Although we are not required to maintain any patic minimum leverage ratio, the amount of leveragedeploy for particular investments in
our target assets depends upon our Manager's assdess a variety of factors, which may include #mgicipated liquidity and price volatility
of the assets in our investment portfolio, the ptiéd for losses and extension risk in our portipthe gap between the duration of our assets
and liabilities, including hedges, the availabilityd cost of financing the assets, our opiniorhefdreditworthiness of our financing
counterparties, the health of the U.S. economycamgimercial and residential mortgage markets, otlook for the level, slope, and volatility
of interest rates, the credit quality of our asstts collateral underlying our assets, and oulooltfor asset spreads relative to the LIBOR
curve. As of December 31, 2010, our ratio of taiht to equity (including non-controlling interéstgas 47.5%.

Investment Guidelines

Our board of directors has adopted the¥dlhg investment guidelines:

. our investments will be in our target assets;
. no investment shall be made that would cause failtto qualify as a REIT for federal income taxrposes
. no investment shall be made that would cause asyof our subsidiaries to be required to be regist as an investme

company under the 1940 Act;

. not more than 25% of our equity will be investeaity individual asset without the consent of a mgj@f our independer
directors; and

. any investment of up to $25 million requires therapal of our Chief Executive Officer; any investmiéom $25 million to
$75 million requires the approval of our Managémgestment Committee; any investment from $75 onillto $150 million
requires the approval of the Investment Commitfemuo board of directors and our Manager's Investn@mmittee; and any
investment in excess of $150 million requires thpraval of our board of directors.

These investment guidelines may be chafrgadtime to time by our board of directors withal¢ approval of our stockholders. In
addition, both of our Manager and our board ofades must approve any change in our investmemtsgiuies that would modify or expand
types of assets in which we invest.

Available Information

Our website address is www.starwoodpropersy.com. We make available free of charge thramghwebsite our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Curieaports on Form 8-K, all amendments to those regortl other filings as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is edeatally filed with or furnished to the Securitiaed Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), and
also makes available on our website the charterh&Audit, Compensation,
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Nominating and Corporate Governance and Investi@entmittees of the Board of Directors and our CanfeBusiness Conduct and Eth
and Code of Conduct for Principal Executive Offiaad Senior Financial Officers, as well as our oosfe governance guidelines. Copies in
print of these documents are available upon regoesir corporate Secretary at the address indicatehe cover of this report. The
information on our website is not a part of, nott imcorporated by reference into, this Annual Bemn Form 10-K.

We intend to post on our website any amesrdrto, or waiver of, a provision of our Code ofsBiess Conduct and Ethics or Code of
Conduct for Principal Executive Officer and Serfiimancial Officers that applies to our Chief ExéeaitOfficer, Chief Financial Officer and
Controller or persons performing similar functicared that relates to any element of the code o€gtiéfinition set forth in Item 406 of
Regulation S-K of the Securities Act of 1933, asaded.

To communicate with the Board of Directelsctronically, we have established an e-mail asijrBoardofDirectors@stwdreit.com, to
which stockholders may send correspondence to tlaedBof Directors or any such individual directorggroup or committee of directors.

We have included as exhibits to this repmetSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section 302 cediions of our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer regarding the quality ofrquublic disclosure.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information in this documhyeyou should consider carefully the followingkrfactors in evaluating an investment
in our securities. Any of these risks or the ocenoe of any one or more of the uncertainties deedrbelow could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, reswlt operations, cash flows, and trading price @f common stock.

Risks Related to Our Relationship with Our Manager

We are dependent on Starwood Capital Group, inchglour Manager, and their key personnel, who progidervices to us through the
management agreement, and we may not find a suiaiglplacement for our Manager and Starwood Capi@oup if the management
agreement is terminated, or for these key persoriféhey leave Starwood Capital Group or otherwisecome unavailable to us.

We have no separate facilities and are ¢etely reliant on our Manager. Our Manager hasiigant discretion as to the implementation
of our investment and operating policies and striae Accordingly, we believe that our success ddpéo asignificant extent upon the effor
experience, diligence, skill and network of businesntacts of the officers and key personnel ofMdanager. The officers and key personne
our Manager evaluate, negotiate, close and mooitoinvestments; therefore, our success depentiseimcontinued service. The departure of
any of the officers or key personnel of our Managmrld have a material adverse effect on our peréoice.

We offer no assurance that our Managerreitiain our investment manager or that we will oarg to have access to our Manager's
officers and key personnel. The initial term of awnagement agreement with our Manager, and tlestiment advisory agreement between
our Manager and Starwood Capital Group Managenhé&@,only extends until August 17, 2012, with autdim@ne-year renewals thereafter.

If the management agreement and the investmens@gvagreement are terminated and no suitableaeplant is found to manage us, we may
not be able to execute our business plan.
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There are various conflicts of interest in our refanship with Starwood Capital Group, including ouvianager, which could result in
decisions that are not in the best interests of stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interessimg out of our relationship with Starwood CapiEabup, including our Manager. Specifically,
Mr. Sternlicht, our Chief Executive Officer and tB&airman of our board of directors, Mr. Dishnere®f our directors, and certain of our
executive officers are executives of Starwood Gd@roup. Our Manager and executive officers mayete@nflicts between their duties to us
and their duties to, and interests in, Starwoodit@a@roup and its other investment funds. Curseritie Starwood Private Real Estate Funds
collectively have the right to invest 25% of theuiy capital proposed to be invested by any invesinvehicle managed by an entity contro
by Starwood Capital Group in debt interests retpatreal estate. Our co-investment rights areesuithp, among other things, (i) the
determination by our Manager that the proposedsiment is suitable for us, and (ii) our Manageole sliscretion as to whether or not to
exclude from our investment portfolio at any timmy &medium-term loan to own" investment, which danager considers to be mortgage
loans or other real estate-related loan or del#stments where the proposed originator or acqafrany such investment has the intent and/or
expectation of foreclosing on, or otherwise acaqujtihe real property securing the loan or investraéany time between 18 and 48 months of
its origination or acquisition of the loan or int@&nt. In addition, in the case of opportunitiegnigest in a portfolio of assets including both
equity and debt real estate related investmentsyaowgd not have the co-investment rights descridealve if our Manager determines that less
than 50% of the aggregate anticipated investmeuntne from the portfolio is expected to come froun target assets. Since we are subject to
the judgment of our Manager in the application wf co-investment rights, we may not always be alled 75% of each co-investment
opportunity in our target asset classes. The StaaviRrivate Real Estate Funds' co-investment rigleexpected to be in effect for up to three
years following our initial public offering, whictiosed on August 17, 2009. Our independent diregieriodically review our Manager's a
Starwood Capital Group's compliance with the ceeBtinent provisions described above, but they dapptove each co-investment by the
Starwood Private Real Estate Funds and us unlesantiount of capital we invest in the proposed eestment otherwise requires the review
and approval of our independent directors pursteaaatir investment guidelines. Pursuant to the eskelty provisions of the Starwood Private
Real Estate Funds, our investment strategy maijnohtde (i) equity interests in real estate, or'{iiear-term loan to own" investments. These
funds' exclusivity rights are expected to be ireefffor up to three years following our initial pigtoffering, which closed on August 17, 2009.
Therefore, our board of directors does not havdléxdbility to expand our investment strategy telude equity interests in real estate or "near-
term loan to own" investments prior to the expoatof the exclusivity provisions of these Starwdbi/ate Real Estate Funds. Our Manager,
Starwood Capital Group and their respective atéamay sponsor or manage a U.S. publicly tradesstiment vehicle that invests generally in
real estate assets but not primarily in our taagsets, or a potential competing vehicle. Our Managd Starwood Capital Group have also
agreed that for so long as the management agreésnargffect and our Manager and Starwood Caftalup are under common control, no
entity controlled by Starwood Capital Group willogizor or manage a potential competing vehicle iwafe or foreign competing vehicle,
unless Starwood Capital Group adopts a policyeftaer (i) provides for the fair and equitable alition of investment opportunities among all
such vehicles and us, or (ii) provides us the righto-invest with such vehicles, in each caseexhp the suitability of each investment
opportunity for the particular vehicle and us aadhesuch vehicle's and our availability of cashifieestment. To the extent that we have co-
investment rights with these vehicles in the futtinere can be no assurance that these futures nghtentitle us to a similar percentage
allocation as we currently have with respect toSterwood Private Real Estate Funds. To the e#ti@hibur Manager and Starwood Capital
Group adopt an investment allocation policy infilteire, we may nonetheless compete with these hshior investment opportunities sourced
by our Manager and Starwood Capital Group. As altese may either not be presented with the opputy or may have to
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compete with these vehicles to acquire these imexsts. Some or all of our executive officers, thembers of the Investment Committee of
our Manager and other key personnel of our Manageitd likely be responsible for selecting investitsefior these vehicles and they may
choose to allocate favorable investments to omaare of these vehicles instead of to us.

Our board of directors has adopted a paliithh respect to any proposed investments by thvereal persons in any of our target asset
classes. This policy to provide that any proposeestment by a covered person for his or her owowad in any of our target asset classes
be permitted if the capital required for the invesnt does not exceed the personal investment lifaithe extent that a proposed investment
exceeds the personal investment limit, we expexttdhr board of directors will only permit the coee person to make the investment (i) upon
the approval of the disinterested directors, 9Qif(the proposed investment otherwise compliehwgrms of any other related party transaction
policy our board of directors has adopted. Sulifecompliance with all applicable laws, these idiials may make investments for their own
account in our target assets which may preserdineronflicts of interest not addressed by ourenirpolicies.

We pay our Manager substantial base managief@es regardless of the performance of our @atfOur Manager's entitlement to a base
management fee, which is not based upon performmetecs or goals, might reduce its incentive teale its time and effort to seeking
investments that provide attractive risk-adjusttdnns for our portfolio. This in turn could hurth our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders and the market price of our commoaoksto

As noted above, we do not have any emplgaeept for Mr. Sossen, our Executive Vice Pregidgeneral Counsel and Chief
Compliance Officer, who Starwood Capital Group s@sonded to us exclusively. Mr. Sossen is alsovgiayee of other entities affiliated
with our Manager and, as a result, is subject teq@l conflicts of interest in service as our éogpe and as an employee of such entities.

The management agreement with our Manager was negatiated on an arm's-length basis and may not Isefavorable to us as if it had
been negotiated with an unaffiliated third party dmay be costly and difficult to terminate.

Our executive officers and three of ouresedirectors are executives of Starwood Capitau@r@®ur management agreement with our
Manager was negotiated between related partiegaterms, including fees payable, may not be asrible to us as if it had been negotiated
with an unaffiliated third party.

Termination of the management agreemertit auit Manager without cause is difficult and cos®ur independent directors will review
our Manager's performance and the management fieesidy and, following the initial three-year terthe management agreement may be
terminated annually upon the affirmative vote ofeast two-thirds of our independent directors daggon: (1) our Manager's unsatisfactory
performance that is materially detrimental to ug(2) a determination that the management feeshpaya our Manager are not fair, subject to
our Manager's right to prevent termination basedtfair fees by accepting a reduction of managerfes# agreed to by at least two-thirds of
our independent directors. Our Manager will be fifedt 180 days prior notice of any such a termimatidditionally, upon such a terminatic
the management agreement provides that we wilbpayanager a termination fee equal to three tithessum of the average annual base
management fee and incentive fee received by ounralfler during the prior 2donth period before such termination, calculatedfake end ¢
the most recently completed fiscal quarter. In tioldj we would also be required to refund our Maardgr its partial payment of the initial
underwriting discount it paid in connection withranitial public offering irrespective of whether not during any full four calendar quarter
period during the 24 full calendar quarters after consummation of our initial public offering dDore Earnings, as described below, for any
such four-quarter period exceeds
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the product of (x) the weighted average of theagstice per share of all public offerings of ourmaoon stock, multiplied by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding (includingrestyicted stock units, any restricted shareafroon stock and any other shares of
common stock underlying awards granted under ouityencentive plans) in such four-quarter period gy) 8%. These provisions may
increase the cost to us of terminating the manageageement and adversely affect our ability tmieate our Manager without cause.

Core Earnings is a non-generally acceptedunting principle measure and is defined as gdliyeaccepted accounting principles
("GAAP") net income (loss) excluding non-cash egeibmpensation expense, the incentive fee, depi@tiand amortization of real estate (to
the extent that we own properties), any unrealgagds, losses or other non-cash items recordedtimoome for the period, regardless of
whether such items are included in other compratermscome or loss, or in net income. The amoutitlva adjusted to exclude one-time
events pursuant to changes in GAAP and certairr oitne-cash charges after discussions between onada and our independent directors
and after approval by a majority of our indepenad#rectors.

During the initial three-year term of thamagement agreement, we may not terminate the reareag agreement except for cause.

Our Manager is only contractually committedserve us until the third anniversary of thesiig of our initial public offering, which
closed on August 17, 2009. Thereafter, the manageaggeement is renewable for one-year terms; geakihowever, that our Manager may
terminate the management agreement annually up@ddys prior notice. If the management agreemeetisinated and no suitable
replacement is found to manage us, we may not leet@lexecute our business plan.

Pursuant to the management agreement, analyer does not assume any responsibility otharttheender the services called for
thereunder and is not responsible for any actiosuoftboard of directors in following or declining follow its advice or recommendations. Our
Manager maintains a contractual as opposed taiaifidy relationship with us. Under the terms of th@nagement agreement, our Manager, its
officers, members, personnel, any person contgbincontrolled by our Manager and any person pliogi sub-advisory services to our
Manager will not be liable to us, any subsidiaryafs, our directors, our stockholders or any sliasi's stockholders or partners for acts or
omissions performed in accordance with and purstaetite management agreement, except becausesafaudtituting bad faith, willful
misconduct, gross negligence, or reckless disregfattikir duties under the management agreemeitldition, we have agreed to indemnify
our Managet, its officers, stockholders, membem@nagers, directors, personnel, any person comtgodli controlled by our Manager and any
person providing sub-advisory services to our Managth respect to all expenses, losses, damagbdities, demands, charges and claims
arising from acts or omissions of our Manager motstituting bad faith, willful misconduct, grossgtigence, or reckless disregard of duties,
performed in good faith in accordance with and pans to the management agreement.

The incentive fee payable to our Manager under tm@nagement agreement is payable quarterly and isdshon our Core Earnings and
therefore, may cause our Manager to select invegtiteén more risky assets to increase its incentbeenpensation.

Our Manager is entitled to receive incemttompensation based upon our achievement of ¢éatdgmtels of Core Earnings. In evaluating
investments and other management strategies, fhatopity to earn incentive compensation based are Earnings may lead our Manager to
place undue emphasis on the maximization of Coreifigs at the expense of other criteria, such asquvation of capital, in order to achieve
higher incentive compensation. Investments witthérigyield potential are generally riskier or mopeaulative. This could result in increased
risk to the value of our investment portfolio.
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Our conflicts of interest policy may not adequatedgdress all of the conflicts of interest that mayise with respect to our investment
activities and also may limit the allocation of iegtments to us.

In order to avoid any actual or perceivedflicts of interest with our Manager, Starwood EapGroup or any of the Starwood parties, we
have adopted a conflicts of interest policy to #edly address some of the conflicts relatingotar investment opportunities. Although under
this policy the approval of a majority of our indgylent directors is required to approve (i) anychase of our assets by any of the Starwood
parties and (ii) any purchase by us of any asdetayof the Starwood parties, there is no assrémat this policy will be adequate to address
all of the conflicts that may arise or will addressgh conflicts in a manner that results in thecation of a particular investment opportunity to
us or is otherwise favorable to us. In additior, 8tarwood Private Real Estate Funds currently agiditional competing vehicles may in the
future, participate in some of our investments sfilg at a more senior level in the capital stroetof the underlying borrower and related real
estate than our investment. Our interests in soebstments may also conflict with the interestthese funds in the event of a default or
restructuring of the investment. Participating istveents will not be the result of arm's length riegions and will involve potential conflicts
between our interests and those of the other jjzating funds in obtaining favorable terms. Since executives are also executives of
Starwood Capital Group, the same personnel mayrdete the price and terms for the investments fithtus and these funds and there can be
no assurance that any procedural protections, asicibtaining market prices or other reliable ingicaof fair value, will prevent the
consideration we pay for these investments froneeding their fair value or ensure that we receivens for a particular investment
opportunity that are as favorable as those avalfibm an independent third party.

Our board of directors has approved very broad istraent guidelines for our Manager and does not appe each investment and financing
decision made by our Manager unless required by durestment guidelines.

Our Manager is authorized to follow verpdd investment guidelines. Our board of directatspgriodically review our investment
guidelines and our investment portfolio but wiltthand will not be required to, review all of ouoposed investments, except if the investment
requires us to commit either at least $150 millbbicapital or 25% of our equity in any individuaset. In addition, in conducting periodic
reviews, our board of directors may rely primadly information provided to them by our Manager.tRermore, our Manager may use
complex strategies, and transactions entered intmub Manager may be costly, difficult or impossilbd unwind by the time they are reviewed
by our board of directors. Our Manager has grdatite within the broad parameters of our investngeidelines in determining the types and
amounts of target assets it decides are attraictwestments for us, which could result in investimeturns that are substantially below
expectations or that result in losses, which wandderially and adversely affect our business oeratand results. Further, decisions made
and investments and financing arrangements enietety our Manager may not fully reflect the biegerests of our stockholders.

Risks Related to Our Company

Our board of directors may change any of our invesnt strategy or guidelines, financing strategy leverage policies without stockholder
consent.

Our board of directors may change any ofiovestment strategy or guidelines, financingtsgg or leverage policies with respect to
investments, acquisitions, growth, operations, lel@ness, capitalization and distributions at @myg without the consent of our stockholders,
which could result in an investment portfolio watdifferent risk profile. A change in our investrhstrategy may increase our exposure to
interest rate risk, default risk and real estateketfluctuations. These changes could adversébctbur financial condition, results of
operations, the market price of our common stoekaur ability to make distributions to our stockdels.
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We are highly dependent on information systems aydtems failures could significantly disrupt our bimess, which may, in turn, negative
affect the market price of our common stock and aafility to pay dividends.

Our business is highly dependent on comoatinins and information systems of Starwood Ca@talup. Any failure or interruption of
Starwood Capital Group's systems could cause delagther problems in our securities trading atiggi which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results and negativelydffiee market price of our common stock and oulitgltd pay dividends to our stockholders.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or waiay affect the real estate industry and our busssefinancial condition and results of
operations.

The terrorist attacks on September 11, 208ipted the U.S. financial markets, including thal estate capital markets, and negatively
impacted the U.S. economy in general. Any futureotést attacks, the anticipation of any such dsathe consequences of any military or
other response by the U.S. and its allies, and @meed conflicts could cause consumer confidendespending to decrease or result in
increased volatility in the U.S. and worldwide firtéal markets and economy. The economic impadiede events could also adversely affect
the credit quality of some of our loans and invesita and the properties underlying our interests.

We may suffer losses as a result of theeesdvimpact of any future attacks and these lossgsadversely impact our performance and
may cause the market value of our common stocletdirte or be more volatile. A prolonged economawalown, a recession or declining real
estate values could impair the performance of muestments and harm our financial condition andlte®f operations, increase our funding
costs, limit our access to the capital marketesult in a decision by lenders not to extend criedits. We cannot predict the severity of the
effect that potential future terrorist attacks wbbhve on us. Losses resulting from these typeseafts may not be fully insurable.

In addition, the events of September 1idated significant uncertainty regarding the apiit real estate owners of high profile assets to
obtain insurance coverage protecting against fistrattacks at commercially reasonable rates, allaiVith the enactment of the Terrorism
Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (the "TRIA"), and thédsequent enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insur&é@mogram Reauthorization Act of 2007,
which extended the TRIA through the end of 2014uiers must make terrorism insurance available uheé@ property and casualty insurance
policies, but this legislation does not regulate phicing of such insurance. The absence of affiedimsurance coverage may adversely affect
the general real estate lending market, lendingmnel and the market's overall liquidity and may cedthe number of suitable investment
opportunities available to us and the pace at wihielare able to make investments. If the propedigkerlying our interests are unable to
obtain affordable insurance coverage, the valusuointerests could decline, and in the event afiginsured loss, we could lose all or a por
of our investment.

Risks Related to Sources of Financing
Our access to sources of financing may be limitaetighus our ability to maximize our returns may laelversely affected.

Our financing sources may include borrowiirgthe form of bank credit facilities (includitngrm loans and revolving facilities),
repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities, stedtfinancing arrangements, public and privatdtggund debt issuances and derivative
instruments, in addition to transaction or asset#ie funding arrangements.
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Our access to sources of financing willetepupon a number of factors, over which we hatle r no control, including:

. general market conditions;

. the market's view of the quality of our ass

. the market's perception of our growth poten

. our current and potential future earnings and cisthibutions; and
. the market price of the shares of our common st

The current dislocation and weakness ircdpital and credit markets could adversely aféeet or more private lenders and could cause
one or more of our private lenders to be unwillargunable to provide us with financing or to in@edhe costs of that financing. In addition, if
regulatory capital requirements imposed on ourgteilenders change, they may be required to loniticrease the cost of, financing they
provide to us. In general, this could potentiafigriease our financing costs and reduce our liquaitrequire us to sell assets at an inopportune
time or price.

To the extent structured financing arrangets are unavailable, we may have to rely moreilyeanr additional equity issuances, which
may be dilutive to our stockholders, or on lesgcidht forms of debt financing that require a largertion of our cash flow from operations,
thereby reducing funds available for our operatidutire business opportunities, cash distributiimnsur stockholders and other purposes. We
cannot assure you that we will have access to squlty or debt capital on favorable terms (inclyudiwithout limitation, cost and term) at the
desired times, or at all, which may cause us ttadwur asset acquisition activities and/or digpofassets, which could negatively affect our
results of operations.

We may incur significant debt, which will subjecsuo increased risk of loss and may reduce cashilabéde for distributions to our
stockholders, and our governing documents contaim limitation on the amount of debt we may inct

Subject to market conditions and availagilive may incur significant debt through bank d@réatilities (including term loans and
revolving facilities), repurchase agreements, wausk facilities and structured financing arrangeigrublic and private debt issuances and
derivative instruments, in addition to transactiwrasset specific funding arrangements. The pemgentf leverage we employ will vary
depending on our available capital, our abilitypbtain and access financing arrangements with sreled the lenders' and rating agencies'
estimate of the stability of our investment poiititdl cash flow. Our governing documents contaitimd@ation on the amount of debt we may
incur. We may significantly increase the amouniegtrage we utilize at any time without approvabaf board of directors. In addition, we
may leverage individual assets at substantiallpédridevels. Incurring substantial debt could subjescto many risks that, if realized, would
materially and adversely affect us, including tis& that:

. our cash flow from operations may be insufficiemtrtake required payments of principal of and irgeosm the debt or we mg
fail to comply with all of the other covenants cainied in the debt, which is likely to result in &3celeration of such debt (and
any other debt containing a cross-default or cexx®leration provision) that we may be unable paydrom internal funds or-
refinance on favorable terms, or at all, (ii) oability to borrow unused amounts under our finag@rrangements, even if we
are current in payments on borrowings under thasagements and/or (iii) the loss of some or abbwf assets to foreclosure or
sale;

. our debt may increase our vulnerability to advesenomic and industry conditions with no assurdhaeinvestment yields w
increase with higher financing costs;
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. we may be required to dedicate a substantial podfmur cash flow from operations to payments ondebt, thereby reducing
funds available for operations, future businessodpities, stockholder distributions or other pses; and

. we are not able to refinance debt that matures fwithe investment it was used to finance on fabla terms, or at all.
Interest rate fluctuations could significantly deease our results of operations and cash flows ahe market value of our investment
Our primary interest rate exposures refathe following:

. Changes in interest rates may affect the yieldwrirvestments and the financing cost of our dabtyvell as the performance of
our interest rate swaps that we utilize for hedgingposes, which could result in operating lossesi$ should interest expense
exceed interest income;

. Declines in interest rates may reduce the yieléxsting floating rate assets and/or the yield mspective investments;
. Changes in the level of interest rates may affactability to source investmeni
. Increases in the level of interest rates may neglgtimpact the value of our investments and oulitglto realize gains from the

disposition of assets.

. Increases in the level of interest rates may irsrehe credit risk of our assets by negatively ictipg the ability of oul
borrower's to pay debt service on our floating tasm assets, refinance our assets upon matunitycan negatively impact the
value of the real estate collateral supportingiouestments through the impact increases in inteadss can have on property
valuation capitalization rates.

In the event we utilize nc-recourse long-term securitizations, such structgreay expose us to risks which could result in s$0 us.

We may utilize non-recourse long-term sitizations of our investments in mortgage loanpeegally loan originations. Prior to any such
financing, we may seek to finance these investmaittsrelatively short-term facilities until a sidfent portfolio is accumulated. As a result,
we would be subject to the risk that we would negble to acquire, during the period that any stesrh facilities are available, sufficient
eligible assets to maximize the efficiency of as#ization. We also would bear the risk that weudonot be able to obtain new short-term
facilities or would not be able to renew any shertn facilities after they expire should we needertime to seek and acquire sufficient
eligible assets for a securitization. In additioonditions in the capital markets, including thereat unprecedented volatility and disruption in
the capital and credit markets, may not permit @& recourse securitization at any particular timenay make the issuance of any such
securitization less attractive to us even when avbale sufficient eligible assets. While we woulténd to retain the unrated equity and the
non-investment grade bond components of securdizaitand, therefore, still have exposure to angstments included in such securitizations,
our inability to enter into such securitizationsuddincrease our overall exposure to risks assediafith direct ownership of such investments,
including the risk of default. Our inability to ir&nce any short-term facilities would also inceeasr risk because borrowings thereunder
would likely be recourse to us as an entity. Ifave unable to obtain and renew short-term faglitieto consummate securitizations to finance
our investments on a long-term basis, we may beired|to seek other forms of potentially less atixe financing or to liquidate assets at an
inopportune time or price.
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Any warehouse facilities that we obtain may limitioability to acquire assets, and we may incur lessf the collateral is liquidatec

We may utilize, if available, warehouseiliies pursuant to which we would accumulate mage loans in anticipation of a securitization
financing, which assets would be pledged as codhfer such facilities until the securitizatiomtrsaction is consummated. In order to borrow
funds to acquire assets under any future warehagdies, we expect that our lenders thereundeulel have the right to review the potential
assets for which we are seeking financing. We neayriable to obtain the consent of a lender to ae@ssets that we believe would be
beneficial to us and we may be unable to obtaerméite financing for such assets. In addition,ssueance can be given that a securitization
structure would be consummated with respect t@a#isets being warehoused. If the securitizatiooti€onsummated, the lender could liquic
the warehoused collateral and we would then hayayoany amount by which the original purchaseepoitthe collateral assets exceeds its
sale price, subject to negotiated caps, if anygumexposure. In addition, regardless of whetherstrcuritization is consummated, if any of the
warehoused collateral is sold before the consunamatie would have to bear any resulting loss orstte. Currently, we have no warehouse
facilities in place, and no assurance can be dgivahwe will be able to obtain one or more wareledasilities on favorable terms, or at all.

The utilization of any repurchase facility we obtaivill be subject to the pre-approval of the lender

We may utilize, if available, repurchaseeggnents to finance the purchase of certain investsn In order to borrow funds under a
repurchase agreement, the lender has the righ/tew the potential assets for which we are seeliancing and approve such asset in its
discretion. Accordingly, we may be unable to obthim consent of a lender to finance an investmedtzadternate sources of financing for such
asset may not exist.

A failure to comply with restrictive covenants iniorepurchase agreements and bank credit facilitpaid have a material adverse affect «
us, and any future financings may require us to ptide additional collateral or pay down debt.

We are subject to various restrictive ca@rgn contained in our existing financing arrangeimand may become subject to additional
covenants in connection with future financings. ©edit agreement contains covenants that restictbility to incur additional debt or liens,
make certain investments or acquisitions, mergesaidate or transfer or dispose of substantidllgssets or otherwise dispose of property
assets, pay dividends and make certain otherctstrpayments, change the nature of our businedster into transactions with affiliates.
The credit agreement, as well as our master repgechgreements, each requires us to maintain ampliwith various financial covenants,
including a minimum tangible net worth and cashiiliity, and specified financial ratios, such asitafebt to total assets and EBITDA to fixed
charges. These covenants may limit our flexibii@yursue certain investments or incur additiorgddtdIf we fail to meet or satisfy any of th
covenants, we would be in default under these aggats, and our lenders could elect to declare andétg amounts due and payable,
terminate their commitments, require the postingdditional collateral and enforce their interegiainst existing collateral. We may also be
subject to cross-default and acceleration rights asith respect to collateralized debt, the postihgdditional collateral and foreclosure rights
upon default. Further, this could also make itidifft for us to satisfy the distribution requireni®necessary to maintain our status as a REIT
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

These types of financing arrangementsialaalve the risk that the market value of the loptesiged or sold by us to the repurchase
agreement counterparty or provider of the bankitfadility may decline in value, in which case tleader may require us to provide additic
collateral or to repay all or a portion of the fgsralvanced. We may not have the funds availablep@y our debt at
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that time, which would likely result in defaultsless we are able to raise the funds from alteraaources, which we may not be able to
achieve on favorable terms or at all. Posting &ulthitl collateral would reduce our liquidity and itrour ability to leverage our assets. If we
cannot meet these requirements, the lender couklexate our indebtedness, increase the intetesbneadvanced funds and terminate our
ability to borrow funds from them, which could m@adly and adversely affect our financial conditiand ability to implement our business
plan. In addition, in the event that the lenderdifor bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, our loaag become subject to bankruptcy or
insolvency proceedings, thus depriving us, at leasporarily, of the benefit of these assets. Sucbvent could restrict our access to bank
credit facilities and increase our cost of capital.

If one or more of our Manager's executive officeese no longer employed by our Manager, financialstitutions providing any financing
arrangements we may have may not provide futureaficing to us, which could materially and adverselffect us.

If financial institutions that we seek todnce our investments require that one or momioManager's executives continue to serve in
such capacity and if one or more of our Managesetives are no longer employed by our Managenay constitute an event of default and
the financial institution providing the arrangemeardy have acceleration rights with respect to antding borrowings and termination rights
with respect to our ability to finance our futureéstments with that institution. If we are unaiol@btain financing for our accelerated
borrowings and for our future investments undehsticcumstances, we could be materially and adlxeeséected.

We utilize non-recourse long-term securitizatioremd such structures expose us to risks, which corédult in losses to us.

We utilize non-recourse longrm securitizations of our investments in mortglagas, especially loan originations, to the extamtsister
with the maintenance of our REIT qualification aneémption from the 1940 Act in order to generathdar funding new investments. This
involves conveying a pool of assets to a specighqae vehicle (or the issuing entity) which issaee or more classes of non-recourse notes
pursuant to the terms of an indenture. The noesecured by the pool of assets. In exchange éardéimsfer of assets to the issuing entity, we
receive the cash proceeds on the sale of non-reemates and a 100% interest in the equity ofgbeing entity. The securitization of our
portfolio investments might magnify our exposurdasses on those portfolio investments becausequity interest we retain in the issuing
entity would be subordinate to the notes issugdwestors and we would, therefore, absorb all efldsses sustained with respect to a
securitized pool of assets before the owners ohtites experience any losses. Moreover, we careassured that we will be able to acces
securitization market in the future, or be ableldoso at favorable rates. The inability to consutensacuritizations of our portfolio to finance
our investments on a long-term basis could requsreo seek other forms of potentially less attwactinancing or to liquidate assets at an
inopportune time or price, which could adversefgetf our performance and our ability to grow ousibess.

Risks Related to Hedging
We enter into hedging transactions that could expass to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT, part of our investment strategy involvateeng into hedging transactions that require
us to fund cash payments in certain circumstarsigsh(as the early termination of the hedging imsemit caused by an event of default or o
early termination event, or the decision by a cerpdrty to request margin securities it is contrally owed under the terms of the hedging
instrument). The amount due would be equal to tirealized loss of the open swap positions withréspective counterparty and could also
include other fees and charges. These economiedagi be reflected in our results of operaticensd our ability to fund
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these obligations will depend on the liquidity afr@ssets and access to capital at the time, @&ndetbd to fund these obligations could
adversely impact our financial condition.

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adversdfect our earnings, which could reduce our caakailable for distribution to out
stockholders

Subject to maintaining our qualificationeaREIT, we pursue various hedging strategiese& sereduce our exposure to adverse changes
in interest rates. Our hedging activity variesdne based on the level and volatility of interages, the type of assets held and other changing
market conditions. Interest rate hedging may taprotect or could adversely affect us because ngmther things:

. interest rate hedging can be expensive and mait iesis receiving less interest income;

. available interest rate hedges may not correspordtly with the interest rate risk for which protien is sought;

. due to a credit loss, the duration of the hedge nzynatch the duration of the related liabili

. the amount of income that a REIT may earn from reglyansactions (other than hedging transactibasdatisfy certai

requirements of the Code or that are done througikable REIT subsidiary (“TRS")) to offset intereste losses is limited by
U.S. federal tax provisions governing REITS;

. the credit quality of the hedging counterparty agvinoney on the hedge may be downgraded to sucktentehat it impairs ou
ability to sell or assign our side of the hedgiransaction; and

. the hedging counterparty owing money in the hedgriagsaction may default on its obligation to f
In addition, we may fail to recalculateadgist and execute hedges in an efficient manner.

Any hedging activity in which we engage nmagterially and adversely affect our results ofrafiens and cash flows. Therefore, while
may enter into such transactions seeking to reghieeest rate risks, unanticipated changes inésterates may result in poorer overall
investment performance than if we had not engagechy such hedging transactions. In addition, #grek of correlation between price
movements of the instruments used in a hedginteglyand price movements in the portfolio positiondiabilities being hedged may vary
materially. Moreover, for a variety of reasons, way not seek to establish a perfect correlatiowéen such hedging instruments and the
portfolio positions or liabilities being hedged. Yauch imperfect correlation may prevent us frommiening the intended hedge and expose us
to risk of loss.

Hedging instruments often are not traded on reguddtexchanges, guaranteed by an exchange or itsrahgghouse, or regulated by any U.
or foreign governmental authorities and involve ks and costs that could result in material losses.

The cost of using hedging instruments iases as the period covered by the instrument iseseand during periods of rising and volatile
interest rates. In addition, hedging instrument®ive risk since they often are not traded on ratgd exchanges, guaranteed by an exchar
its clearing house, or regulated by any U.S. ogifpr governmental authorities. Consequently, theeeno requirements with respect to record
keeping, financial responsibility or segregatiorca$tomer funds and positions. Furthermore, thereaébility of agreements underlying
hedging transactions may depend on complianceapifticable statutory and commodity and other ragiyarequirements and, depending on
the identity of the counterparty, applicable intfonal requirements. The business failure of aglmggdcounterparty with whom we enter into a
hedging transaction will most likely result
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in its default. Default by a party with whom we @ninto a hedging transaction may result in ths lafsunrealized profits and force us to cover
our commitments, if any, at the then current mapkite. Although generally we will seek to resetire right to terminate our hedging
positions, it may not always be possible to dispafsar close out a hedging position without the smmt of the hedging counterparty and we
may not be able to enter into an offsetting contimorder to cover our risk. We cannot assure tyat a liquid secondary market will exist for
hedging instruments purchased or sold, and we reagdpuired to maintain a position until exercis@xpiration, which could result in
significant losses.

We may fail to qualify for, or choose not to eletiedge accounting treatment.

We record derivative and hedging transastio accordance with GAAP. Under these standardsnay fail to qualify for, or choose not
to elect, hedge accounting treatment for a numbezasons, including if we use instruments thahdbmeet the definition of a derivative (st
as short sales), we fail to satisfy hedge docuntientand hedge effectiveness assessment requirsmeatr instruments are not highly
effective. If we fail to qualify for hedge accoumditreatment, our operating results may be volagleause changes in the fair value of the
derivatives that we enter into may not be offsetilmhange in the fair value of the related hedggasaction or item.

We enter into derivative contracts that could expass to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationeaREIT, we enter into derivative contracts thatldoequire us to fund cash payments in the
future under certain circumstances.g., the early termination of the derivative agreenttsed by an event of default or other early
termination event, or the decision by a counteyprrequest margin securities it is contractuailyed under the terms of the derivative
contract). The amount due would be equal to thealired loss of the open swap positions with tispeetive counterparty and could also
include other fees and charges. These economiedasay materially and adversely affect our resafltgperations and cash flows.

Risks Related to Our Investments
We may not be able to identify assets that meetiouestment objective.

We cannot assure you that we will be ablieléntify additional assets that meet our invesitnodjective, that we will be successful in
consummating any investment opportunities we idgwoti that one or more investments we may makeyiglld attractive riskadjusted return:
Our inability to do any of the foregoing likely widumaterially and adversely affect our results pé@tions and cash flows and our ability to
make distributions to our stockholders.

Until appropriate investments can be idiedi our Manager may invest our cash in interestrimg short-term investments, including
Agency RMBS, AAA-rated CMBS and money market acdewamd/or funds, which are consistent with ourritite to qualify as a REIT.
These investments are expected to provide a loatereturn than we will seek to achieve from investits in our target assets. Our Manager
intends to conduct due diligence with respect ttheavestment and suitable investment opportunitiag not be immediately available. Even
if opportunities are available, there can be naii@se that our Manager's due diligence procesilesngover all relevant facts or that any
investment will be successful.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advelyg affect our business.

The lack of liquidity of our investmentsrgal estate loans and investments other thanicefttaur investments in mortgage-backed
securities ("MBS") may make it difficult for us s&ll such investments if the need or desire arldasyy of the securities we purchase are not
registered under the relevant securities laws |tiegun a prohibition against their transfer, sgieedge or their
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disposition except in a transaction that is exefmguh the registration requirements of, or otherwisaccordance with, those laws. In addition,
certain investments such as B-Notes, mezzanine laad bridge and other loans are also particulgidyid investments due to their short life,
their potential unsuitability for securitizationdithe greater difficulty of recovery in the evefiadorrower's default. As a result, we expect
many of our investments will be illiquid and if vaee required to liquidate all or a portion of owrtfolio quickly, we may realize significantly
less than the value at which we have previouslgnaed our investments. Further, we may face otbsrictions on our ability to liquidate an
investment in a business entity to the extentweabr our Manager has or could be attributed witttamal, non-public information regarding
such business entity. As a result, our abilityaoyour portfolio in response to changes in ecoranid other conditions may be relatively
limited, which could adversely affect our result©perations and financial condition.

Our investments may be concentrated and will bejeabto risk of default.

While we intend to diversify our portfolad investments, we are not required to observeifipeliversification criteria, except as may be
set forth in the investment guidelines adopted loylward of directors. Therefore, our investmentsur target assets may at times be
concentrated in certain property types that argestibo higher risk of foreclosure, or secured byperties concentrated in a limited number of
geographic locations. To the extent that our pbdfie concentrated in any one region or type aeasdownturns relating generally to such
region or type of asset may result in defaults anmber of our investments within a short time eriwhich may reduce our net income and
the value of our common stock and accordingly reduar ability to pay dividends to our stockholders.

Difficult conditions in the mortgage, commercial ahresidential real estate markets may cause usdpegience market losses related to ¢
holdings, and we do not expect these conditiongmprove in the near future.

Our results of operations are materialfe@td by conditions in the real estate markesfittencial markets and the economy generally.
Continuing concerns about the declining real esteeket, as well as inflation, energy costs, geitipal issues and the availability and cost of
credit, have contributed to increased volatilitgl @iminished expectations for the economy and mareing forward. The mortgage market
has been severely affected by changes in the lgnaimscape and there is no assurance that thediions have stabilized or that they will
not worsen. The disruption in the mortgage markstdn impact on new demand for homes, which witm@ss the home ownership rates and
weigh heavily on future home price performance.r€he a strong correlation between home price digates and mortgage loan
delinquencies. The further deterioration of thd estate market may cause us to experience logk#ed to our assets and to sell assets at a
loss. Declines in the market values of our investimenay adversely affect our results of operatams credit availability, which may reduce
earnings and, in turn, cash available for distidruto our stockholders.

We operate in a highly competitive market for integnt opportunities and competition may limit oub#ity to acquire desirable investmet
in our target assets and could also affect the jmig of these securities.

We operate in a highly competitive marletihvestment opportunities. Our profitability depks, in large part, on our ability to acquire
our target assets at attractive prices. In acquiour target assets, we compete with a varietpgtftutional investors, including other REITS,
commercial and investment banks, specialty finarmrapanies, public and private funds (including ofueds managed by Starwood Capital
Group), commercial finance and insurance compaamesother financial institutions. Many of our cortifmes are substantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical, marlgtind other resources than we do. Several othefRidve recently raised
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significant amounts of capital, and may have inwestt objectives that overlap with ours, which mesate additional competition for
investment opportunities. Some competitors may laalsver cost of funds and access to funding seuitteg may not be available to us, such
as funding from the U.S. Government, if we aregaligfible to participate in programs establishedh®/U.S. Government. Many of our
competitors are not subject to the operating cairgs associated with REIT tax compliance or maiatee of an exemption from the 1940 ,
In addition, some of our competitors may have higtsk tolerances or different risk assessmentschvbould allow them to consider a wider
variety of investments and establish more relatigpssthan us. Furthermore, competition for investtaén our target assets may lead to the
price of such assets increasing, which may furih@t our ability to generate desired returns. Vé@iot assure you that the competitive
pressures we face will not have a material adveffeet on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations. Also, as a result of this
competition, desirable investments in our targeetsmay be limited in the future and we may natlide to take advantage of attractive
investment opportunities from time to time, as \&a provide no assurance that we will be able totifleand make investments that are
consistent with our investment objectives.

The commercial mortgage loans we acquire and thertgage loans underlying our CMBS investments arebgect to the ability of the
commercial property owner to generate net incomenfr operating the property as well as the risks efidquency and foreclosure.

Commercial mortgage loans are secured Htifamily or commercial property and are subjectitks of delinquency and foreclosure, i
risks of loss that may be greater than similarsiagsociated with loans made on the security glesifamily residential property. The ability of
a borrower to repay a loan secured by an incomeymiag property typically is dependent primarilyomgthe successful operation of such
property rather than upon the existence of indepeniticome or assets of the borrower. If the netajing income of the property is reduced,
the borrower's ability to repay the loan may beaimgd. Net operating income of an income-produgraperty can be adversely affected by,
among other things,

. tenant mix;

. success of tenant business

. property management decisions;

. property location, condition and design;

. competition from comparable types of propert

. changes in laws that increase operating expendesibrents that may be charge

. changes in national, regional or local economia@ons and/or specific industry segments, inclgdine credit and

securitization markets;

. declines in regional or local real estate vali

. declines in regional or local rental or occuparetes;

. increases in interest rates, real estate tax asg®ther operating expenses;

. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental condition:

. the potential for uninsured or underinsured propkrgses

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, duetufiscal policies, zoning ordinances and envinental legislation and the

related costs of compliance; and

. acts of God, terrorist attacks, social unrest amdldisturbances
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In the event of any default under a morgglagn held directly by us, we will bear a riskags of principal to the extent of any deficiency
between the value of the collateral and the pradcmd accrued interest of the mortgage loan, wbizhd have a material adverse effect on our
cash flow from operations and limit amounts avadddbr distribution to our stockholders. In the stef the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan
borrower, the mortgage loan to such borrower vélideemed to be secured only to the extent of theed the underlying collateral at the tii
of bankruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy }pand the lien securing the mortgage loan wilkbbkject to the avoidance powers of the
bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-possession to xtene the lien is unenforceable under state laweélosure of a mortgage loan can be an
expensive and lengthy process, which could hawdstantial negative effect on our anticipated retwm the foreclosed mortgage loan.

Our investments in CMBS are generally subject tades.

Our investments in CMBS are subject todgs#n general, losses on a mortgaged propertyiagca mortgage loan included in a
securitization will be borne first by the equityltier of the property, then by a cash reserve furldtter of credit, if any, then by the holder ¢
mezzanine loan or B-Note, if any, then by the tfioss" subordinated security holder (generallg, -Piece" buyer) and then by the holder of
a higher-rated security. In the event of defautt tire exhaustion of any equity support, reserve fletter of credit, mezzanine loans or B-
Notes, and any classes of securities junior toetlisvhich we invest, we will not be able to recoa of our investment in the securities’
purchase. In addition, if the underlying mortgagetfolio has been overvalued by the originatorif dine values subsequently decline and, as a
result, less collateral is available to satisfyiest and principal payments due on the related MBS prices of lower credit quality securities
are generally less sensitive to interest rate abstigan more highly rated investments, but morsitea to adverse economic downturns or
individual issuer developments.

We may not control the special servicing of the ngage loans included in the CMBS in which we investd, in such cases, the special
servicer may take actions that could adversely effeur interests

With respect to the CMBS in which we inyesterall control over the special servicing of teated underlying mortgage loans will be
held by a "directing certificateholder" or a "caniling class representative," which is appointedtsy holders of the most subordinate class of
CMBS in such series. Because we focus on acquitagses of existing series of CMBS originally ra#e®lA, we do not have the right to
appoint the directing certificateholder. In conm@ttwith the servicing of the specially servicedrtgage loans, the related special servicer
at the direction of the directing certificateholdike actions with respect to the specially seimortgage loans that could adversely affect
our interests.

If our Manager overestimates the yields or incortBcprices the risks of our investments, we may eripnce losses

Our Manager values our potential investrmdatsed on yields and risks, taking into accouimhased future losses on the mortgage loans
and the underlying collateral included in the s&@ation's pools, and the estimated impact of¢lesses on expected future cash flows and
returns. Our Manager's loss estimates may not paogerate, as actual results may vary from estnétethe event that our Manager
underestimates the asset level losses relativeetprice we pay for a particular investment, we mgyerience losses with respect to such
investment.
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Our investments in corporate bank debt and debtwsées of commercial real estate operating or finee companies are subject to the
specific risks relating to the particular companyd to the general risks of investing in real est-related loans and securities, which may
result in significant losses.

We invest in corporate bank debt and magshin debt securities of commercial real estatrating or finance companies. These
investments involve special risks relating to thetipular company, including its financial conditidiquidity, results of operations, business
and prospects. In particular, the debt securitieso#en non-collateralized and may also be subatdd to its other obligations. We also invest
in debt securities of companies that are not rateate rated noimvestment grade by one or more rating agenciegstments that are not ra
or are rated non-investment grade have a highleofidefault than investment grade rated assetdlardfore may result in losses to us. We
have not adopted any limit on such investments.

These investments also subject us to tkes inherent with real estate-related investmemndtsyding:

. risks of delinquency and foreclosure, and riskbs$ in the event thereof;

. the dependence upon the successful operation @hetrincome from, real property;
. risks generally incident to interests in real pmbyeand

. risks specific to the type and use of a particptaperty.

These risks may adversely affect the vafusur investments in commercial real estate opegatnd finance companies and the ability of
the issuers thereof to make principal and intgsagtnents in a timely manner, or at all, and coakult in significant losses.

Investments in no-conforming and non-investment grade rated loanss#gcurities involve increased risk of loss.

Many of our investments do not conform doentional loan standards applied by traditioeatlers and either will not be rated or will be
rated as non-investment grade by the rating agenthe non-investment grade ratings for these agggitally result from the overall leverage
of the loans, the lack of a strong operating hisfor the properties underlying the loans, the taers' credit history, the properties’ underlying
cash flow or other factors. As a result, these stwents will have a higher risk of default and [dsm investment grade rated assets. Any loss
we incur may be significant and may reduce distiims to our stockholders and adversely affecintlagket value of our common stock. There
are no limits on the percentage of unrated or mwestment grade rated assets we may hold in oesiment portfolio.

Any credit ratings assigned to our investments viiél subject to ongoing evaluations and revisionglame cannot assure you that tho
ratings will not be downgraded.

Some of our investments may be rated bydysolnvestors Service, Fitch Ratings, S&P, DBR18, br Realpoint LLC. Any credit ratin
on our investments are subject to ongoing evalndiiocredit rating agencies, and we cannot assaughat any such ratings will not be
changed or withdrawn by a rating agency in thertutfj in its judgment, circumstances warrantaltimg agencies assign a lower-than-expected
rating or reduce or withdraw, or indicate that tinegy reduce or withdraw, their ratings of our inwesnts in the future, the value of these
investments could significantly decline, which wabaldversely affect the value of our investmentfpba and could result in losses upon
disposition or the failure of borrowers to satitigir debt service obligations to us.
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The B Notes that we may acquire may be subjectddiional risks related to the privately negotiatsttucture and terms of the transaction,
which may result in losses to us.

We may acquire B-Notes. B-Notes are momtgagns typically (1) secured by a first mortgageassingle large commercial property or
group of related properties and (2) subordinatemhté Note secured by the same first mortgage erséime collateral. As a result, if a
borrower defaults, there may not be sufficient &ingimaining for B-Note holders after payment toAhdote holders. However, because each
transaction is privately negotiated, B-Notes cary v their structural characteristics and riskst Example, the rights of holders of B-Notes to
control the process following a borrower defaulymary from transaction to transaction. FurtheiN8tes typically are secured by a single
property and so reflect the risks associated wghificant concentration. Significant losses retbte our B-Notes would result in operating
losses for us and may limit our ability to maketrdsitions to our stockholders.

Our mezzanine loan assets will involve greater 83K loss than senior loans secured by income-praidg properties.

We may acquire mezzanine loans, which tagdorm of subordinated loans secured by secomtigages on the underlying property or
loans secured by a pledge of the ownership intedstither the entity owning the property or adgle of the ownership interests of the entity
that owns the interest in the entity owning thepgmny. These types of assets involve a higher @egfreisk than long-term senior mortgage
lending secured by income-producing real propdrégause the loan may become unsecured as a refartaosure by the senior lender. In
the event of a bankruptcy of the entity providihg pledge of its ownership interests as securigymay not have full recourse to the assets of
such entity, or the assets of the entity may natusgcient to satisfy our mezzanine loan. If adogver defaults on our mezzanine loan or debt
senior to our loan, or in the event of a borrowemkyuptcy, our mezzanine loan will be satisfiedyaadter the senior debt. As a result, we may
not recover some or all of our initial expenditureaddition, mezzanine loans may have higher lmawalue ratios than conventional mortgage
loans, resulting in less equity in the property amleasing the risk of loss of principal. Signdit losses related to our mezzanine loans would
result in operating losses for us and may limit albility to make distributions to our stockholders.

Bridge loans will involve a greater risk of lossah traditional investmer-grade mortgage loans with fully insured borrowers.

We may acquire bridge loans secured by Ifer mortgages on a property to borrowers whatygpeeally seeking short-term capital to be
used in an acquisition, construction or rehabibtabf a property. The typical borrower under albg loan has usually identified an
undervalued asset that has been under-managed @nldcated in a recovering market. If the maikewhich the asset is located fails to
recover according to the borrower's projectionsf tire borrower fails to improve the quality oftlasset's management and/or the value of the
asset, the borrower may not receive a sufficietotrneon the asset to satisfy the bridge loan, aadear the risk that we may not recover some
or all of our initial expenditure.

In addition, borrowers usually use the pexts of a conventional mortgage to repay a bridge. |Bridge loans therefore are subject to
risks of a borrower's inability to obtain permanénancing to repay the bridge loan. Bridge loaresalso subject to risks of borrower defaults,
bankruptcies, fraud, losses and special hazarddabsit are not covered by standard hazard insewrémthe event of any default under bridge
loans held by us, we bear the risk of loss of ppiaicand non-payment of interest and fees to thergof any deficiency between the value of
the mortgage collateral and the principal amouxt@mpaid interest of the bridge loan. To the extemssuffer such losses with respect to our
bridge loans, the value of our company and theepofoour shares of common stock may be adversédgtafi.
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The residential mortgage loans that we may acquimed that underlie the RMBS we may acquire, are gdi to risks particular to
investments secured by mortgage loans on residénéial estate property.

Residential mortgage loans are securedngyesfamily residential property and are subjectisks of delinquency and foreclosure and
risks of loss. The ability of a borrower to repalpan secured by a residential property typicalgépendent upon the income or assets of the
borrower. A number of factors may impair borrowatslities to repay their loans, including:

. acts of God, which may result in uninsured los

. acts of war or terrorism, including the consequsrafesvents;

. adverse changes in national and local economicreariet conditions;

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, dietufiscal policies, zoning ordinances and envinental legislation and tf

related costs of compliance;
. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhwitvironmental conditions; and

. the potential for uninsured or un-insured property losse

We may acquire non-Agency RMBS, which aaeked by residential real estate property butpimrast to Agency RMBS, their principal
and interest are not guaranteed by federally creattentities such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Magciatide case of Ginnie Mae, the U.S.
Government. Our investments in RMBS will be subjedhe risks of defaults, foreclosure timelineesmsdion, fraud, home price depreciation
and unfavorable modification of loan principal amgunterest rate and amortization of principak@opanying the underlying residential
mortgage loans. In the event of defaults on thieleasial mortgage loans that underlie our investi:m@mAgency RMBS and the exhaustion of
any underlying or any additional credit support,may not realize our anticipated return on our gtweents and we may incur a loss on these
investments.

Prepayment rates may adversely affect the valuewfinvestment portfolio

The value of our investment portfolio vk affected by prepayment rates on our mortgagesada many cases, especially residential
mortgage assets, borrowers are not prohibited fraking prepayments on their mortgage loans. Prepaymtes are influenced by changes in
interest rates and a variety of economic, geogcaphd other factors beyond our control, includinghout limitation, housing and financial
markets and relative interest rates on fixed ratetgage loans, and adjustable rate mortgage IGAREIMs"), and consequently prepayment
rates cannot be predicted.

We will generally receive payments fromngipal payments that are made on our mortgagesasseluding residential mortgage loans
underlying the Agency RMBS or the non-Agency RMBSttwe may acquire. When borrowers prepay theideesial mortgage loans faster
than expected, it results in prepayments thatastef than expected on the RMBS. Faster than eegppcepayments could adversely affect our
profitability and our ability to recoup our costadrtain investments purchased at a premium owevglae, including in the following ways:

. We may purchase RMBS that have a higher interéstihan the market interest rate at the time. bharge for this higher
interest rate, we may pay a premium over the plarev@ acquire our mortgage asset. In accordante®AAP, we may
amortize this premium over the estimated term ofroartgage asset. If our mortgage asset is prépaidhole or in part prior to
its maturity date, however, we may be requiredxmease the premium that was prepaid at the tinteeoprepayment.

. We anticipate that a substantial portion of ouuatdbl-rate RMBS may bear interest rates that are lowaar their fully indexe:

rates, which are equivalent to the applicable indé& plus a margin. If an adjustable-rate RMBfrépaid prior to or soon after
the time of
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adjustment to a fully-indexed rate, we will havédhthat RMBS while it was least profitable and ltdst opportunity to receive
interest at the fully indexed rate over the remairaf its expected life.

. Prepayment rates generally increase when inteatest fall and decrease when interest rates ridanmé unlikely that we
would be able to reinvest the proceeds of any gmapat in mortgage assets of similar quality anchge(including yield). If we
are unable to invest in similar mortgage assetsyaudd be adversely affected.

While we will seek to minimize prepaymeiskrto the extent practical, in selecting investiseme must balance prepayment risk against
other risks and the potential returns of each itneest. No strategy can completely insulate us fppepayment risk.

Interest rate mismatches between our Agency RMB8Kaal by ARMs and our borrowings used to fund ourrphases of these assets ir
reduce our net interest income and cause us to suff loss during periods of rising interest rates.

To the extent that we invest in Agency RMEfgked by ARMs, we may finance these investmeittsvorrowings that have interest ra
that adjust more frequently than the interestiradéeces and repricing terms of Agency RMBS backgdBRMs. Accordingly, if short-term
interest rates increase, our borrowing costs megase faster than the interest rates on Agency &bitked by ARMs adjust. As a result,
period of rising interest rates, we could expergeadecrease in net income or a net loss. In nassis¢ the interest rate indices and repricing
terms of Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and our borrmsiwill not be identical, thereby potentially dieg an interest rate mismatch
between our investments and our borrowings. Whigehistorical spread between relevant short-teteraést rate indices has been relatively
stable, there have been periods when the spreagéethese indices was volatile. During periodshainging interest rates, these interest rate
index mismatches could reduce our net income atyme a net loss, and adversely affect our abiitnake distributions and the market price
of our common stock.

In addition, Agency RMBS backed by ARMsIwyipically be subject to lifetime interest ratgpsavhich limit the amount an interest rate
can increase through the maturity of the Agency FBMBowever, our borrowings under repurchase agreentgpically will not be subject to
similar restrictions. Accordingly, in a period @fpidly increasing interest rates, the interestsrpged on our borrowings could increase without
limitation while caps could limit the interest raten these types of Agency RMBS. This problem igmifeed for Agency RMBS backed by
ARMs that are not fully indexed. Further, some AgeRMBS backed by ARMs may be subject to periodigment caps that result in a
portion of the interest being deferred and addatieqrincipal outstanding. As a result, we mageie less cash income on these types of
Agency RMBS than we need to pay interest on oatedl borrowings. These factors could reduce ouintetest income and cause us to suffer
a loss during periods of rising interest rates.

We may acquire subprime or alternative documentati@sidential mortgage loans, which are subjectibareased risks.

We may acquire non-Agency RMBS backed biataral pools of mortgage loans that have beeggirated using underwriting standards
that are less restrictive than those used in unitémg "prime mortgage loans." These lower standandlude mortgage loans made to
borrowers having imperfect or impaired credit higts, mortgage loans where the amount of the Ibanigination is 80% or more of the value
of the mortgage property, mortgage loans made mmbe@rs with low credit scores, mortgage loans ntadeorrowers who have other debt that
represents a large portion of their income and gagr¢ loans made to borrowers whose income is gatredl to be disclosed or verified. Dut
economic conditions, including increased interatts and lower home prices, as well as aggressive
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lending practices, subprime mortgage loans havedent periods experienced increased rates ofqiedimcy, foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss,
and they are likely to continue to experience dglency, foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss ratesateahigher, and that may be substantially
higher, than those experienced by mortgage loadsrwmitten in a more traditional manner. Thus, lisesof the higher delinquency rates and
losses associated with subprime mortgage loanal&mhative documentation ("Alt A") mortgage loatis performance of noAgency RMB¢
backed by subprime mortgage loans and Alt A mordagns that we may acquire could be correspongedyersely affected, which could
adversely impact our results of operations, finalhcondition and business.

Construction loans involve an increased risk of &s

We may invest in construction loans. If fai to fund our entire commitment on a construatioan or if a borrower otherwise fails to
complete the construction of a project, there cdadlcadverse consequences associated with theihohrding: a loss of the value of the
property securing the loan, especially if the baepis unable to raise funds to complete it frolmeotsources; a borrower claim against us for
failure to perform under the loan documents; inseglacosts to the borrower that the borrower is lentbpay; a bankruptcy filing by the
borrower; and abandonment by the borrower of thiatesal for the loan.

Risks of cost overruns and noncompletion of rendweatof the properties underlying rehabilitation lae may result in significant losse

The renovation, refurbishment or expan&ipm borrower under a mortgaged property involig@ssrof cost overruns and noncompletion.
Estimates of the costs of improvements to bring@&juired property up to standards establishechionmtarket position intended for that
property may prove inaccurate. Other risks mayuitelrehabilitation costs exceeding original esteésapossibly making a project
uneconomical, environmental risks and rehabilitabod subsequent leasing of the property not besngpleted on schedule. If such renova
is not completed in a timely manner, or if it costsre than expected, the borrower may experiemprelanged impairment of net operating
income and may not be able to make payments omeestment, which could result in significant losse

Interest rate fluctuations could reduce our abilitpy generate income on our investments and may eglasses

Changes in interest rates will affect oet interest income, which is the difference betwieninterest income we earn on our interest-
earning investments and the interest expense we indinancing these investments. Changes indkiellof interest rates also may affect our
ability to originate and acquire assets, the valueur assets and our ability to realize gains fthmdisposition of assets. Changes in interest
rates may also affect borrower default rates. per@od of rising interest rates, our interest exggecould increase, while the interest we earn on
our fixed-rate debt investments would not changeeesely affecting our profitability. Our operatingsults depend in large part on differences
between the income from our assets, net of cresdgs, and our financing costs. We anticipatefthatny period during which our assets are
not match-funded, the income from such assetsr@sgipond more slowly to interest rate fluctuatidrentthe cost of our borrowings.
Consequently, changes in interest rates may signifiy influence our net income. Increases in thiates will tend to decrease our net income
and the market value of our fixed rate assetsréstaate fluctuations resulting in our interegpexse exceeding interest income would result in
operating losses for us.
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We may experience a decline in the fair value ofr@ssets.

A decline in the fair value of our assetymequire us to recognize an "other-than-temp@iampairment against such assets under GAAP
if we were to determine that, with respect to asgess in unrealized loss positions, we do not aeeability and intent to hold such assets to
maturity or for a period of time sufficient to alldor recovery to the amortized cost of such asskssich a determination were to be made, we
would recognize unrealized losses through earrangswrite down the amortized cost of such assesstew cost basis, based on the fair value
of such assets on the date they are consideregl dther-than-temporarily impaired. Such impairnehdrges reflect nonash losses at the tir
of recognition; subsequent disposition or saleuchsassets could further affect our future lossegams, as they are based on the difference
between the sale price received and adjusted aradrtiost of such assets at the time of sale.

Some of our portfolio investments will be recordatifair value and, as a result, there will be undainty as to the value of these investmer

Some of our portfolio investments are ia trm of positions or securities that are not plpkraded. The fair value of securities and o
investments that are not publicly traded may natdaelily determinable. We value these investmenéstgrly at fair value, as determined in
accordance with GAAP, which include consideratibamobservable inputs. Because such valuationsubjective, the fair value of certain of
our assets may fluctuate over short periods of eimgtour determinations of fair value may differtemglly from the values that would have
been used if a ready market for these securitistesk The value of our common stock could be axblgraffected if our determinations
regarding the fair value of these investments weaikerially higher than the values that we ultimateklize upon their disposal.

Liability relating to environmental matters may inggt the value of properties that we may acquire ndoreclosure of the propertie
underlying our investments.

To the extent we foreclose on propertieh wéspect to which we have extended mortgage Joemsnay be subject to environmental
liabilities arising from such foreclosed propertieder various U.S. federal, state and local lamspwner or operator of real property may
become liable for the costs of removal of certaimdrdous substances released on its property. Tdes®ften impose liability without regard
to whether the owner or operator knew of, or wapoesible for, the release of such hazardous sutesta

The presence of hazardous substances maysaty affect an owner's ability to sell real &star borrow using real estate as collateral. To
the extent that an owner of a property underlying of our debt investments becomes liable for reahoosts, the ability of the owner to make
payments to us may be reduced, which in turn magsely affect the value of the relevant mortgaggetiheld by us and our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

If we foreclose on any properties undedyaur investments, the presence of hazardous sulest@an a property may adversely affect our
ability to sell the property and we may incur sabgial remediation costs, thus harming our findni@dition. The discovery of material
environmental liabilities attached to such progartould have a material adverse effect on oultsestioperations and financial condition and
our ability to make distributions to our stockhalsle

We may invest in triple net leases. Negative mar@ntditions or adverse events affecting tenantsttoe industries in which they operate,
could have an adverse impact on any triple net ke@s which we invest.

We may enter into triple net leases. Ifemer into triple net leases, cash flow from operst depends in part on the ability to lease space
to tenants on economically favorable terms. If wiee

31




Table of Contents

into triple net leases, we could be adversely &by various facts and events over which we Hiavieed or no control, such as:

Lack of demand in areas where our properties aatéal;

. Inability to retain existing tenants and attractvrtenants;
. Oversupply of space and changes in market rertiesd;ra
. Our tenants' creditworthiness and ability to payt,reshich may be affected by their operations,dheent economic situatic

and competition within their industries from otlogrerators;

. Defaults by and bankruptcies of tenants, failureeoints to pay rent on a timely basis, or faibfreenants to comply with their
contractual obligations; and

. Economic or physical decline of the areas wheretbperties are locate

At any time, any tenant may experiencewrdorn in its business that may weaken its opegatasults or overall financial condition. As a
result, a tenant may delay lease commencementpfaibke rental payments when due, decline to edddirase upon its expiration, become
insolvent or declare bankruptcy. Any tenant bantaypr insolvency, leasing delay or failure to ma&etal payments when due could result in
the termination of the tenant's lease and matiersaes to us.

If tenants do not renew their leases ag éx@ire, we may not be able to rent or sell thepprties. Furthermore, leases that are renewed,
and some new leases for properties that are redeasay have terms that are less economically éoleithan expiring lease terms, or may
require us to incur significant costs, such asvations, tenant improvements or lease transactistscNegative market conditions may cause
us to sell vacant properties for less than thaityazg value, which could result in impairments.\Aof these events could adversely affect cash
flow from operations and our ability to make distriions to shareholders and service indebtednesigrificant portion of the costs of owning
property, such as real estate taxes, insurancenaimtenance, are not necessarily reduced whenegtaunces cause a decrease in rental
revenue from the properties. In a weakened findigoiadition, tenants may not be able to pay thestscof ownership and we may be unab
recover these operating expenses from them.

Further, the occurrence of a tenant bartkyupr insolvency could diminish the income we ieedrom the tenant's lease or leases. In
addition, a bankruptcy court might authorize theatg to terminate its leases with us. If that hagpeur claim against the bankrupt tenant for
unpaid future rent would be subject to statutamittations that most likely would be substantiatigd than the remaining rent we are owed
under the leases. In addition, any claim we haveifipaid past rent, if any, may not be paid in.fAl a result, tenant bankruptcies may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operation

The recent actions of the U.S. government for therpose of stabilizing the financial markets may aghgely affect our business.

The U.S. Government, through the FederakeRe, the U.S. Treasury, the SEC, the Federal iHgégiministration, the FDIC, and other
governmental and regulatory bodies have takeneocamsidering taking various actions to addressitiaacial crisis. For example, on July 21,
2010 President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Fvdak Street Reform and Consumer Protection Aa (fhoddFrank Act"). Many aspec
of the Dodd-Frank Act are subject to rulemaking asititake effect over several years, making ifidiflt to anticipate the overall financial
impact on us and, more generally, the financialises and mortgage industries. Additionally, wergatrpredict whether there will be
additional proposed laws or reforms that would etftes, whether or when such changes may be addpiedsuch changes may be interpreted
and enforced or how such changes may affect useMenythe costs of complying with any additionaldeor regulations could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressof operations.
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The programs implemented by the U.S. gawemt may also involve, among other things, the fication of mortgage loans to reduce
principal amount of the loans or the rate of indepyable on the loans, or to extend the payneemtst of the loans. For example, the Helping
Families Save Their Homes Act of 2009, which waacted on May 20, 2009, provides a safe harbordivicers entering into "qualified loss
mitigation plans” with respect to residential maggs originated before the act was enacted. Acglyiduty to any investor or other party to
maximize the net present value of any mortgagegbeiadified will be construed to apply to all inveist and other parties and will be deemed
satisfied when the following criteria are met: §ajlefault on the payment of the mortgage has oeduis imminent, or is reasonably
foreseeable, (b) the mortgagor occupies the prpgerturing the mortgage as his or her principatiesse and (c) the servicer reasonably
determined that the application of such qualifiessImitigation plan will likely provide an anticiigal recovery on the outstanding principal
mortgage debt that will exceed the anticipatedvenpthrough foreclosure. Any servicer that is dedrto be acting in the best interests of all
investors and parties is relieved of liability toygparty owed a duty as discussed above and shidiensubject to any injunction, stay or other
equitable relief to such party based solely upenittiplementation by the servicer of a qualifiedslagtigation plan. The act further provides
that any person, including a trustee, issuer aad tiginator, shall not be liable for monetary dges or subject to an injunction, stay or other
equitable relief based solely upon that persoroperation with a servicer in implementing a quatifioss mitigation program that meets the
criteria set forth above. By protecting servicemf such liabilities, this safe harbor may encoarlgn modifications and reduce the likelih
that investors in securitizations will be paid otinaely basis or will be paid in full.

Loan modifications are more likely to beedsvhen borrowers are less able to refinance btret homes due to market conditions, and
when the potential recovery from a foreclosureeuced due to lower property values. A signifiaannber of loan modifications could result
in a significant reduction in cash flows to thedwis of the mortgage securities on an ongoing b@kise loan modification programs, as well
as future legislative or regulatory actions, inghgdamendments to the bankruptcy laws, that réisulie modification of outstanding mortgage
loans may adversely affect the value of, and the'ms on, the target assets in which we intendvest.

In addition to the foregoing, the U.S. Cargg and/or various states and local legislatussenact additional legislation or regulatory
action designed to address the current econonsis @i for other purposes that could have a matadizerse effect on our ability to execute
business strategies. To the extent the marketmimte®spond favorably to these initiatives or tdeynot function as intended, they may not
have a positive impact on our business.

Investments outside the United States that are demated in foreign currencies subject us to foreigmirrency risks, which may adverse
affect our distributions and our REIT status.

Our investments outside the United Statwdhinated in foreign currencies subject to foreigmency risk due to potential fluctuations
exchange rates between foreign currencies and .tBeddllar. As a result, changes in exchange aftasy such foreign currency to U.S.
dollars may affect our income and distributions amay/ also affect the book value of our assets hadmount of shareholders' equity.

Changes in foreign currency exchange nased to value a REIT's foreign assets may be cereidchanges in the value of the REIT's
assets. These changes may adversely affect ous staia REIT. Further, bank accounts in foreignetuwy which are not considered cash or
cash equivalents may adversely affect our statasRESIT.
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Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure
Certain provisions of Maryland law could inhibit dmnges in control.

Certain provisions of the Maryland Gen&atporation Law (the "MGCL") may have the effectdefterring a third party from making a
proposal to acquire us or of impeding a chang®irirol under circumstances that otherwise couldigemthe holders of our common stock
with the opportunity to realize a premium over then-prevailing market price of our common stocle ¥e subject to the "business
combination” provisions of the MGCL that, subjeziimitations, prohibit certain business combinasigincluding a merger, consolidation,
share exchange, or, in circumstances specifigteistatute, an asset transfer or issuance or sédation of equity securities) between us and
an "interested stockholder” (defined generallyras@erson who beneficially owns 10% or more of then outstanding voting capital stock or
an affiliate or associate of ours who, at any timithin the two-year period prior to the date in gtien, was the beneficial owner of 10% or
more of our then outstanding voting capital stamkan affiliate thereof for five years after the shoecent date on which the stockholder
becomes an interested stockholder. After the fiegryrohibition, any business combination betweeand an interested stockholder generally
must be recommended by our board of directors pptbaed by the affirmative vote of at least (1) 8684he votes entitled to be cast by
holders of outstanding shares of our voting cagitatk and (2) two-thirds of the votes entitledéocast by holders of voting capital stock of
the corporation other than shares held by theasted stockholder with whom or with whose affilitte business combination is to be effected
or held by an affiliate or associate of the intezdsstockholder. These super-majority vote requirgisdo not apply if our common
stockholders receive a minimum price, as definedeuMaryland law, for their shares in the form aglk or other consideration in the same
form as previously paid by the interested stockéofdr its shares. These provisions of the MGClndbapply, however, to business
combinations that are approved or exempted by edbafadirectors prior to the time that the inteegksstockholder becomes an interested
stockholder. Pursuant to the statute, our boadirettors has by resolution exempted business amatibihs between us and any other person,
provided that such business combination is firgraped by our board of directors (including a migyoof our directors who are not affiliates
associates of such person).

The "control share" provisions of the MG@iovide that "control shares" of a Maryland corpiora (defined as shares which, when
aggregated with other shares controlled by thekktder (except solely by virtue of a revocablexyo entitle the stockholder to exercise one
of three increasing ranges of voting power in éhgctirectors) acquired in a "control share acquist (defined as the direct or indirect
acquisition of ownership or control of "control sésl') have no voting rights except to the exteqtraped by our stockholders by the
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all thetes entitled to be cast on the matter, exclugistgs entitled to be cast by the acquirer of
control shares, our officers and our personnel afgoalso our directors. Our bylaws contain a promigxempting from the control share
acquisition statute any and all acquisitions by pesson of shares of our stock. There can be noasse that this provision will not be
amended or eliminated at any time in the future.

The "unsolicited takeover" provisions o& tiGCL permit our board of directors, without stbolder approval and regardless of what is
currently provided in our charter or bylaws, to lempent takeover defenses, some of which (for exapgalassified board) we do not yet ha
These provisions may have the effect of inhibitndpird party from making an acquisition proposalds or of delaying, deferring or
preventing a change in control of us under theuoirstances that otherwise could provide the holdeshares of common stock with the
opportunity to realize a premium over the thenentrmarket price.
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Our authorized but unissued shares of common aneéferred stock may prevent a change in our control.

Our charter authorizes us to issue additianthorized but unissued shares of common oepeaf stock. In addition, our board of
directors may, without stockholder approval, ameundcharter to increase the aggregate number dfltanes of stock or the number of shares
of stock of any class or series that we have aityhiorissue and classify or reclassify any unisksieares of common or preferred stock and set
the preferences, rights and other terms of thesified or reclassified shares. As a result, ourtha@d directors may establish a series of shares
of common or preferred stock that could delay @vpnt a transaction or a change in control thahtrifgzolve a premium price for our shares
of common stock or otherwise be in the best intesesur stockholders.

Maintenance of our exemption from registration undéhe 1940 Act imposes significant limits on our eqtions.

We intend to conduct our operations so tiegther we nor any of our subsidiaries are reqlioeregister as an investment company under
the 1940 Act. Because we are a holding companyihiatonduct its businesses primarily through wiawned subsidiaries, the securities
issued by these subsidiaries that are exceptedtfrerdefinition of "investment company" under Sewt8(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the 1940
Act, together with any other investment securiti@smay own, may not have a combined value in exae46% of the value of our adjusted
total assets on an unconsolidated basis. Thisnageit limits the types of businesses in which veg engage through our subsidiaries. In
addition, the assets we and our subsidiaries mawircare limited by the provisions of the 1940 Antl the rules and regulations promulgated
under the 1940 Act, which may adversely affectpenformance.

If the value of securities issued by oursdiaries that are excepted from the definitiofiimfestment company” by Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)
(7) of the 1940 Act, together with any other invesht securities we own, exceeds 40% of our adjustatlassets on an unconsolidated basis,
or if one or more of such subsidiaries fail to ntaim an exception or exemption from the 1940 Aa,cmuld, among other things, be required
either (a) to substantially change the manner iitlvive conduct our operations to avoid being resfuto register as an investment compar
(b) to register as an investment company undet 84 Act, either of which could have an adverseatfbn us and the market price of our
securities. If we were required to register asraestment company under the 1940 Act, we would inecsubject to substantial regulation with
respect to our capital structure (including ouligbio use leverage), management, operationss#éetions with affiliated persons (as defined in
the 1940 Act), portfolio composition, including teéstions with respect to diversification and intlysconcentration, and other matters.

There can be no assurance that the lawsegndiations governing the 1940 Act status of REilfisluding the Division of Investment
Management of the SEC providing more specific ffiedént guidance regarding these exemptions, wilahange in a manner that adversely
affects our operations. If we or our subsidiarggstb maintain an exception or exemption from 1840 Act, we could, among other things, be
required either to (a) change the manner in whielcanduct our operations to avoid being requiresgister as an investment company,

(b) effect sales of our assets in a manner thatt atime when, we would not otherwise chooseoted] or (c) register as an investment
company, any of which could negatively affect tiadue of our common stock, the sustainability of business model, and our ability to make
distributions which could have an adverse effecbonbusiness and the market price for our sharesmamon stock.
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Rapid changes in the values of our other real es-related investments may make it more difficult fos to maintain our qualification as a
REIT or exemption from the 1940 Ac

If the market value or income potentiated| estate-related investments declines as a i&sncreased interest rates, prepayment rates ot
other factors, we may need to increase our reateestvestments and income and/or liquidate ourqualifying assets in order to maintain our
REIT qualification or exemption from the 1940 Alftthe decline in real estate asset values andfmme occurs quickly, this may be
especially difficult to accomplish. This difficultjay be exacerbated by the illiquid nature of amy-gualifying assets that we may own. We
may have to make investment decisions that we wikerwould not make absent the REIT and 1940 Ansitterations.

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders toka action against our directors and officers arenlited, which could limit your recourse in
the event of actions not in your best interests.

Under Maryland law generally, a directacsions will be upheld if he or she performs hider duties in good faith, in a manner he or she
reasonably believes to be in our best interestsaatidthe care that an ordinarily prudent persoa like position would use under similar
circumstances. In addition, our charter limits libbility of our directors and officers to us andratockholders for money damages, except for
liability resulting from:

. actual receipt of an improper benefit or profiniioney, property or services;

. active and deliberate dishonesty by the directafficer that was established by a final judgmenbaing material to the cause
of action adjudicated.

Our charter authorizes us to indemnify divectors and officers for actions taken by therthizse capacities to the maximum extent
permitted by Maryland law. Our bylaws require usnmemnify each director or officer, to the maximentent permitted by Maryland law, in
the defense of any proceeding to which he or sheaide, or threatened to be made, a party by rezdas or her service to us. In addition, we
may be obligated to fund the defense costs inclyenur directors and officers. As a result, we andstockholders may have more limited
rights against our directors and officers than maherwise exist absent the current provisionsuncharter and bylaws or that might exist
with other companies.

Our charter contains provisions that make removdlaur directors difficult, which could make it diftult for our stockholders to effect
changes to our management.

Our charter provides that a director maly dwe removed for cause upon the affirmative vdtealders of two-thirds of the votes entitled
to be cast in the election of directors. Vacanuoiey be filled only by a majority of the remaininigettors in office, even if less than a quorum.
These requirements make it more difficult to chaagemanagement by removing and replacing dire@ontsmay prevent a change in control
of our company that is in the best interests ofstackholders.

Ownership limitations may restrict change of contror business combination opportunities in which oatockholders might receive a
premium for their shares

In order for us to qualify as a REIT, nomathan 50% in value of our outstanding capitatistmay be owned, directly or indirectly, by
five or fewer individuals during the last half afyacalendar year. "Individuals" for this purposelirde natural persons, private foundations,
some employee benefit plans and trusts, and soaré@attie trusts. To preserve our REIT qualificationr charter generally prohibits any
person from directly or indirectly owning more th@u8% in value or in number of shares, whichevendse restrictive, of the outstanding
shares of our capital stock or more than 9.8% lnevar in number of shares, whichever is more ictste, of the outstanding shares of our
common stock. This ownership limitation could h#ive effect of discouraging a takeover or other
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transaction in which holders of our common stoctmieceive a premium for their shares over tha girevailing market price or which
holders might believe to be otherwise in their betgrests.

Risks Related to Our Taxation as a REIT

If we do not qualify as a REIT or fail to remain cplified as a REIT, we will be subject to tax as egular corporation and could face
substantial tax liability, which would reduce then@ount of cash available for distribution to our st&holders.

We intend to operate in a manner thatalitiw us to qualify as a REIT for federal incomg parposes. We have not requested nor
obtained a ruling from the Internal Revenue Ser{tice "IRS") as to our REIT qualification. Our qgifightion as a REIT will depend on our
satisfaction of certain asset, income, organizatiatistribution, stockholder ownership and othegyuirements on a continuing basis. Our
ability to satisfy the asset tests depends uporaonalysis of the characterization and fair valuesun assets, some of which are not susceptible
to a precise determination, and for which we wilt obtain independent appraisals. Our compliantke thie REIT income and quarterly asset
requirements also depends upon our ability to ssfaly manage the composition of our income ars#sson an ongoing basis. Moreover,
proper classification of an instrument as debtquity for federal income tax purposes may be ua@eih some circumstances, which could
affect the application of the REIT qualificatiorgterements as described below. Accordingly, tharelme no assurance that the IRS will not
contend that our interests in subsidiaries or augtes of other issuers will not cause a violataf the REIT requirements.

If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT amy taxable year, we would be subject to fedei@rime tax, including any applicable alternative
minimum tax, on our taxable income at regular caaprates, and dividends paid to our stockholdensd not be deductible by us in
computing our taxable income. Any resulting corpetax liability could be substantial and wouldued the amount of cash available for
distribution to our stockholders, which in turn bave an adverse impact on the value of our comsback. Unless we were entitled to relief
under certain Code provisions, we also would bgudifified from taxation as a REIT for the four thlayears following the year in which we
failed to qualify as a REIT.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates available for some dividen

The maximum tax rate applicable to inconeenf "qualified dividends" payable to domestic stozklers that are individuals, trusts and
estates has been reduced by legislation to 15%ghrthe end of 2012. Dividends payable by REITsyéher, generally are not eligible for the
reduced rates. Although this legislation does dekesely affect the taxation of REITs or dividemdgable by REITs, the more favorable rates
applicable to regular corporate qualified dividerdsld cause investors who are individuals, tragt$ estates to perceive investments in Rl
to be relatively less attractive than investmentthe stocks of noREIT corporations that pay dividends, which coulldersely affect the valt
of the stock of REITSs, including our common stock.

We may in the future choose to pay dividends in @wn stock, in which case you may be required ty pacome taxes in excess of the cash
dividends you receive.

We may in the future distribute taxableidé@nds that are payable in cash and shares ofomumon stock at the election of each
stockholder. Under IRS Revenue Procedure 201018 Q0% of any such taxable dividend with respec taxable year ending on or before
December 31, 2011 could be payable in our stockaBle stockholders receiving such dividends wilkéguired to include the full amount of
the dividend as ordinary income to the extent afaurent and accumulated earnings and profitéefderal income tax purposes. As a result,
stockholders may be required to pay income taxés mgspect to such dividends in excess of the dastiends received. If a U.S.
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stockholder sells the stock that it receives awidehd in order to pay this tax, the sales prosaedy be less than the amount included in
income with respect to the dividend, dependingh@nrharket price of our stock at the time of the seurthermore, with respect to certain non-
U.S. stockholders, we may be required to withhol8.Wax with respect to such dividends, includimgdaspect of all or a portion of such
dividend that is payable in stock. In additionaigignificant number of our stockholders determinsell shares of our common stock in ordt
pay taxes owed on dividends, it may put downwag$gure on the trading price of our common stock.

Further, while Revenue Procedure 2010-Jieponly to taxable dividends payable in casktock with respect to a taxable year ending
on or before December 31, 2011, it is unclear wéredimd to what extent we will be able to pay tagatiVidends in cash and stock in later
years. Moreover, various aspects of such a taxadb/stock dividend are uncertain and have ndbgemn addressed by the IRS. No assur
can be given that the IRS will not impose additloeguirements in the future with respect to taraddsh/stock dividends, including on a
retroactive basis, or assert that the requirenfentsuch taxable cash/stock dividends have not basn

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affeour ability to execute our business pls

We generally must distribute annually aiskE90% of our taxable income, subject to certdjnpsiments and excluding any net capital g
in order for federal corporate income tax not tplgpo earnings that we distribute. To the extéiat tve satisfy this distribution requirement,
but distribute less than 100% of our taxable incowewill be subject to federal corporate incomeda our undistributed taxable income. In
addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductiteise tax if the actual amount that we pay owtuostockholders in a calendar year is less
than a minimum amount specified under federal aaws| We intend to make distributions to our stodtéis to comply with the REIT
requirements of the Code.

From time to time, we may generate taxademe greater than our income for financial rejpgrpurposes prepared in accordance with
GAAP, or differences in timing between the recoignitof taxable income and the actual receipt ohaaay occur. For example, we may be
required to accrue income from mortgage loans, Va8, other types of debt securities or interestieist securities before we receive any
payments of interest or principal on such assetsnValy also acquire distressed debt investmentathaubsequently modified by agreement
with the borrower either directly or pursuant to owolvement in the Legacy Loans Program or oserilar programs recently announced by
the federal government. If the amendments to thstanding debt are "significant modifications" unttee applicable Treasury regulations, the
modified debt may be considered to have been mistuus at a gain in a debt-for-debt exchange thigtborrower, with gain recognized by us
to the extent that the principal amount of the rfiedidebt exceeds our cost of purchasing it poambdification.

We may also be required under the ternisd#btedness that we incur to use cash received ifiterest payments to make principal
payments on that indebtedness, with the effecé@dgnizing income but not having a correspondingarof cash available for distribution
our stockholders.

As a result, we may find it difficult or ppssible to meet distribution requirements from anglinary operations in certain circumstances.
In particular, where we experience differencesririrtg between the recognition of taxable income tredactual receipt of cash, the
requirement to distribute a substantial portiomaf taxable income could cause us to: (i) selltasseadverse market conditions, (ii) borrow on
unfavorable terms, (iii) distribute amounts thatuebotherwise be invested in future acquisitiorapital expenditures or repayment of debt or
(iv) make a taxable distribution of our shares ag pf a distribution in which stockholders mayct® receive shares or (subject to a limit
measured as a percentage of the total distributiasi), in order to comply with REIT requirementise3e alternatives could increase our costs
or reduce our equity. Thus, compliance with
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the REIT requirements may hinder our ability towgrevhich could adversely affect the value of oumeoeon stock.
The stock ownership limit imposed by the Code fdIRs and our charter may restrict our business coimétion opportunities.

In order for us to maintain our qualificatias a REIT under the Code, not more than 50%lurevof our outstanding stock may be owned,
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individusl(as defined in the Code to include certain esjitat any time during the last half of each
taxable year following our first year. Our chartsith certain exceptions, authorizes our boardiafadors to take the actions that are necessary
and desirable to preserve our qualification as BFRBnless exempted by our board of directors, aspn may own more than 9.8% of the
aggregate value of our outstanding capital stock.lidard may grant an exemption in its sole diganesubject to such conditions,
representations and undertakings as it may deterrfiime ownership limits imposed by the tax lawkased upon direct or indirect ownership
by "individuals," but only during the last half aftax year. The ownership limits contained in cuarter key off of the ownership at any time
any "person,"” which term includes entities. Thesaership limitations in our charter are common BIRcharters and are intended to provide
added assurance of compliance with the tax lawireauents, and to minimize administrative burdenswiver, these ownership limits might
also delay or prevent a transaction or a changeiircontrol that might involve a premium price famr common stock or otherwise be in the
best interest of our stockholders.

Even if we remain qualified as a REIT, we may faother tax liabilities that reduce our cash flov

Even if we remain qualified for taxationa&EIT, we may be subject to certain federalgséad local taxes on our income and assets,
including taxes on any undistributed income, taximmome from some activities conducted as a redwdtforeclosure, and state or local
income, property and transfer taxes, such as ngetgecording taxes. In addition, in order to meetREIT qualification requirements, prevent
the recognition of certain types of noash income, or to avert the imposition of a 108%that applies to certain gains derived by a RiEdm
dealer property or inventory, we may hold somewfassets through our TRS or other subsidiary catfmms that will be subject to corporate-
level income tax at regular rates. In additiorwd lend money to a TRS, the TRS may be unabledaalall or a portion of the interest paid to
us, which could result in an even higher corpotate] tax liability. Any of these taxes would dease cash available for distribution to our
stockholders.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us togo otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income mxposes, we must satisfy ongoing tests conceramgng other things, the sources of our
income, the nature and diversification of our asgéie amounts that we distribute to our stockirslded the ownership of our stock. We may
be required to make distributions to stockhold¢disadvantageous times or when we do not havesfteatily available for distribution, and
may be unable to pursue investments that wouldherwise advantageous to us in order to satisftluece-of-income or asset-diversification
requirements for qualifying as a REIT. In additiongcertain cases, the modification of a debt instent could result in the conversion of the
instrument from a qualifying real estate assetwdally or partially non-qualifying asset that mi& contributed to a TRS or disposed of in
order for us to maintain our REIT status. Compl@anath the source-of-income requirements may aisi bur ability to acquire debt
instruments at a discount from their face amouhtisT compliance with the REIT requirements may @iralr ability to make and, in certain
cases, to maintain ownership of, certain attradtivestments.
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Complying with REIT requirements may force us tajliidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we must ensure thaha end of each calendar quarter, at least 758teofalue of our assets consists of cash, cash
items, government securities and qualified REIT estate assets, including certain mortgage loadscartain kinds of MBS. The remainder of
our investment in securities (other than governmsentrrities and qualified real estate assets) gyeannot include more than 10% of the
outstanding voting securities of any one issuanore than 10% of the total value of the outstandiecurities of any one issuer. In addition, in
general, no more than 5% of the value of our agséttier than government securities and qualified estate assets) can consist of the sect
of any one issuer, and no more than 25% of thesvalwur total securities can be represented byrges of one or more TRSs. If we fail to
comply with these requirements at the end of atgnckar quarter, we must correct the failure witBhdays after the end of the calendar
quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief pigions to avoid losing our REIT qualification asdffering adverse tax consequences. As a
result, we may be required to liquidate from ourtfotio otherwise attractive investments. Theseoms could have the effect of reducing our
income and amounts available for distribution to steckholders.

The failure of assets subject to repurchase agreatado qualify as real estate assets could adverséfiect our ability to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into financing arrangemiatisare structured as sale and repurchase agneemesuant to which we would nominally
sell certain of our assets to a counterparty amdiiéaneously enter into an agreement to repurctieese assets at a later date in exchange for &
purchase price. Economically, these agreementinamcings which are secured by the assets soklpuat thereto. We believe that we would
be treated for REIT asset and income test purpmsése owner of the assets that are the subjestyo$uch sale and repurchase agreement
notwithstanding that such agreement may transt@rdeownership of the assets to the counterpantyngthe term of the agreement. It is
possible, however, that the IRS could assert tleadiia not own the assets during the term of the aatl repurchase agreement, in which case
we could fail to qualify as a REIT.

We may be required to report taxable income fortedém investments in excess of the economic inconeeultimately realize from them.

We may acquire debt instruments in the séary market for less than their face amount. Tikeadint at which such debt instruments are
acquired may reflect doubts about their ultimatiéectability rather than current market interesesa The amount of such discount will
nevertheless generally be treated as "market distéar U.S. federal income tax purposes. Accruettkat discount is reported as income
when, and to the extent that, any payment of poeladf the debt instrument is made. Payments ddeesal mortgage loans are ordinarily
made monthly, and consequently accrued market aigcoay have to be included in income each monththe debt instrument were assured
of ultimately being collected in full. If we colletess on the debt instrument than our purchase plus the market discount we had previously
reported as income, we may not be able to bemefit fany offsetting loss deductions. In addition,ma&y acquire distressed debt investments
that are subsequently modified by agreement wightbtirrower. If the amendments to the outstandirg dee "significant modifications" under
applicable Treasury regulations, the modified dely be considered to have been reissued to ugahan a debt-for-debt exchange with the
borrower. In that event, we may be required to gacxe taxable gain to the extent the principal am@d the modified debt exceeds our
adjusted tax basis in the unmodified debt, eveinefvalue of the debt or the payment expectatianwe mot changed.

Moreover, some of the MBS that we acquiey/mave been issued with original issue discourg VWM be required to report such original
issue discount based on a constant yield methodavdhide taxed based on the assumption that aliruprojected payments due on such MBS
will be made. If
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such MBS turns out not to be fully collectible, affsetting loss deduction will become availableyoinl the later year that uncollectability is
provable.

Finally, in the event that any debt instants or MBS acquired by us are delinquent as tadatany principal and interest payments, or in
the event payments with respect to a particulat thsirument are not made when due, we may norethdle required to continue to recognize
the unpaid interest as taxable income as it accdespite doubt as to its ultimate collectabil®ymilarly, we may be required to accrue interest
income with respect to subordinate MBS at its sta#te regardless of whether corresponding casimeats are received or are ultimately
collectible. In each case, while we would in gehalimately have an offsetting loss deduction éalale to us when such interest was
determined to be uncollectible, the utility of tlitduction could depend on our having taxable ireconthat later year or thereafter.

The "taxable mortgage pool" rules may increase tkexes that we or our stockholders may incur, and yramit the manner in which we
effect future securitizations.

Securitizations could result in the creatid taxable mortgage pools for federal incomeparposes. As a REIT, so long as we own 100%
of the equity interests in a taxable mortgage pmelgenerally would not be adversely affected eydharacterization of the securitization as a
taxable mortgage pool. Certain categories of stolcldrs, however, such as foreign stockholderstdédor treaty or other benefits,
stockholders with net operating losses, and cetgairexempt stockholders that are subject to uteelausiness income tax, could be subject to
increased taxes on a portion of their dividend imedrom us that is attributable to the taxable geage pool. In addition, to the extent that our
stock is owned by tax-exempt "disqualified orgatiaes," such as certain government-related ent#trescharitable remainder trusts that are
not subject to tax on unrelated business incomeneaeincur a corporate level tax on a portion afioaome from the taxable mortgage pool.
In that case, we may reduce the amount of ourildigions to any disqualified organization whosecktownership gave rise to the tax.
Moreover, we would be precluded from selling eqintygrests in these securitizations to outsidestos, or selling any debt securities issued
in connection with these securitizations that migdtconsidered to be equity interests for tax pggpoThese limitations may prevent us from
using certain techniques to maximize our returamfsecuritization transactions.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit ourlality to engage in transactions, including certaimethods of securitizing mortgage loans,
which would be treated as sales for federal incotae purposes.

A REIT's net income from prohibited tran$as is subject to a 100% tax. In general, pradibiransactions are sales or other disposi
of property, other than foreclosure property, Imetuding mortgage loans, held primarily for saletstomers in the ordinary course of
business. We might be subject to this tax if weenterdispose of or securitize loans in a manndntla treated as a sale of the loans for fe
income tax purposes. Therefore, in order to avoédprohibited transactions tax, we may choosemehgage in certain sales of loans at the
REIT level, and may limit the structures we utilipe our securitization transactions, even thoughdales or structures might otherwise be
beneficial to us.

Our investments in construction loans will requings to make estimates about the fair value of lamgprovements that may be challenged by
the IRS.

We may invest in construction loans, therast from which will be qualifying income for poses of the REIT income tests, provided
that the loan value of the real property securirggdonstruction loan is equal to or greater tharhighest outstanding principal amount of the
construction loan during any taxable year. For pags of construction loans, the loan value of &a property is the fair value of the land plus
the reasonably estimated cost of the improvemerdgwelopments (other than personal property)wliasecure the loan and that are to be
constructed from the proceeds of
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the loan. There can be no assurance that the IR®Iwot challenge our estimate of the loan valuthefreal property.
The failure of a mezzanine loan to qualify as a tesstate asset could adversely affect our abilgygualify as a REIT.

We may acquire mezzanine loans, for whitghIRS has provided a safe harbor but not rulesib$tantive law. Pursuant to the safe ha
if a mezzanine loan meets certain requirementsjlibe treated by the IRS as a real estate assgiurposes of the REIT asset tests, and
interest derived from the mezzanine loan will Eated as qualifying mortgage interest for purpagéle REIT 75% income test. We may
acquire mezzanine loans that do not meet all oféhairements of this safe harbor. In the evenbwe a mezzanine loan that does not mee
safe harbor, the IRS could challenge such loag&rrent as a real estate asset for purposes BEReasset and income tests and, if such a
challenge were sustained, we could fail to qualsya REIT.

Liquidation of assets may jeopardize our REIT quadation.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply widlguirements regarding our assets and our sourdesahe. If we are compelled to liquidate
our investments to repay obligations to our lendeesmay be unable to comply with these requiremaritimately jeopardizing our
gualification as a REIT, or we may be subject i®8% tax on any resultant gain if we sell assettdhe treated as dealer property or
inventory.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our alify to hedge effectively and may cause us to intax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code substalytiahit our ability to hedge our liabilities. Anincome from a hedging transaction we enter
into to manage risk of interest rate changes vafipect to borrowings made or to be made to acquicarry real estate assets does not
constitute "gross income" for purposes of the 75%58 gross income tests. To the extent that werémtto other types of hedging
transactions, the income from those transactiotikdaly to be treated as non-qualifying income forposes of both of the gross income tests.
As a result of these rules, we intend to limit ase of advantageous hedging techniques or impletnes¢ hedges through a domestic TRS.
This could increase the cost of our hedging a@isibecause our TRS would be subject to tax orsgaiexpose us to greater risks associated
with changes in interest rates than we would otisrwant to bear. In addition, losses in our TREBgenerally not provide any tax benefit,
except for being carried forward against futureatd® income in the TRS.

Qualifying as a REIT involves highly technical ancomplex provisions of the Code.

Quialification as a REIT involves the apation of highly technical and complex Code prowvisidor which only limited judicial and
administrative authorities exist. Even a technarahadvertent violation could jeopardize our REjJalification. Our qualification as a REIT
will depend on our satisfaction of certain assetpime, organizational, distribution, stockholdemevship and other requirements on a
continuing basis. In addition, our ability to stithe requirements to qualify as a REIT dependsairt on the actions of third parties over
which we have no control or only limited influenéegluding in cases where we own an equity inteirean entity that is classified as a
partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
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Item 2. Properties.

The Company's headquarters are locateaeer®vich, Connecticut at 591 West Putnam Avenwsdfioe space leased by the Manager.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Currently, no legal proceedings are pendingeatened or, to our knowledge, contemplateihagas.

Item 4. Reserved.

PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities.
Market Information and Dividends

The Company's common stock has been Imtettie New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") anttasled under the symbol "STWD"
since its initial public offering in August 2009h& following table below sets forth the quarterigthand low prices for our common stock as
reported by the New York Stock Exchange, and divittemade by the Company to holders of the Companysnon stock for each quarter
the years ended December 31, 2010 and Decemb2039,

2010 High Low Dividend
First quarte! $ 19.9¢ $ 17.9¢ $ 0.24(1)
Second quarte $ 19.7C $ 16.4¢ $ 0.252)
Third quartel $ 20.2( $ 1657 $ 0.3%3)
Fourth quarte $ 21.7: $ 19.7: $ 0.4((4)
2009 High Low Dividend
Third quarter (since August 1

2009) $ 20.61 $ 19.06 $ 0.015)
Fourth quarte $ 21.71 $ 18.2¢ $ 0.1((6)

(1)  Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on March 31, 2010 which was jpaid
April 15, 2010.

2) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on June 30, 2010, which was paid
July 15, 2010.

3) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on September 30, 2010, whichpvesd
on October 15, 2010.

(4)  Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on December 31, 2010, which vead p
on January 17, 2011.

(5) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on October 31, 2009, which wad pa
on January 29, 2010.

(6) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on December 30, 2009, which vead p
on January 29, 201

On March 1, 2011, our board of directorslaesd a dividend of $0.42 per share for the pegioded March 31, 2011, which dividend is
payable on April 15, 2011 to common stockholderseobrd as of March 31, 2011.
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On February 28, 2011, the closing salegpoicthe common stock, as reported by the NY SE$28s39 per share.

We intend to make regular quarterly disttins to holders of our common stock and distidouequivalents to holders of restricted stock
units which are settled in shares of common stocg. federal income tax law generally requires thREIT distribute annually at least 90% of
its REIT taxable income, without regard to the deidun for dividends paid and excluding net capifains, and that it pay tax at regular
corporate rates to the extent that it annuallyrithistes less than 100% of its net taxable income.g&herally intend over time to pay quarterly
distributions in an amount equal to our taxableme.

Holders

As of February 28, 2011, there were tenéid of record of the Company's 71,032,404 shdresmmon stock issued and outstanding.
The ten holders of record include Cede & Co., wihiolds shares as nominee for The Depository Trostgany which itself holds shares on
behalf of the beneficial owners of our common stock

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required by this item i$ f@th under Item 12 of this Annual Report on FdtfiK and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Stock Performance Graph

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data shibloé read in conjunction with Item 7—"Managemebfscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations," and our cbhdated financial statements, including the notegéto, included elsewhere herein. All
amounts are in thousands, except share and per data.

For the Period from
August 17, 2009
For the Year Ended (Inception) To
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Operating Data:

Interest incom $ 93,52 $ 6,927
Interest expens (15,789 (2,909
Net interest margi 77,73¢ 5,02
Total operating expens: (30,057 (9,28¢)
Net income (loss 58,84 (2,580
Net income (loss) attributable to Starwood Prop
Trust, Inc. 57,04¢ (3,019)

Net income (loss) per share of common st

Basic 1.1€ (0.0¢)

Diluted 1.14 (0.0¢)
Dividends declared per share of common si 1.2C 0.11
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic 49,138,72 47,575,63

Diluted 50,021,82 47,575,63
Balance Sheet Data
Investments in securitie 397,68 245,89t
Investments in loan 1,425,24. 214,52:
Total asset 2,101,40! 1,108,78
Total financing arrangemer 633,74! 171,39:
Total liabilities 764,17t 212,75:
Total Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Stockholdegliiy 1,327,56! 887,96’
Total Equity $ 1,337,22¢ % 896,03!

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. (togethethviis subsidiaries, the "Company") is a Marylandbooation that commenced operations on
August 17, 2009 upon completion of our initial gakdffering. We are focused on originating, invegtin, and financing and managing
commercial mortgage loans and other commercialegtate debt investments, commercial mortgage-lasteurities ("CMBS"), and other
commercial real estate-related debt investmentadtfition, we also invest in commercial propersigbject to net leases, residential mortgage
loans and residential mortgage-backed securitRBIBS"). We collectively refer to commercial mortgalpans, other commercial real estate
debt investments, CMBS, other commercial real egiated debt investments, commercial propertibgest to net leases, and residential
mortgage loans as our target assets. In additiermake certain investments in RMBS.

Our objective is to provide attractive resfjusted returns to our investors over the longpt@rimarily through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We employ leveragehe extent available, to fund the acquisitiomwof target assets and to increase potential
returns to our
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stockholders. In order to achieve these objectiwesare focusing on asset selection and the relatilue of various sectors within the debt
market to construct a diversified investment pdidfdesigned to produce attractive returns acrogarigty of market conditions and economic
cycles. We are organized as a holding companyctivaducts its business primarily through its varisubsidiaries. We have formed joint
ventures (the "Joint Ventures") with Starwood Héeajiy Fund 1l and Starwood Opportunity Fund Vighllectively the "Starwood Private Real
Estate Funds," in accordance with theirmaestment and allocation agreement with SPT Mamege, LLC (our "Manager"). Each Joint Vent
is owned 75% by us and is consolidated into ousobdated financial statements. As of Decembe2B10, the only assets held by the Joint
Ventures were a net $36.0 million investment in Afeded class A2 CMBS financed through the Term ABseked Securities Loan Facility
("TALF"). A separate asset held in a joint vent(ae$12.5 million investment in a first mortgageAmon, Colorado) was repaid as of
September 30, 2010.

Since the closing of our initial public efing in August 2009, we have focused primarilyopportunities that exist in the U.S. commer
mortgage loan, commercial real estate debt, and €&l RMBS markets. As market conditions change time, we may adjust our strategy
to take advantage of changes in interest ratesi@uik spreads as well as economic and credit tiondi We believe that the diversification of
our portfolio of assets, our expertise among thgetaasset classes, and the flexibility of ourtstyg will position us to generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our stockholders in a varitgssets and market conditions.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT {8 &deral income tax purposes, commencing withrdtial taxable year ended December 31,
2009. We also operate our business in a mannewihatermit us to maintain our exemption from rgigation under the 1940 Act.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, wWe=htered into agreements or consummated transaggpresenting net investments or
commitments to invest approximately $1.6 billiorur@rimary business is originating and acquiringhatercial mortgage related loans and
during the twelve months ended December 31, 20&Gequired and originated commercial mortgage l@atisan original carrying value of
approximately $1.3 billion. We also invested $1&iflion in CMBS, $233.1 million in RMBS and $15.0iltion in other investments. The
Company's investment activity for the twelve-morghsled December 31, 2010 included the followingifiitant items:

. In February, the Company acquired a $502 milliortfpbo of 20 performing commercial mortgage loarsl B notes. The loal
were acquired for approximately $512 million, inditog $2.5 million of accrued interest.

. In May, the Company originated a $59.0 million finsortgage loan on a 38-story office building l@zhin Chicago, lllinois.

. In May and July, the Company acquired for $72.4iamla discounted purchase of a $90.6 million pgstition and an addition
$37.8 million discounted purchase of a $46.0 millgarticipation in a B note secured by four resorthe United Kingdom.

. During the third quarter, $114.7 million of the Cpamy's loans were paid off or matured as planned.

. In August, the Company sold three loans, referateN to the consolidated financial statementsrfore information on th
securitization.

. In October, the Company originated a $42.2 millBnote participation secured by four retail projsrin Pennsylvania and
Ohio.

. In December, the Company acquired at a discourX@B.8 million a $205.0 million pari passu interi@san approximatel

$8.3 billion floating rate senior loan made to ar'\dwide hotel
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operator. The Company financed the investment $4tk5.2 million term loan, refer to Note 6 of thensolidated financial
statements for more information.

. In December, the Company originated a $206.0 milficst mortgage and mezzanine loan secured byl 8drvice hotel:
located across the United States.

The following table summarizes certain mfiation regarding the investments described above:

Weighted
Property Carrying Face % Net Average
Investment Type Value Amount Owned Financing Investment Rating Vintage
Loan 2009 -
Originatic Assortec $ 556,72! $ 561,38 10(%$ 63,08t $ 493,63° N/A 2010
Loan 1999 -
Acquisitic Assorted 868,52( 964,21° 10(% 399,35 469,16t N/A 2007
CMBS— 2001-
AFS Assortec 275,15! 275,26¢ 81%" 171,30¢ 103,85( AA- 2010
RMBS— 2003-
AFS Residentia 122,52! 140,57¢ 10(% — 122,52¢ BB- 2007
Other
Investme Assorted 14,177 13,29¢ 10C(% — 14,177 N/A N/A
$1,837,101 $1,954,74: $633,74¢ $1,203,35!
A Reflects one consolidated joint venture in whiolh @ompany owns 759

Business Objectives and Outlook

Our objective is to provide attractive resfjusted returns to our investors over the longpt@rimarily through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achiimg objective by directly originating and acqu@itarget assets to construct a diversified
investment portfolio designed to produce attractaterns across a variety of market conditions@whomic cycles. We intend to construct a
diversified investment portfolio by focusing on diree core competencies: transaction access,asagsis and selection, and identificatiol
attractive relative values within the real estagbtchnd equity markets.

In the last decade, real estate becamdismgmntly overpriced as values appreciated welldreytheir underlying fundamentals. Followin
dramatic correction in the price of real estaterdkie past several years, including a nearly cotegbutdown of the real estate capital mark
producing a void of debt and equity capital avaiighbfor real estate investing, the real estatpitzd markets have begun what we believe will
be a slow return to a rationally priced and ligoidrketplace. Securitization markets have reappe8atk and non-bank finance companies
have begun to lend again on commercial real estfifeit at more conservative leverage levels artd miore conservative underwriting
parameters and assumptions. Commercial real egthtes, particularly in gateway cities, have betjuimprove as have real estate operating
fundamentals in some sectors and geographic areas.

Since our initial public offering, we cagdized on the dislocation in the credit markets kol of existing capital, investing in over
$1.8 billion of real estate debt at what we beliaxe attractive risk adjusted returns. As the nmard@overy continues and competition from
both traditional and new lending sources increas@éshusiness plan is evolving away from a focushanacquisition of assets from distressed
sellers to that of a commercial real estate fingladorm focused on the direct origination of reatate debt in all parts of the capital structure
in both the U.S. and abroad. More
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specifically, in the months and years ahead, wenihiexploit to exploit this recovery in four prirgaways:

1) Continue to opportunistically acquire distressasiment opportunities from lender/sellers andtgegponsors as they contin
to address the problems associated with the largehang of significantly overleveraged and undeitediped real estate
projects.

2) Provide debt and equity capital to what shouldméareasing supply of moderately overleveragedwardercapitalized rei
estate projects in need of recapitalization as therent loans come due.

3) Opportunistically provide development and expansiapital to new real estate projects in infill lboas.

4) Exploit our origination capacity and the-emergence of the commercial real estate securitizatarkets to generate gain on
income at our taxable REIT subsidiaries throughattigination and sale via securitization of modehlateveraged commercial
real estate first mortgage loans.

There can be no assurance that the recovery witirage or that we will be able to find appropriateestment opportunities.
Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared aortance with GAAP, which requires the use of estér and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities asefitite of the financial statements and the repentealints of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. We believe that all of the demis and assessments upon which our financial stattsrare based were reasonable at the time
made, based upon information available to us attitme. In accordance with SEC guidance, the follmndiscussion described the accounting
policies that apply to our operations that we waito be most critical to an investor's understagdif our financial results and condition and
require complex management judgment and the usstiohates. This summary should be read in conjonetith a more complete discussion
of our accounting policies included in Note 2 te ttonsolidated financial statements in this AnfiReggbort on Form 10-K.

Classification of Investment Securities

Our MBS investments consist primarily ofrcaercial real estate debt instruments, CMBS, andBRNhat we classify as available-for-
sale. Investments classified as available-for-aedecarried at their fair value, with changes invalue recorded through accumulated other
comprehensive income, a component of stockholdgtsty, rather than through earnings. We do nat laoly of our investment securities for
trading purposes.

When the estimated fair value of a secusityess than amortized cost, we consider whetteretis an other-than-temporary impairment
("OTTI") in the value of the security. An impairmdas deemed an OTTI if (i) we intend to sell thewty, (ii) it is more likely than not that we
will be required to sell the security before reaiovg our cost basis, or (iii) we do not expecteoaver our cost basis even if we do not inter
sell the security or believe it is more likely thaot that we will be required to sell the secubigfore recovering our cost basis. If the
impairment is deemed to be an OTTI, the resultogpanting treatment depends on the factors cauba@TTI. If the OTTI has resulted from
(i) our intention to sell the security or (ii) opdgment that it is more likely than not that wdle required to sell the security before
recovering our cost basis, an impairment lossdeggrized in current earnings equal to the diffeednetween our amortized cost basis and fair
value. Whereas, if the OTTI has resulted from amatusion that we will not recover our cost basisreif we do not intend to sell the security
or believe it is more likely than not that we violk required to sell
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the security before recovering our cost basiscthdit loss portion of the impairment is recordeairrent earnings and the portion of the loss
related to other factors, such as changes in siteages, continues to be recognized in accumulzttesl comprehensive income. Determining
whether there is an OTTI may require managemeexéocise significant judgment and make signifiesgumptions, including, but not limit
to, estimated cash flows, estimated prepaymerds,desumptions, and assumptions regarding chamggsifiest rates. As a result, actual
impairment losses could differ from reported amesuBtuch judgments and assumptions are based upantzer of factors, including (i) credit
of the issuer or the borrower, (ii) credit ratingtloe security, (iii) key terms of the securityw)(performance of the loan or underlying loans,
including debt service coverage and loan-to-vaai®s, (v) the value of the collateral for the laarunderlying loans, (vi) the effect of local,
industry, and broader economic factors, and (ki) historical and anticipated trends in default lass severities for similar securities.

Loans Helefor-Investment

Loans are classified as held-for-investnised upon management's intent and ability to th@ldoans for the foreseeable future. Loans
held-for-investment are stated at the principal am@utstanding, net of deferred loan fees andscéstierest income is recognized using the
effective interest method. Net deferred loan feeb@rigination and acquisition costs are recognirddterest income over the loan term as
yield adjustment. Loans that we have a plan toadlfjuidate in the near term are held at the loofecost or fair value

Loan Impairmen

We evaluate each loan classified as haldrafieestment for impairment on a periodic basisp&inment occurs when it is deemed probable
that we will not be able to collect all amounts daeording to the contractual terms of the loa. Ilfan is considered to be impaired, we re
an allowance to reduce the carrying value of tlam lim the present value of expected future castsfiliscounted at the loan's contractual
effective rate or the fair value of the collateratepayment is expected solely from the colldtera

The Company's loans are typically colldizea by real estate. As a result, the Companyleetyuevaluates the extent and impact of any
credit deterioration associated with the perfornesaued/or value of the underlying collateral proped well as the financial and operating
capability of the borrower/sponsor on a loan bynlbasis. Specifically, a property's operating rssaihd any cash reserves are analyzed and
used to assess (i) whether cash from operatiorsufficient to cover the debt service requirementsently and into the future, (ii) the ability
of the borrower to refinance the loan, and/or {hig property's liquidation value. The Company @&ealuates the financial wherewithal of any
loan guarantors as well as the borrower's compgtenmanaging and operating the properties. Intamdithe Company considers the overall
economic environment, real estate sector, and gebgr sub-market in which the borrower operateshSmpairment analyses are completed
and reviewed by asset management and finance perisevho utilize various data sources, includingpériodic financial data such as prope
occupancy, tenant profile, rental rates, operagxygenses, the borrower's exit plan, and capit&izatnd discount rates, (ii) site inspections,
and (iii) current credit spreads and discussiorh wmiarket participants.

No provision for losses on specific loarasvestablished as of December 31, 2010 or 2008:es was no indication of credit deteriorat
or other factors which would indicate a reserve nesessary. Significant judgment is required wheduating loans for impairment, therefo
actual results over time could be materially difer
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Valuation of Financial Instruments

GAAP establishes a hierarchy of valuatiechhiques based on the observability of inputizetllin measuring financial instruments at
values. GAAP establishes market based or obserugngs as the preferred source of values, follolwedaluation models using management
assumptions in the absence of market inputs. Tiee tlevels of the hierarchy under GAAP are desdrtedow:

Level —Quoted prices in active markets for identical &see liabilities.

Level I—Prices are determined using other significant olzd#le inputs. Observable inputs are inputs thagrattarket participants wot
use in pricing a security. These may include quptécks for similar securities, interest ratesppsanent speeds, credit risk and others.

Level lll—Prices are determined using significant unobséeviiputs. In situations where quoted prices orokable inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment at the endhef period) unobservable inputs may be used.

Unobservable inputs reflect our own assimngtabout the factors that market participantsidioge in pricing an asset or liability, and
would be based on the best information available.

Any changes to the valuation methodologyls reviewed by management to ensure the chargeppropriate. The methods we use
produce a fair value calculation that may not libdative of net realizable value or reflective ofiufre fair values. Furthermore, while we
anticipate that our valuation methods are apprtpdad consistent with other market participatis,use of different methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffiagncial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date. We
use inputs that are current as of the measurenag¢at @hich may include periods of market disloaatiduring which price transparency may
reduced.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activit

As required by GAAP, the Company recordisiativatives on the balance sheet at fair vallee dccounting for changes in the fair value
of derivatives depends on the intended use of ¢hiwative, whether the Company has elected to desiga derivative in a hedging relations
and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedglationship has satisfied the criteria necessappply hedge accounting. Derivatives
designated and qualifying as a hedge of the expdsuthanges in the fair value of an asset, lighitir firm commitment attributable to a
particular risk, such as interest rate risk, amesaered fair value hedges. Derivatives designatetqualifying as a hedge of the exposure to
variability in expected future cash flows, or otlyges of forecasted transactions, are considexskl ffow hedges. Derivatives may also be
designated as hedges of the foreign currency expadla net investment in a foreign operation. Hedgcounting generally provides for the
matching of the timing of gain or loss recognitmmthe hedging instrument with the recognitionhef thanges in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the dpedirisk in a fair value hedge or the earningsceféé the hedged forecasted transactions in a cast
flow hedge. We may enter into derivative contralett are intended to economically hedge certaitsafsk, even though hedge accounting
does not apply or we do not elect to apply hedgewmating. The designation of derivative contrastheadges, the measurement of their
effectiveness, and the estimate of the fair vafu@e contracts all may involve significant judgneehby our management, and changes to those
judgments could significantly impact our reportedults of operation:

Income Taxe

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT uth@e€Code for federal income tax purposes. We gdlgenust distribute annually at least 90%
of our taxable income, subject to certain adjustisien
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and excluding any net capital gain, in order fafefi@l corporate income tax not to apply to our isgsithat we distribute. To the extent that we
satisfy this distribution requirement, but distitibless than 100% of our taxable income, we wilsbleject to federal corporate income tax on
our undistributed taxable income. Our qualificatemna REIT also depends on our ability to meebuarbther requirements imposed by the
Code, which relate to organizational structureediity of stock ownership and certain restrictiaith regard to owned assets and categories of
income. Many of the REIT requirements are highthteécal and complex, and if we fail to qualify aREIT we would be subject to United
States federal corporate income tax on our taxabteme.

The Company formed several taxable REITS®ifries ("TRS") in 2010 to reduce the impactta prohibited transaction tax and to avoid
penalty for the holding of assets not qualifyingeal estate assets for purposes of the REIT tesstst Any income associated with a TRS is
fully taxable because a TRS is subject to fedardlsiate income taxes as a domestic C corporatisacbupon its taxable income.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There have been no accounting pronouncentleat have been issued but not yet adopted thaelieve will have a significant impact on
our consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations
December 31, 201

The period from Inception to December 32 represented approximately four months of operatin which the Company had begun
investing the proceeds from its initial public offey. The activity for the year ended DecemberZi1,0 reflects an entire year of operations in
which the Company invested substantially all of pheceeds from its initial public offering and exésd a supplemental equity offering.
Accordingly, since the two periods are not complarad detailed analysis comparing the period fromgést 17, 2009 (“Inception") to
December 31, 2009 to the year ended December 30,i2ot provided.

Net income attributable to Starwood Prop@&rust, Inc. for the twelve months ended Decen3ier2010 was approximately $57.0 milli
or $1.16 per weighted average share of basic comstomk ($1.14 diluted). We earned investment incofregoproximately $22.0 million from
our MBS portfolio and $71.5 million from our loawnfolio, for total investment income of approxirat $93.5 million. Of the $93.5 million
in investment income, approximately $79.9 milli@fated to interest and approximately $13.6 millielated to the net accretion of fees and
discounts. We incurred approximately $15.8 millinonnterest expense, which was comprised of $12lfomrelated to our secured financin
$1.8 million related to hedges and $0.6 millionthoe amortization of deferred financing costs ardrest expense related to our securitization
financing. This resulted in net investment incorhapproximately $77.7 million, of which approximbt&1.8 million was attributable to non-
controlling interests. In addition to net investrhzrtome, we had realized gains on the sale ofstments of $11.6 million, which consisted
primarily of $9.3 million from the sale of asset$d a securitization trust, approximately $2.1 imillfrom the sale of RMBS securities, and
approximately $0.2 million from the sale of othevéstments. We also earned approximately $1.3anihf interest income from cash
balances.

For the twelve months ended December 310 26ur noninvestment expenses totaled $30.1 million and sbediof $14.1 million of bas
management fees payable to our Manager, $7.4 mitlicmon-cash stock-based expense related to tbetiaation of grants issued to our
Manager upon completion of our initial public offeg and supplemental equity offering, $1.2 milliwihaccrued incentive fee and $7.3 million
of other general and administrative expenses. Tiher general and administrative expenses inclusigrémce, professional fees, officer
compensation costs, and general overhead costs.
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December 31, 200

Principal operations began on August 1D92@s of December 31, 2009, the Company had iedespproximately $284 million of
proceeds from our initial public offering.

Our net loss for the period August 17, 2(@geption) to December 31, 2009 was approxim&balP million or $0.06 per weighted
average share of common stock (basic and dilu#d)earned investment income of approximately $6l8om and incurred approximately
$1.9 million in interest expense, for net investinanome of approximately $5.0 million, of whichm@pximately $0.4 million was not
attributable to common stockholders. In additioe,earned approximately $1.7 million in interesbime on cash balances.

For the period, our non-investment expetnsided $9.3 million and consisted of $5.1 milliohbase management fees payable to our
Manager, $2.4 million of non-cash stock-based espenlated to the amortization of grants issuesltdVanager upon completion of our
initial public offering, and $1.8 million of othgreneral and administrative expenses. The othergleswed administrative expense includes
insurance, professional fees, compensation castisg@neral overhead costs. There was no incerga/enturred.

Cash Flows
December 31, 201

Cash and cash equivalents were $226.9omi#ls of December 31, 2010, down from $645.1 milés of December 31, 2009. The
$418.2 million decrease was primarily attributafolénvestment activity totaling approximately $biflion for the year. Financing activities
provided net cash of nearly $847.1 million and afieg activities decreased cash by approximate®;Billion for fiscal year 2010.

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2010 was approxima@8ly $nillion, which includes
$143.4 million for the purchase of loans held-fates All other operating activities increased chgl$43.8 million, including approximately
$1.8 million of operating income attributable tonacontrolling interests. The net income for theipetmvas approximately $58.8 million. Non-
cash charges for stock-based compensation, amaotizaf deferred loan fees and discounts, amortinatf deferred financing costs and
amortization of net discount on MBS decreased bgs5.4 million. The net change in operating asaattliabilities increased cash flows by
$0.6 million and consisted of a $8.8 million incsean accounts payable and accrued expensesdretaty payable and other liabilities and a
decrease in interest receivables and other assg8&2million. The net change in unrealized losscarrency hedges and interest rate swap
remeasurement gain on foreign currency denomireeets of $1.4 million was offset by realized gainghe sale of loans of $9.3 million,
realized gains on the sale of available-for-sateigges of $2.1 million and realized gains on Hade of other investments of $0.3 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for year ended December 31, 2010 totaled $1.2dr@ related primarily to the acquisition of
new loans held-for-investment of $1.2 billion, newrtgage-backed securities of $204.5 million, otheestments of $15.0 million and
purchased interest of $3.0 million offset by prate&om sales of MBS of $58.3 million, principapeyyments on loans and MBS of
$13.6 million and $38.8 million, respectively, loaraturities of $114.7 million, proceeds from th&esaf loans of $38.2 million and proceeds
from the sales of other investments of $2.0 million

Net cash provided by financing activitiegidg 2010 related primarily to the approximateR79.0 million of net proceeds from the
drawdown of the first repurchase agreement withl¥Wedrgo Bank, National Association ("Wells Farg&$8.5 million from the second
repurchase agreement with Wells Fargo, $125.2anilliom the credit agreement with Bank of Amerida. ("the BAML Facility"),
$5.0 million from a repurchase agreement with Ga@ldrBachs Mortgage Company, and
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$54.1 million of net proceeds from the loans sol@ securitization trust. In addition, proceedsrfraur supplemental common stock offering
$453.8 million were offset by the payment of divids to our shareholders of $44.3 million, repaymemt borrowings of $69.4 million,
payment of underwriting and offering costs of $1®illion, payment of $4.5 million in deferred finaing costs, and net distributions to non-
controlling interests of $1.3 million.

December 31, 200

Cash and cash equivalents were $645.1omifls of December 31, 2009 and were provided 139913 million in net proceeds from
financing activities and $5.6 million in cash flovem operating activities, offset by $460.3 miflim investing activities during the period
from Inception to December 31, 2009.

Net cash provided by financing activitiegidg the period related primarily to approximat&B21.1 million of net proceeds from our
initial public offering and concurrent private pdaent. In addition, net non-recourse borrowingseuride TALF program were approximately
$171.1 million and net contributions from joint ware partners were approximately $7.6 million. Clistvs used in investing activities
included $215.4 million used to originate and acgjioans and $245.6 million to acquire CMBS.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesthe period from Inception to December 31, 20@8 approximately $5.6 million, including
approximately $437 of operating income attributableaoncontrolling interests. The net loss for peeiod was $3.0 million. Non-cash charges
for stockbased compensation, amortization of deferred leas &nd discounts, amortization of deferred fimancosts, and amortization of 1
discount on CMBS contributed $1.8 million. The ob&nge in operating assets and liabilities contet$6.4 million and consisted of
$8.8 million in increased accounts payable, accaxgeénses and other liabilities including amounis t related parties offset by increased
interest receivables and other assets of $2.4amilli

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to eteur cash requirements, including ongoing committs to repay borrowings, fund and
maintain our assets and operations, make new imegdgs where appropriate, make distributions tostockholders, and other general business
needs. We use cash to purchase or originate @iettassets, repay principal and interest on ouolbangs, make distributions to our
stockholders and fund our operations. We closelgitooour liquidity position and believe that wevieasufficient liquidity to and access to
liquidity to meet our financial obligations for letast the next 12 months. Our primary sourcesqoidity are as follows:

Cash Generated from Operations

Cash from operations is generally comprisieidterest income from our investments, net of associated financing expense, principal
repayments from our investments, net of assocfatadcing repayments, proceeds from the sale afstiments, and changes in working ca|
balances.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31, 2010, we had cash asld equivalents of $226.8 million, including $2.8Iran related to borrower reserve funds
maintained in an unrestricted account. This casdnioe includes un-deployed net proceeds from oeeBéer 2010 supplemental private
placement, and compares to $645.1 million of cashcash equivalents as of December 31, 2009.
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Potential Liquidation of Certain RMBS and CMBS Fosis

We regularly make certain investments inB8J1We have restricted these RMBS investments &naount that at all times is no greater
than 10% of our total assets. Expected duratiomgenerally 15 months or less and we have engatiérgarty manager who specializes in
RMBS to assist us in managing this portfolio. ADafcember 31, 2010, our investments in RMBS and SME: classified as available-for-
sale and had a fair value of $122.5 million andSs2illion, respectively.

Borrowings under Various Financing Arrangeme
We utilize a variety of financing arrangertseto finance certain assets. We generally utfbze types of financing arrangements:

1) Repurchase Agreements:Repurchase agreements effectively allow utoolv against loans and securities that we own.
Under these agreements, we sell our loans andigesuo a counterparty and agree to repurchassdime loans and securities
from the counterparty at a price equal to the aebsales price plus an interest factor. The capatéy retains the sole discreti
over both whether to purchase the loan and seduoity us and, subject to certain conditions, thekeiavalue of such loan or
security for purposes of determining whether weraqaiired to pay margin to the counterparty. Dutimg term of a repurchase
agreement, we receive the principal and intereshemelated loans and securities and pay intésebe counterparty. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company has entered irge teparate repurchase agreements, two of whieghwittr Wells Fargo
and one with Goldman Sachs. Details are providdhédrtable below. As noted below, the initial tesfriwo of these repurchase
agreements is subject to further extension. Howevermmust satisfy certain conditions at or priottte time of such extension.

2) Bank Credit Facilities: We use bank credit facilities (including termahs and revolving facilities) to finance our asséhese
financings may be collateralized or non-collateradi and may involve one or more lenders. Credilitias typically have
maturities ranging from two to five years and magrae interest at either fixed or floating rates. @ecember 3, 2010, we
entered into a term loan credit agreement with Bafnkmerica, N.A. ("Bank of America") to financedfacquisition of a
$205,000 participation in a senior secured note,fdem certain special purpose entities that wersméd to hold substantially
of the assets of a worldwide operator of hotelsoirs and timeshare properties. The initial termwfbank facility is subject to
further extension based upon the satisfaction daeconditions at or prior to the time of suchesmsion. Bank of America
retains the sole discretion, subject to certaird@tmns, over the market value of such note foppses of determining whether
we are required to pay margin to the Bank of Angeric

3) Securitizations During 2010 and in the future, we will seek -recourse lon-term securitizations of our investments
mortgage loans, especially loan originations. Témustizations may involve the entire loan or aiseportion of our loan. This
would involve conveying a pool of assets to a sgemirpose vehicle (or the issuing entity), whiobubd issue one or more
classes of nomecourse notes pursuant to the terms of an indentie notes would be secured by the pool of adsetxchang
for the transfer of assets to the issuing entiy would receive the cash proceeds on the salersfewurse notes. The
securitization of our portfolio investments mighagmify our exposure to losses on those portfo@gtments because the
retained subordinate interest in any particularalvéoan would be subordinate to the loan comptsenld into the
securitization and we would, therefore, absorlioabes sustained with respect to the overall le@darb the owners of the
securitization notes experience any losses withesto the loan in question. In August 2010 weigigated in a commercial
mortgage securitization which generated non-reeooratch
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4)

funded financing with an effective cost of fundsapproximately 3.5%. We separated five mortgagedaeith an aggregate fa
value of $178 million into senior and junior loalge then contributed the five senior loans, or Aesdthe "Contributed
Loans"), with a face value of approximately $84limil, to the securitization and received approxeha$92 million in
proceeds, while retaining $94 million of juniorénésts. The Contributed Loans are secured by offétail and industrial
properties and have remaining maturities betweandad seven years. Each of the five Contributeahlsovas either originated
or acquired by the Company as part of a first magégloan. In connection with the securitizationy tvf the first mortgage loans
were each split by the Company into an A note aBchate and three of the first mortgage loans teathdoeen previously split
into A notes, B notes and C notes. The securedding liability relates to two of the Contributedans that we securitized but
did not qualify for sale accounting under GAAP. &<December 31, 2010, the balance of the loangelédo the securitization
trust was $50.3 million and the related liabiliytioe securitization trust was $54.1 million. Fbe tother three Contributed
Loans, "effective control" was surrendered anddlaas contributed to the securitization qualified $ales treatment under
GAAP. As of December 31, 2010, the sale of theaadaesulted in a gain of $9.3 million, which islirded in realized gain on
the sale of investments in the consolidated statésraf operations.

Term AsseBacked Securities Loan Facility ("TALF") from thederal Reserve Bank of New Yc Between August 2009 a
March 2010, the Federal Reserve Bank of New Yoféretl term financing facilities to eligible investdo promote the flow of
credit to businesses and households and to faeitite financing of commercial properties during thcent financial crisis. The
initial list of eligible assets included certairghiquality CMBS created on or after January 1, 2009 75%ewned joint ventur
with another fund of the Manager, the Companyzgdithe TALF program to finance the investment2&million in AAA
rated Class A2 CMBS at an average price of 99.97p&io The CMBS are secured by a diversified pddixed rate commercii
mortgage loans and have a weighted average coummuuaisition of approximately 5.69%. The TALF fir@ng is freely
repayable at anytime without penalty.

Summary of Financing Facilities as of 122810:

Goldman Bank of
Wells Fargo 1 Wells Fargo Il Sachs America TALF Total
Facility Type Repurchase Repurchase Repurchase  Bank Credit Facility Government
Facility Facility Facility Financing
Facility
Revolver No Yes Yes No No
Eligible Assets Identified Loans Loans Identified Single AAA rated
Loans Borrower Secured CMBS
Note

Initial Maturity May 2013 Aug 2013 Dec 2012 Nov 2013 Aug 2014(a;
Extended Maturity, N/A Aug 2015 N/A Nov 2014 N/A

subject to certair

conditions
Pricing LIBOR +3%  LIBOR + 1.75% LIBOR LIBOR + 2.35% to 3.79% Fixed

to 6% +1.95% to 2.5%
2.25%

Pledged Asset $394,589 $98,767 $25,774 $178,782 $207,272 $905,184

Carrying Value
Maximum Facility $274,574 $350,000 $150,000 $150,000 $171,305 $1,095,889

Size
Outstanding $274,574 $4,000 $5,000 $124,778 $171,305 $579,657

Balance
Undrawn Capacit $0 $346,00C $145,00C $25,222 $0 $516,222
(@) The TALF loans are scheduled to mature in 2014abeiexpected to be repaid during the period Mayl20uly 2012 based upon the estimated prepayments

the pledged investment

55




Table of Contents
Other Potential Sources of Financing

In the future, we may also use other saiofdinancing to fund the acquisition of our targesets, including other secured as well as
unsecured forms of borrowing. We may also seekiserfurther equity capital or issue debt secwritieorder to fund our future investments.

Leverage Policies

We employ leverage, to the extent availafoléund the acquisition of our target assetstaridcrease potential returns to our stockholc
Although the type of leverage we deploy is depehderthe underlying asset that is being financeslimtend when possible to utilize leverage
whose maturity is equal to or greater than the nitgtaf the underlying asset. In addition, we irdego mitigate the impact of potential future
interest rate increases on our borrowings throuijization of hedging instruments, primarily intsteate swap agreements.

The amount of leverage we deploy for paféicinvestments in our target assets depends opoklianager's assessment of a variety of
factors, which may include the anticipated liquicdihd price volatility of the assets in our investrportfolio, the potential for losses and
extension risk in our portfolio, the gap betwees dluration of our assets and liabilities, includiregiges, the availability and cost of financing
the assets, our opinion of the creditworthinessusffinancing counterparties, the health of the.lé&®nomy and commercial and residential
mortgage markets, our outlook for the level, slage] volatility of interest rates, the credit qyabf our assets, the collateral underlying our
assets, and our outlook for asset spreads relatittee LIBOR curve. Under our current repurchaseagents and bank credit facility, our total
leverage may not exceed 75%, excluding the TALRdand related securities and adjusted to remaverthact of the consolidation of VIEs
pursuant to GAAP.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Contractual obligations as of December2®1,0 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years 5 years
Secured financings, includir

interest payable(e $ 614,93. $ 278,82¢ $ 336,10t $ — $ —
Liabilities of securitization trus 61,96 2,67¢ 8,44« 50,84 —
Loan funding obligatiot 54,30z 54,30: — — —
Deferred underwriting fee 27,19¢ 27,19¢ — —
Total $ 758,39. $ 335,80! $ 371,74! $ 50,84 $ —

(@) For borrowings with variable interest rates, weduee rates in effect as of December 31, 2010 terdeéne the future
interest payment obligation

The table above does not include amourgsudhder our management agreement or derivativeeagmets as those contracts do not have
fixed and determinable payments. In addition, #ide above does not give effect to the subsequent® described in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2010, we did not haweratationships with unconsolidated entities ogfigial partnerships, such as entities often
referred to as structured investment vehiclespecial purpose or variable interest entities, disfadd to facilitate off-balance sheet
arrangements or other
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contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtteer of December 31, 2010, we had not guaranteedldigations of unconsolidated entities or
entered into any commitment or intent to providdidnal funding to any such entities.

Dividends

We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock. U.S. federadme tax law generally requires that a
REIT distribute annually at least 90% of its RE&ékable income, without regard to the deductiordfeidends paid and excluding net capital
gains, and that it pay tax at regular corporatesr&t the extent that it annually distributes tess 100% of its net taxable income. We intend to
pay regular quarterly dividends to our stockholderan amount approximating our net taxable incoifremd to the extent authorized by our
board of directors. Before we pay any dividend, tivbefor U.S. federal income tax purposes or otlisywve must first meet both our
operating requirements and debt service on our. tfefair cash available for distribution is lesathour net taxable income, we could be
required to sell assets or borrow funds to maké dagributions or we may make a portion of theuiszgd distribution in the form of a taxable
stock distribution or distribution of debt seciagi

Our board of directors declared a divideh#0.22 per share of common stock for the quameled March 31, 2010 on March 4, 2010.
The dividend was paid on April 15, 2010 to commtmtkholders of record as of March 31, 2010. Thetbadso declared a dividend of $0.25
per share of common stock for the quarter ended 30n2010. The dividend was paid on July 15, 20ldbmmon stockholders of record as of
June 30, 2010. The board further declared a didid#1$0.33 per share of common stock for the quaneed September 30, 2010. The
dividend was paid on October 15, 2010 to commocks$tolders of record as of September 30, 2010. Oreiber 10, 2010, the board decla
a dividend of $0.40 per share of common stockterdquarter ended December 31, 2010. The dividesdpa@ on January 17, 2011 to
common stockholders of record as of December 31020

On March 1, 2011, our board of directorslaesd a dividend of $0.42 per share for the fitstrter of 2010, which is payable on April 15,
2011 to common stockholders of record as of Ma2811.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Core Earnings is a non-GAAP financial measWe calculate Core Earnings as GAAP net incdoss) excluding non-cash equity
compensation expense, the incentive fee, depregiatid amortization of real estate (to the extesit e own properties), any unrealized gz
losses or other non-cash items recorded in netriedor the period, regardless of whether such iterasncluded in other comprehensive
income or loss, or in net income. The amount isistdd to exclude one-time events pursuant to clsaing8AAP and certain other non-cash
charges as determined by our Manager and approveadriajority of our independent directors.

We believe that Core Earnings providesdditinal measure of our core operating performadnceliminating the impact of certain non-
cash expenses and facilitating a comparison ofinancial results to those of other comparable REATth fewer or no non-cash charges and
comparison of our own operating results from pet@mgderiod. Our management uses Core Earningssmidy, and also uses Core Earnings to
compute the incentive fee due under our manageaggaement. The Company believes that its invesiessuse Core Earnings or a
comparable supplemental performance measure taatesnd compare the performance of the Companitsipders, and as such, the
Company believes that the disclosure of Core Egmis useful to (and expected by) its investors.

However, the Company cautions that Coreniags does not represent cash generated from apgeattivities in accordance with GAAP
and should not be considered as an alternativetto n
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income (determined in accordance with GAAP), oimatication of our cash flow from operating actig#i(determined in accordance with
GAAP), a measure of our liquidity, or an indicatioihfunds available to fund our cash needs, inclgdiur ability to make cash distributions
addition, our methodology for calculating Core Bags may differ from the methodologies employedther REITs to calculate the same or
similar supplemental performance measures, andaiogly, our reported Core Earnings may not be caraple to the Core Earnings reported
by other REITs.

Our Core Earnings for the year ended Deegrh, 2010 were approximately $67.2 million or381per weighted average share, diluted.
The table below provides a reconciliation of nebime to Core Earnings for this period:

December 31, 2010 Reconciliation of Nebime to Core Earnings

Amounts Per Share

Net income attributable to Starwo

Property Trust, Ini $ 57,046 $ 1.14
Add back: Non-cash stock-based

compensatiol 7,522 0.1t
Add back: Unrealized loss on currer

hedges 7,43¢ 0.1t
Add back: Management incentive 1 1,23¢ 0.0z
Subtract: Unrealized foreign currency

remeasurement ga (6,050 (0.12)

Core Earning: $ 67,190 $ 1.34

Our Core Earnings for the period August2009 (Inception) to December 31, 2009 were appnately $(0.6) million or $(0.01) per
weighted average share. The table below providesanciliation of net loss to Core Earnings fostpériod:

Amounts Per Share
Net loss attributable to Starwood Prope
Trust, Inc $ (3,017) $ (0.0¢)
Add back: Non-cash stock-based
compensatiol 2,421 0.0t
Core Earning: $ (59%€) $ (0.0))

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We seek to manage our risks related tatbdit quality of our assets, interest rates, igyj prepayment speeds and market value while,
at the same time, seeking to provide an opportuaistockholders to realize attractive risk-adjdsteturns through ownership of our capital
stock. While we do not seek to avoid risk compigetele believe the risk can be quantified from hista experience and seek to actively
manage that risk, to earn sufficient compensatigngtify taking those risks and to maintain cdgiaels consistent with the risks we
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to varying degrees of cnéslitin connection with our investments. While @@ not expect to encounter significant credit
risk in our Agency RMBS assets, we have exposupeddit risk on the mortgage assets and underlyinggage loans in our non-Agency
RMBS and CMBS portfolios as well as other assets. @anager seeks to manage credit risk by perfagrdaep credit fundamental analysit
potential assets. Credit risk is also addressaditir our Manager's on-going surveillance, and iimvests are monitored for variance from
expected prepayments, defaults, severities, lassgsash flow on a monthly basis.

Our investment guidelines do not limit #raount of our equity that may be invested in apetgf our target assets; however, not more
than 25% of our equity may be invested in any iittligl asset, without the consent of a majority wf imdependent directors. Our investment
decisions depend on
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prevailing market conditions and may change oveetin response to opportunities available in ddfferinterest rate, economic and credit
environments. As a result, we cannot predict thegpgage of our equity that will be invested in afipur target assets at any given time.

At December 31, 2010, the S&P ratings of dBS portfolio were as follows:

Carrying

S&P Rating Value Percentage

AAA $ 215,72. 54.2%
AA+ 324 0.1%
AA- 43 0.C%
A 25E 0.1%
BBB 5,36¢ 1.2%
BBB- 1,69: 0.4%
BB+ 24,94, 6.2%
BB 48,23: 12.1%
BB- 8,56: 2.2%
B+ 19,56¢ 4.%9%
B 5,57: 1.4%
B- 36,05¢ 9.1%
CCC+ 4,28¢ 1.1%
CCcC 14,50: 3.€%
CCC- 10,64( 2.7%
CcC 70C 0.2%
D 1,204 0.2%
Total MBS $ 397,68 100.(%

Interest Rate Ris

Interest rates are highly sensitive to miagyors, including fiscal and monetary policiesl @mmestic and international economic and
political considerations, as well as other factmgond our control. We are subject to interestigtein connection with our investments and
the related financing obligations. In general, wpezt to finance the acquisition of our target tsteough financings in the form of
borrowings under programs established by the Wb8emment, warehouse facilities, bank credit féesi (including term loans and revolving
facilities), resecuritizations, securitizations aegurchase agreements. We mitigate interestiskéhrough utilization of hedging instruments,
primarily interest rate swap agreements. Inter@st swap agreements are intended to serve as a hgdupst future interest rate increases on
our borrowings.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Incc

Our operating results depend in large pardifferences between the income earned on oastments and our cost of borrowing and
hedging activities. The cost of our borrowingsésegrally based on prevailing market interest radesing a period of rising interest rates, our
borrowing costs generally may increase (1) whiteyttelds earned on our leveraged fixed-rate modgesgets are remain static and (2) at a
faster pace than the yields earned on our leverfigating rate mortgage assets, which could r@awdtdecline in our net interest margin. The
severity of any such decline would depend on osetdgability composition at the time as well as thagnitude and duration of the interest
increase. Further, an increase in short-term istesges could also have a negative impact on #r&ehvalue of our target assets. If any of
these events happen, we could experience a dedneastincome or incur a net loss during thes@opler which could adversely affect our
liquidity and results of operations.
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Hedging techniques are partly based onnasduevels of prepayments of our investments.dppyments are slower or faster than
assumed, the life of the investment would be lomgeshorter, which would reduce the effectivendsany hedging strategies we may use and
may cause losses on such transactions. Hedgirnggiria involving the use of derivative securities lighly complex and may produce vola
returns.

Interest Rate Mismatch Ri

We have funded a portion of our acquisittdmortgage loans and MBS with borrowings thatlzased on the LIBOR, while the interest
rates on these assets may be indexed to LIBORath@nindex rate, such as the one-year Constanirilai reasury ("CMT") index, the
Monthly Treasury Average ("MTA") index or the 11Ehstrict Cost of Funds Index ("COFI"). Accordinglgny increase in LIBOR relative to
one-year CMT rates, MTA or COFI may result in acr@ase in our borrowing costs that may not be neatdly a corresponding increase in the
interest earnings on these assets. Any such intatesindex mismatch could adversely affect owfifbility, which may negatively impact
distributions to our stockholders. To mitigate et rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedgireggesiies discussed above.

Our analysis of risks is based on our M@anagexperience, estimates, models and assumplibase analyses rely on models which ut
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiordetisions by our management may produce
results that differ significantly from the estimat@nd assumptions used in our models and the pedjeesults shown in this prospectus.

Prepayment Ris

Prepayment risk is the risk that princiwdl be repaid at a different rate than anticipatesusing the return on an asset to be less than
expected. As we receive prepayments of principalarassets, premiums paid on such assets areiz@dosgainst interest income. In general,
an increase in prepayment rates accelerates theization of purchase premiums, thereby reducimgititerest income earned on the assets.
Conversely, discounts on such assets are accrétethterest income. In general, an increase ipgyment rates accelerates the accretion of
purchase discounts, thereby increasing the inteéresie earned on the assets.

Extension Ris

Our Manager computes the projected weightestage life of our assets based on assumptigasdiag the rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the mortgages or extend. If prepaynratds decrease in a rising interest rate envirohregxtension options are exercised, the
of the fixed-rate assets could extend beyond time tf the secured debt agreements. This could hanegative impact on our results from
operations. In some situations, we may be forcestlioassets to maintain adequate liquidity, whichld cause us to incur losses.

Market Value Ris|

Available-for-sale securities are reflectgdheir estimated fair value, with the differefegween amortized cost and estimated fair value
reflected in accumulated other comprehensive incdrhe estimated fair value of these securitiest@lates primarily due to changes in interest
rates and other factors. Generally, in a risingrigst rate environment, the estimated fair valub®fixed-rate securities would be expected to
decrease; conversely, in a decreasing intereseraieonment, the estimated fair value of the fixate securities would be expected to incre
As market volatility increases or liquidity decreasthe fair value of our assets may be adversgdacted. If we are unable to readily obtain
independent pricing to validate our estimatedValue of the securities in our
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portfolio, the fair value gains or losses recorgedther comprehensive income may be adverselytaife
Foreign Currency Ris

We intend to hedge our currency exposuresprudent manner. However, our currency heddiagegiies may not eliminate all of our
currency risk due to, among other things, uncetitsrin the timing and/or amount of payments reegign the related investments, and/or
unequal, inaccurate, or unavailability of hedgepéddectly offset changes in future exchange rakdgitionally, we may be required under
certain circumstances to collateralize our currémegges for the benefit of the hedge counterpattych could adversely affect our liquidity.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company hab §$21.2 million of GBP-denominated loan investnsgfuising December 31, 2010 spot
rate of 1.552). During 2010, the Company enteréal anseries of forward contracts whereby the Compamees to sell an amount of GBP for
an agreed-upon amount of USD at various dates gir@ctober 2013. These forward contracts were é&ddo fix the USD amount of GBP-
denominated cash flows expected to be receivetidoCompany related to the Company's GBP-denominadéed. As of December 31, 2010,
the Company had 16 such foreign exchange forwanttacts with a total notional of USD $157.01 mifliusing December 31, 2010 spot rate
of 1.552).

Real Estats

Commercial and residential mortgage assetsubject to volatility and may be affected adebrby a number of factors, including, but
not limited to, national, regional and local ecomooonditions (which may be adversely affectedmjuistry slowdowns and other factors);
local real estate conditions; changes or continueakness in specific industry segments; constmatimlity, age and design; demographic
factors; and retroactive changes to building oiilsintodes. In addition, decreases in property eakeduce the value of the collateral and the
potential proceeds available to a borrower to reapayunderlying loans or loans, as the case mawhieh could also cause us to suffer losses.

Inflation Risk

Virtually all of our assets and liabilitiase interest rate sensitive in nature. As a regu#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance significantly more than inflation do€sanges in interest rates may correlate with fiofterates and/or changes in inflation rates.
Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeGAAP and our distributions are determinedooy board of directors consistent with
our obligation to distribute to our stockholderdeatst 90% of our REIT taxable income on an anbaals in order to maintain our REIT
qualification; in each case, our activities anchbak sheet are measured with reference to histedsaand/or fair value without considering
inflation.

Risk Managemer

To the extent consistent with maintaining BEIT qualification, we seek to manage risk expego protect our portfolio of financial
assets against the effects of major interest teges. We generally seek to manage this risk by:

. attempting to structure our financing agreementsatee a range of different maturities, terms, aipatibns and interest ra
adjustment periods;

. using hedging instruments, primarily interest t@p agreements but also financial futures, optimhsrest rate cap
agreements, floors and forward sales to adjusintleeest rate sensitivity of our investment poiticind our borrowings; and
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. using securitization financing to better matchteturity of our financing with the duration of cassets.

The following table summarizes the net Btagent income for a 12 month period and the chamégar value of our investments and
indebtedness assuming an increase or decreas@ bh$& points in the LIBOR interest rate, bothuatdjd for the effects of our interest rate
hedging activities (dollars in thousands):

Variable-rate
investments 100 Basis 100 Basis
Income (Expense) and Point Point
Subject to Interest Rate Sensitivity indebtedness _ Increase Decrease

Investment income from

variablerate investment  $ 468,820 $ 5,37¢ $ (1,39¢)
Investment expense from

variable-rate indebtednes (124,92) (1,249 324(a)

Net investment income frol
variable rate instrumen ~ $ 343,90: $ 4,12¢ $ (1,079

Fixed-Rate
investments
Assets (Liabilities) and
Subiject to Interest Rate Sensitivity (Par Amount) indebtedness
Fair value of fixe-rate investment $1,379,81. (33,75() 35,25
Fair value of fixed rate indebtedne (458,490 4,71¢ (4,830

Net fair value of fixe-rate instrument ~ $ 921,32 $(29,03¢$30,42:

(@) Assumed LIBOR rate decrease does go below 0%.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Starwood Property Trust, Inc.
Greenwich, CT

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheets of Starwood Property Trustaimd subsidiaries (the "Company”) as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related coasetictatements of operations, equity, other congmsive income (loss) and cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2010 and for tHegp&om August 17, 2009 (Inception) to Decembgy 3009. Our audits also included the
financial statement schedule listed in the Indeltegth 8. We also have audited the Company's inteararol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2010, based on criteria establishdaémal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Campisananagement is responsible for these finastiéments and the financial
statement schedule, for maintaining effective imaércontrol over financial reporting, and for issassment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in thecampanying Management Report on Internal Contvel &inancial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements and financial statement scheshadlen opinion on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all eral respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estisiatade by management, and evaluating the ovenahdial statement presentation. Our a
of internal control over financial reporting incled obtaining an understanding of internal contsa@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, testing and evalu#timgesign and operating effectiveness of intezoatrol based on the assessed risk. Our ¢
also included performing such other procedureseasamsidered necessary in the circumstances. Visvéehat our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over finanaiborting is a process designed by, or underupersision of, the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pars performing similar functions, and effected g Company's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakassurance regarding the reliability of financegdorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comfsainternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetssof the Company; (2) provide reasonable assetat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statesin accordance with generally accepted acaogiptinciples and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on tlanfial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of intg control over financial reporting, includingetpossibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatketected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenekthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the
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risk that the controls may become inadequate beoafushanges in conditions, or that the degreeofatiance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and subsidiariesfd®sgember 31, 2010 and 2009, and the resultseif dperations and their cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2010 and for the period Aagust 17, 2009 (Inception) to December 31, Z@0Sonformity with accountin
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica. Also, in our opinion, such financiahtgment schedule, when considered in
relation to the basic consolidated financial stagets taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all ngteespects, the information set forth therein.
Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, inna&terial respects, effective internal control ofieancial reporting as of December 31,
2010, based on the criteria establishethtarnal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
March 1, 2011
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 226,85: $ 645,12¢
Loans held for investment, n 1,230,78: 214,52:
Loans hel-for-sale, at fair valu 144,16: —
Loans held in securitization tru 50,291 —
Mortgage backed securities, held to matu — 245,89t
Mortgage backed securities, availe-for-sale, at fair valu 397,68 —
Other investment 14,17 —
Accrued interest receivab 9,56/ 2,18(
Receivable for securities sc 22,21« —
Derivative asset 337 —
Other asset 5,33¢ 1,06(
Total Assets $ 2,101,40! $ 1,108,78I
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities:
Payable for unsettled securities purche $ 47,17¢ $ —
Accounts payable and accrued expet 5,52 1,03¢
Related party payab 5,05( 3,54¢
Dividends payabli 29,08: 5,34¢
Derivative liabilities 9,40( —
Secured financing agreements, 579,65¢ 171,39
Collateralized debt obligation in securitizationst 54,08¢ —
Deferred offering cost 27,19¢ 27,19¢
Other liabilities 7,00C 4,23:
Total Liabilities 764,17t 212,75:
Commitments and contingencies (Note 1«
Equity:
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 per share 100,000,000 shares
authorized, no shares issued and outstar — —
Common stock, $0.01 per share, 500,000,000 shares
authorized, 71,021,342 and 47,583,800 issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2010 and Decembe
2009, respectivel 70€ 47€
Additional paic-in capital 1,337,95: 895,85’
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 8,20: —
Accumulated defici (29,309) (8,366
Total Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Stockholders' Equity 1,327,561 887,96
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidis 9,66¢ 8,06¢
Total Equity 1,337,22! 896,03!
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 2,101,40! $ 1,108,78I

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareath)

Net interest margin:
Interest income from mortgage backed secur
Interest income from loar
Interest expens

Net interest margin

Expenses:
Management fees (including $7,420 and $2,393 of nol
cash stoc-based compensation, respective
General and administrative (including $102 and 828
nor-cash stoc-based compensation, respective

Total operating expense:
Income (loss) before other income (expense) and &p

Interest income from cash balan:

Other income

Realized gain on sale of investme

Realized foreign currency ga

Realized loss on derivativi

Unrealized loss on currency hedges and interestsraaps
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement

Income (loss) before income taxe
Income tax provisiol
Net Income (Loss)
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest:
Net income (loss) attributable to Starwood Property
Trust, Inc
Net income (loss) per share of common stoc
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of shares of common stor

outstanding:
Basic

Diluted
Distributions declared per common sh

For the Year
Ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 17, 2009
(Inception) Through
December 31, 2009

$ 21,987 $ 4,46¢
71,54 2,45¢

(15,78%) (1,90¢)

77,736 5,02:

22,77 7,471

7,271 1,81F

30,05: 9,28¢

47,68 (4,269

1,26¢ 1,68¢

13t —

11,62¢ —

57 —

(117) —

(7,439) —

6,05( —

59,26¢ (2,580)

42€ —

58,84 (2,58()

1,79€ 437

$ 57,04¢ $ (3,017)
$ 1.1€ $ (0.0€)
$ 114 $ (0.06)
49,138,72 47,575,63
50,021,82 47,575,63

$ 1.2C $ 0.11

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Equity

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated Total
other Starwood Non-
Additional ~ Accumulated comprehensive  Property  controlling
Paid-In Trust, Inc.
Shares Par Capital Deficit Income Equity Interests

Common Stock

Total Equity

Balance at
August 17,
2009

(Inception) 10C$ — % 13 — % —$ 1% — %

Proceeds fron

public

offering of

common

stock 46,575,000 46€ 931,03: 931,50(
Underwriting

and offering

costs (57,58%) (57,58%)
Proceeds fron

private

placemen 1,000,001 10 19,99( 20,00(
Cancellation

of shares (100 (D) (D)
Stock-based

compensati 8,80( 2,421 2,421

Net loss (3,01%) (3,017 437
Dividends

declarec (5,349 (5,349
Contribution

from

noncontrolli

interests 50,85t
Distribution to

noncontrolli

interests (43,224

931,50(

(57,58

20,00(

@D

2,421
(2,580)

(5,349)

50,85¢

(43,229

Balance at

December :

2009 47,583,800 47€ 895,85’ (8,36€) — 887,96 8,06¢
Proceeds fron

public

offering of

common

stock 23,000,000 23C 453,56( 453,79(
Underwriting

and offering

costs (18,98¢) (18,98¢)
Stock-based

compensati 437,54. 7,52z 7,52

Net income 57,04¢ 57,04¢ 1,79¢
Dividends

declarec (67,982 (67,982

Other

comprehen:

income, ne 8,202 8,20: 1,13¢
Contribution

from

noncontrolli

interests 3,00z

Distribution to

896,03!

453,79(

(18,986
7,522
58,84:

(67,98:)

9,34:

3,00z



noncontrolling

interests (4,33¢€) (4,33¢€)
Balance at

December :

2010 71,021,34 $70€ $1,337,95. $ (19,309)% 8,207 $1,327,56! $ 9,66¢ $1,337,22!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Other Comprehensive Inooe (L0sS)

(Amounts in thousands)

Period from
For the Year August 17, 2009
Ended (Inception)
December 31, to December 31,
2010 2009
Net Income (Loss) $ 58,84: $ (2,580
Change in fair value of cash flow hedc (1,625 —
Increase in net unrealized gain on avail-for-sale securitie 13,34 —
Reclassification adjustment for net realized gairsale of
securities (2,375
Comprehensive incorr 68,18 (2,580)
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to nonodimtg
interests (2,935 437
Comprehensive Income (Loss) attributable to Starwow
Property Trust, Inc . $ 65,24¢ $ (3,017

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income(loss) to nehqaised in) provided by operating activiti
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Accretion of net discount on mortgage backed sées
Amortization of net deferred loan fees and disce
Stocl-based compensatic
Gain on sale of availat-for-sale securitie
Gain on sale of loar
Gain on sale of other investmel
Unrealized losses on interest rate hec
Unrealized losses on currency hed
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement |
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Related party payab
Accrued interest receivable, less purchased irit
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Other liabilities
Purchase of loans hefor-sale at fair valur

Net cash (Used In) Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of mortga-backed securitie
Proceeds from sale of mortgi-backed securitie
Mortgage-backed securities principal paydow
Purchase of loar
Loan maturities
Proceeds from sale of loa
Loan investment repaymer
Purchased interest on investme
Purchase of other investmel
Proceeds from sale of other investme

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Borrowings under secured financing agreem
Proceeds from collateralized debt obligations tusiézation trust
Principal repayments on secured financing arrangés,
Payment of deferred financing co
Proceeds from common stock offeri
Payment of underwriting fees and offering cc
Payment of dividend
Contributions from noncontrolling interes
Distributions to noncontrolling interes

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for intere:
Income taxes pai
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Dividends declared, but not yet p:
Unsettled securities trade receiva
Unsettled securities trade paya
Capitalized interes

For the
year ended
December 31

For the
Period from
Inception to

December 31

2010 2009
$ 58,84 $ (2,580)
64€ 2C
(7,25€) (347)
(6,339) (31¢)
7,522 2,421
(2,11 —
(9,259 —
(257) —
55 —
7,388 —
(6,050) —
1,504 3,54¢
(7,712 (1,679
(459) (737)
4,49¢ 1,034
2,761 4,23t
(143,439 —
(99,677) 5,569¢
(204,509 (245,60)
58,31¢ —
38,83¢ 58
(1,208,81) (215,35)
114,71 —
38,16« —
13,64: 1,15(
(3,027) (501)
(15,029 —
1,987 —
(1,165,71) (460,259
477,70 171,57¢
54,08¢ —
(69.440() (18%)
(4,467) (349
453,79 951,49t
(18,98¢) 30,39¢
(44,25() —
3,002 50,85¢
(4,336) (43,224
847,10¢ 1,099,78:
(418,27Y 645,12t
645,12¢ 1
$ 226,85 $ 645,12¢
$ 14,66: $ 1,617
63¢ —
$ 29,08. $ 5,34¢
22,21« —
47,17¢ —
3,32t —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2010
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharereunts)
1. Business and Organization

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. (togetheihvii$ subsidiaries, the "Company") is a Marylandoooation that commenced operations
("Inception") on August 17, 2009 upon the completid its initial public offering. The Company isdiased primarily on originating, investing
in, financing and managing commercial mortgage $camd other commercial real estate debt investm&hesCompany also invests in
residential mortgage-backed securities and resalenbrtgage loans. The Company is externally madamnd advised by SPT
Management, LLC (the "Manager").

The Company is organized and conductspigsations to qualify as a real estate investmesst ('REIT") under the Internal Revenue C
of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). As such, the @ompill generally not be subject to U.S. fedemiporate income tax on that portion of its
net income that is distributed to stockholders distributes at least 90% of its taxable incomédastockholders by prescribed dates and
complies with various other requirements.

The Company is organized as a holding camwypaat conducts its business primarily througle¢hwholly-owned subsidiaries. The
Company has formed joint ventures (the "Joint Vesgl) with Starwood Hospitality Fund Il ("Hotel )land Starwood Opportunity Fund VIII
("SOF VIIIM) in accordance with the co-investmendaallocation agreement with the Manager. Thesa J@ntures are owned 75% (and
controlled) by the Company and are therefore cédatdd into the Company's consolidated financeteshents.

As of December 31, 2010, investments withateral in the hospitality, retail, and officeoperty sectors represented 40.4%, 23.8%, and
19.6% of the Company's investment portfolio, resipely. Such allocations could materially changeha future.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidatic

The accompanying consolidated financiaiestents include our accounts and those of our d¢idiased subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany amounts have been eliminated. Theapaéipn of financial statements in conformity watbcounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("GAARQuires us to make estimates and assumptionsffeet the reported amounts of assets
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets latllities at the date of the financial statenseamd the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Actual tesduld differ from those estimates.

A noncontrolling interest in a consolidagsidiary is defined as "the portion of the eg(itet assets) in a subsidiary not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to a parent”. Noncontrolljinterests are presented as a separate compdreguity in the consolidated balance sheet
addition, the presentation of net income attribet@sings to controlling and noncontrolling intéses

The Company uses plain English when desqgibr referencing accounting standards in thestiehe financial statements. As a result,
there may be no reference to particular accourdiagdards by name, standard number, or Accountargd8rds Codification ("ASC")
reference number.

71




Table of Contents

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
As of December 31, 2010
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharereunts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Corihued)
Segment Reportin

The Company is a REIT focused on origirgaind acquiring real estate related debt investsreamd currently operates in one reportable
segment.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cashrikdand short-term investments. Short-term investsnare comprised of highly liquid
instruments with original maturities of three mantir less. The Company maintains its cash andexgsialents in multiple financial
institutions and at times these balances exceetdty insurable limits.

Debt Securities

GAAP requires that at the time of purchaise,Company designate debt securities as heldatosity, available-for-sale, or trading
depending on its intent and ability to hold sucbusities to maturity. Held-to-maturity securitie®atated at cost plus any premiums or
discounts, which are amortized or accreted thrdbgltonsolidated statements of operations usingffeetive interest method. Securities that
the Company does not (i) hold for the purpose tifgein the near-term or (ii) may dispose of priormaturity, are designated as available-for-
sale and are carried at estimated fair value vighnet unrealized gains or losses recorded as paient of accumulated other comprehensive
income in stockholders' equity. As of DecemberZ11,0, all of the Company's commercial mortgage éddecurities ("CMBS") and
residential mortgage backed securities ("RMBS")enggsignated as available for sale. During 200&armdigh the first two quarters of 201(
portion of the CMBS was classified as held-to-migiuHowever, the Company's strategy with respechése investments has changed and we
no longer intend to hold these securities to mptufiherefore, the Company reclassified these #&sito available-for-sale during the third
guarter of 2010. In connection with this change, @ompany recorded an unrealized gain on our dteifar-sale securities of approximately
$10.3 million. The designation of each securityeailable-for-sale involves management judgmentivig subject to change. The change in
judgment can have an impact on the accountingh®security

When the estimated fair value of a secusitgss than amortized cost, we consider whetieetis an other-than-temporary impairment
("OTTI") in the value of the security. An impairmdas deemed an OTTI if (i) we intend to sell thewty, (ii) it is more likely than not that we
will be required to sell the security before reaovg our cost basis, or (iii) we do not expectdoaver the entire amortized cost basis of the
security even if we do not intend to sell the sigur believe it is more likely than not that weéllvbe required to sell the security before
recovering our cost basis. If the impairment isrdeé to be an OTTI, the resulting accounting treatdepends on the factors causing the
OTTI. If the OTTI has resulted from (i) our intemti to sell the security, or (ii) our judgment titas more likely than not that we will be
required to sell the security before recovering @ast basis, an impairment loss is recognized ireati earnings equal to the difference betv
our amortized cost basis and fair value. WherdalseiOTTI has resulted from our conclusion thatwi not recover our cost basis even if we
do not intend to sell the security or believe itisre likely than
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As of December 31, 2010
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharereunts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Corihued)

not that we will be required to sell the securigfdye recovering our cost basis, the credit losigoof the impairment is recorded in current
earnings and the portion of the loss related teroféctors, such as changes in interest ratesinc@stto be recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income. Determining whether theemi©®TTI may require management to exercise sigmfijudgment and make significant
assumptions, including, but not limited to, estiethtash flows, estimated prepayments, loss assamsptind assumptions regarding chang
interest rates. As a result, actual impairmentdssould differ from reported amounts. Such judghand assumptions are based upon a
number of factors, including (i) credit of the isswr the underlying borrowers, (ii) credit ratiofithe security, (iii) key terms of the security,
(iv) performance of the underlying loans, includohgpbt service coverage and loan-to-value ratigghgy value of the collateral for the
underlying loans, (vi) the effect of local, indystand broader economic factors, and (vii) thednisal and anticipated trends in defaults and
loss severities for similar securities.

Investment security transactions are remb@h the trade date. As of December 31, 2010Ctmepany had recorded a receivable for
securities sold of $22.2 million that relates towséies that were sold with a trade date shoréfobe, but then settled shortly after,
December 31, 2010.

Loans Held for Investmen

The Company purchases and originates coniaheeal estate debt and related instruments géineo be held for investment and to
maturity. Loans that are held for investment areied at cost, net of unamortized acquisition ptems or discounts, loan fees, and origination
and acquisition costs, unless the loans are de@npaired.

We evaluate each loan classified as helthfestment for impairment on a periodic basispdinment occurs when it is deemed probable
that we will not be able to collect all amounts @weording to the contractual terms of the loaa. Ifan is considered to be impaired, we re
an allowance to reduce the carrying value of tlaa lm the present value of expected future castsfitiscounted at the loan's contractual
effective rate or the fair value of the collateratepayment is expected solely from the colldtera

The Company's loans are typically colldizea by real estate. As a result, the Companyleetyuevaluates the extent and impact of any
credit deterioration associated with the perforneaaied/or value of the underlying collateral propes well as the financial and operating
capability of the borrower. Specifically, a propéstoperating results and any cash reserves algzadaand used to assess (i) whether cash
from operations are sufficient to cover the deltise requirements currently and into the futuiig tife ability of the borrower to refinance the
loan, and/or (iii) the property's liquidation valighe Company also evaluates the financial whelalitf any loan guarantors as well as the
borrower's competency in managing and operatingtoperties. In addition, the Company considersotrerall economic environment, real
estate sector, and geographic sub-market in whielborrower operates. Such impairment analysesoan@leted and reviewed by asset
management and finance personnel, who utilize uaréiata sources, including (i) periodic financiatedsuch as property occupancy, tenant
profile, rental rates, operating expenses, thedveer's exit plan, and
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Corihued)

capitalization and discount rates, (ii) site ingfmets, and (iii) current credit spreads and disimrsswith market participants.

No provision for probable losses on speddans was established as of December 31, 202009 as there was no indication of
significant credit deterioration or other factorkigh would indicate a reserve was necessary. $ignif judgment is required when evaluating
loans for impairment, therefore, actual resultsrawvee could be materially different.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans that the Company intends to sellquidiate in the near term are classified as heteséde and are carried at the lower of amortized
cost or fair value, unless the Company has eldoteecord any such loans at fair value at the tinegy were acquired under Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") ASC Topic 8Bmancial Instruments See further disclosure regarding loans held-&e-; Note 13.

Revenue Recognitio

Interest income is accrued based on thetanding principal amount of the investment segwiitioan and the contractual terms. Disco
or premiums associated with the purchase of arstment security are amortized into interest incama yield adjustment on the effective
interest method, based on expected cash flowsghrthe expected maturity date of the security.l&ans that the Company has not elected to
record at fair value under FASB ASC Topic 825, mrdgion fees and direct loan origination costsaise recognized in interest income over
loan term as a yield adjustment using the effedtiterest method. For loans that the Company eldateecord at fair value, origination fees
and direct loan costs are recorded directly inmeand are not deferred.

Upon the repayment or sale of loans or sges, the excess (or deficiency) of net procemds the net carrying value of such securitie
loans is recognized as a gain (or loss).

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Company's assets and liabilities denated in foreign currencies are translated into. ddiars using foreign currency exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. Incontbexpenses are translated at the approximate vegigivierage exchange rates for each
reporting period. At December 31, 2010, the funwiccurrency of all investments denominated inifpreurrencies was the U.S. dollar. The
effects of translating the assets, liabilities ammbme of the Company's foreign investments arkudexd in unrealized foreign currency
remeasurement gain in the statements of operations.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjthe Company to concentrations of credit righksigt primarily of cash investments, CMBS,
RMBS, loan investments and interest receivable. Chmpany may place cash investments in excessofaéd amounts with high quality
financial institutions. The
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Corihued)

Company performs an ongoing analysis of credit ciskcentrations in its investment portfolio by eaxsing exposure to various markets,
underlying property types, contract terms, tenaimtand other credit metrics.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitie

GAAP provides the disclosure requiremeatsierivatives and hedging activities with the it provide users of financial statements
with an enhanced understanding of: (a) how and avhgntity uses derivative instruments, (b) howehtity accounts for derivative instrume
and related hedged items, and (c) how derivatiggruments and related hedged items affect an &nfiitvancial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. Further, the Compamst provide qualitative disclosures that explasnoibjectives and strategies for using
derivatives, as well as quantitative disclosuresuathe fair value of and gains and losses on dévie instruments, and disclosures about
credit-risk-related contingent features in derivatinstruments.

As required by GAAP, the Company recordislativatives on the balance sheet at fair valle dccounting for changes in the fair value
of derivatives depends on the intended use of ¢hiwative, whether the Company has elected to dasiga derivative in a hedging relations
and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedglationship has satisfied the criteria necessappply hedge accounting. Derivatives
designated and qualifying as a hedge of the expdsuthanges in the fair value of an asset, lighitir firm commitment attributable to a
particular risk, such as interest rate risk, amesatered fair value hedges. Derivatives designatetiqualifying as a hedge of the exposure to
variability in expected future cash flows, or otlyges of forecasted transactions, are considexshl ffow hedges. Derivatives may also be
designated as hedges of the foreign currency expada net investment in a foreign operation. Hedgcounting generally provides for the
matching of the timing of gain or loss recognitmmthe hedging instrument with the recognitionhef thanges in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the dpedirisk in a fair value hedge or the earningsceféé the hedged forecasted transactions in a cast
flow hedge. The Company may enter into derivativetacts that are intended to economically hedggiceof its risk, even though hedge
accounting does not apply or the Company electsoapply hedge accounting. In such cases, changdks fair value of the derivatives are
recorded in earnings.

Deferred Financing Cost:

Costs incurred in connection with secuiiedricing are capitalized and amortized over thpeetive loan terms as a component of interest
expense. As of December 31, 2010 and Decembei088, Zhe Company had approximately $4.1 million $8a million, respectively, of
capitalized financing costs, net of amortizatioar the year ended December 31, 2010 and Incepi@etember 31, 2009, approximately $
and $20, respectively, of amortization was inclugtethterest expense on the statements of opestion
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Earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earningshmmesby dividing net income attributable to the @amy for the period by the weighted
average of shares of common stock outstandindhfdrgeriod. Diluted earnings per share takes iffexeany dilutive instruments, such as
restricted stock and restricted stock units, exedpn doing so would be anti-dilutive. As of Deca&anB1, 2010, and December 31, 2009, there
were 1,690,809 and 964,425 unvested dilutive sgesidutstanding, respectively. Refer to Note 1theoconsolidated financial statements for
the vested and unvested share tables.

Share-based payments

The Company recognizes the cost of shasecbaompensation and payment transactions in thetidated financial statements using the
same expense category as would be charged for pagnmecash. The fair value of the restricted stockestricted stock units granted is
recorded to expense on a straight-line basis, wdgigroximates the effective yield method, oventbsting period for the entire award, with an
offsetting increase in stockholders' equity. Famgs to employees and directors, the fair valuketermined based upon the stock price on the
grant date. For nonemployee grants, the fair visliiased on the stock price when the shares vaathwequires the amount to be adjusted in
each subsequent reporting period based on thedhie of the award at the end of the reportingqeeuntil such time as the award has vested.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed ada &t intends to comply with the Code with resgbeteto. Accordingly, the Company will
not be subject to federal income tax as long asiceasset, income, dividend distribution and stoskership tests are met. Many of these
requirements are technical and complex and if wedaneet these requirements we may be subjefetderal, state, and local income tax and
penalties. A REIT's net income from prohibited sactions is subject to 100% penalty tax. The Compamed two taxable REIT subsidiari
("TRS") in 2010 to reduce the impact of the protabtitransaction tax and to avoid penalty for thieling of assets not qualifying as real estate
assets for purposes of the REIT asset tests. Tlai@, if any, associated with such activities igjsct to federal and state income taxes as a
domestic C corporation based upon the TRS' netieco

During 2010, the Company recorded a $426rre tax provision in the accompanying consolidatatement of operations related to
certain limited activities in its TRS.

Underwriting Commissions and Offering Costs

Underwriting and offering costs incurrecconnection with our supplemental equity offeringdecember 2010 totaled approximately
$18.9 million, and with our initial public offerinig 2009 totaled approximately $57.6 million, andrevreflected as a reduction in additional
paid-in capital. Also, see Note 14 for additionatiarwriting fees that are contingently payablefaBexember 31, 2010.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

On January 21, 2010, the FASB issued amatept ASC 820k air Value Measurements and Disclosuresiding new requirements for
disclosures about transfers into and out of Letedsd 2 fair value measurements and additionaladisces about the activity within Level 3
fair value measurements. The adoption of this gquidaon January 1, 2010 did not have any effecturtonsolidated financial statements.

On June 12, 2009, the FASB issued an ugda&&C 810 Consolidationwhich modifies the existing quantitative guidansediin
determining the primary beneficiary of a variabiterest entity ("VIE") by requiring entities to ditatively assess whether an enterprise is a
primary beneficiary, based on whether the entity (lepower to direct the significant activitiestbke VIE, and (ii) an obligation to absorb
losses or the right to receive benefits that cdalghotentially significant to the VIE. The adoptioithis guidance on January 1, 2010 did not
have any effect on our consolidated financial stetets.

On July 21, 2010, the FASB issued an uptiafeéSC 310Receivables by requiring more robust and disaggregated discks about the
credit quality of the Company's loans held for stweent and if applicable, its allowance for crédlises. The objective of enhancing these
disclosures is to improve financial statement userderstanding of (1) the nature of a Companyditrisk associated with its financing
receivables and (2) the Company's assessmenttaidkédn estimating its allowance for credit losses well as changes in the allowance an
reasons for those changes. The adoption of thiatapgd ASC 310 was effective for the Company a3adfember 31, 2010 and did not have a
material effect on the Company's financial stateimen

3. Debt Securities
Mortgage-Backed Securities Available-for-Sale

The table below summarizes the weightedagecoupon, rating and life of the Company's itmests in mortgage backed securities
available for sale, carried at fair value, as o€&uber 31, 2010:

Weighted Weighted

Net Fair Weighted Average
Unrealized Unrealized Value Average Average Life
December 31, 2010 Cost Gains Losses Adjustment  Fair Value Coupon(1) Rating (Years)
CMBS $266,76: $ 9,07« $ (683 % 8,391 $275,15! 5.58% AA- 1.84
RMBS 120,82° 2,49t (797) 1,69¢ 122,52t 0.57% BB- 1.2¢

$387,59: $ 11,56¢ $ (1,480$ 10,08¢ $397,68(

Q) Calculated using the December 31, 201C-month LIBOR rate of 0.2606%

The majority of loans backing the CMBS igtraents are fixed rate instruments. Approximatél$.6 million, or 5%, of the CMBS are
variable rate and pay interest at LIBOR plus a Wigid average spread of 1.30%.
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3. Debt Securities (Continued)

The Company has allocated an amount thedt tines can be no greater than 10% of the Coryipdatal assets to be invested in RMBS
with expected modified durations of less than 12iths in the aggregate. The Company has engagéui gp#nty manager who specializes in
RMBS to execute the trading of RMBS, the cost ofalvtwas $0.4 million for 2010 that has been recdrae an offset to interest income in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operatidsef December 31, 2010, approximately $120.7 onillior 98.5%, of the RMBS are
variable rate and pay interest at LIBOR plus a Wigid average spread of 0.31%. The Company purclzdiseidthe RMBS at a discount that
will be accreted into income over the expected iaimg life of the security. The majority of the imme from this strategy is earned from the
accretion of these discounts.

Mortgage-Backed Securities Held-to-Maturity

The following table summarizes the weighaedrage coupon, rating and life of the Compamyestments in CMBS accounted for at
amortized cost based on the book values as of Dmee®i, 2009 (there were no mortgage-backed sexucdiassified as held-to-maturity as of
December 31, 2010):

Weighted Weighted

Weighted Average
Carrying Average Average Life

December 31, 200! Value Par Value Coupon(l) Rating (years)
Multi-Asset

CMBS $202,64¢ $202,69¢ 5.7% AAA 2.1
Single

Borrower

CMBS 43,25( 53,71 5.4% BB+ 6.3

$245,89¢ $256,41:

(1) Calculated using the December 31, 2009 one morBIOR rate of 0.2309%

The Company's investments in multi-asseBSMvere acquired through a joint venture in whiod €Company owns a 75% controlling
interest and which the Company is required to clisesie under GAAP. The majority of loans backing ttMBS investments are fixed rate

instruments. Approximately $11.0 million, or 5%,tbé CMBS are variable rate and pay interest allFBplus a weighted average spread of
1.44%.

The following table presents the gross alized losses and estimated fair value of the Coyipaecurities that are in an unrealized loss
position as of December 31, 2010. There were nealized losses as of December 31, 2009.

Estimated Unrealized
As of December 31, 201 Fair Value Losses
CMBS $ 1902: $ (689
RMBS 25,72¢ (797)
Total $ 4575. $ (1,480
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As of December 31, 2010, there were 19r#@siwith unrealized losses, none of which wegerded to be other-than-temporarily
impaired. Consistent with its accounting policydascribed in Note 2, the Company considered a nupfldactors in evaluating whether any
of the 19 securities was other-than-temporarilyaingd. The unrealized losses for each of the siesifiad existed for less than 12 months and
the fair values were generally less than five petrbelow their respective amortized cost balanceaddition, the Company did not intend to
sell any individual security, it was not consideradre likely than not that the Company would beséakto sell any individual security prior to
recovering its amortized cost, and there were nien@ credit events that would have caused the fizom to otherwise conclude that it would
not recover its costs.

4. Loans Held for Investment

The Company's investments in mortgagedaants held for investment are accounted for at &meat cost. The following table
summarizes the Company's investments in mortgagefans as of December 31, 2010 and Decembei0B9, 2

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Life

December 31, 2011 Carrying Value  Face Amount Coupon (years)

First mortgage $ 901,84° $ 941,05 6.7% 3.6
Subordinated

debt(1) 473,09 533,81 7.1% 4.9
Loans held ir
securitizatiol

trust 50,29 50,73¢ 5.0% 4.4

Total Loans $ 1,425,24. $ 1,525,60!

(1) Includes two GBP denominated loans with a combfaed value of £92.9 million at the December 31,
2010 spot rate of $1.5¢

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Life
December 31, 200!  Carrying Value  Face Amount Coupon (years)
First Mortgage $ 182,82¢ $ 212,42 8.7% 7.2
Subordinated
Debt 31,69: 42,56( 8.1% 12.€

Total Loans $ 214,52: $§ 254,98
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For the year ended December 31, 2010, tmepany originated and acquired loans as follows:

Balance January 1, 20: $ 214,52:
Acquisitions/origination: 1,352,25:
Capitalized interest(1 3,32
Carrying amount of loans so (28,91)
Loan maturities (114,71)
Principal repaymenti (13,64)
Discount/premium amortizatic 6,33¢
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement 6,07
Balance December 31, 20 $ 1,425,24.

1) Represents accrued interest income on loans wkass tlo not require current payment of intet

All loans were paying in accordance withithierms as of December 31, 2010 and our indiVith#n review process did not note any
issues indicating impairment or requiring furthealeiation. Therefore, no allowance for loan lossas deemed necessary as of December 31,
2010.

For the period ended December 31, 2009Ctmapany originated and acquired loans held foestment as follows:

Originations/acquisition $ 215,04t
Capitalized interest(1 30t
Principal pay down (1,150
Discount/premium amortizatic 31¢
Provision for credit losse —
Balance December 31, 20 $ 214,52:

1) Represents accrued interest income on loans whao®s tlo not require current payment of intel
5. Other Investments

In January 2010, the Company committed $8l8on to acquire a 5.6% interest in a venturaried to acquire assets of a commercial real
estate debt management and servicing businessrpyifioe the opportunity to participate in debt apfunities arising from the venture's spe
servicing business (the "Participation Right")May 2010, the Company made an additional $3.4 eniliommitment to the venture to
maintain at least a 5% ownership and its corresipgn@articipation Right. Because the Company da¢siave control or significant influence
over the venture, the investment is accountedrideuthe cost method. As of December 31, 2010Ctmapany had
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5. Other Investments (Continued)

funded $6.0 million of its commitment. A memberthé Company's board of directors has a $50 invesgtinghe same venture.

Between January and December of 2010, dmpany purchased a total of $9.0 million of pulylichded equity securities that are
classified as available for sale and carried atfalue with changes in fair value recorded to ottenprehensive income (loss). As of
December 31, 2010, the Company sold $1.7 milliothe§e marketable securities and had realized gai$8.3 million. The remaining
marketable securities have an unrealized gain & $llion.

6. Secured Financing Agreements

On August 28, 2009 and September 25, 20@Company entered into multiple Federal ReseawgkB®f New York Term Asset-backed
Securities Lending Facilities ("TALF") through drjbventure with SOF VIII. The TALF loans are nogeourse, bear a fixed interest rate and
mature five years from the loan closing dates. [bhes are collateralized by the Company's multe€BS investments, which are held in a
Master TALF Collateral Account and are under thetaoa of the lender until the loan is satisfied.

Collateral
Debt Carrying Carrying
December 31, 2010 Value Value

August 28, 2009, TALF loans, fixe

rate 3.872%, mature August 20  $ 54,947 $ 66,32¢
September 25, 2009, TALF loans,

fixed rate 3.796%, mature

September 201 116,36¢ 140,94¢
Total $ 171,30 $ 207,27.
Collateral
Debt Carrying Carrying
December 31, 200! Value Value

August 28, 2009, TALF loans, fixe

rate 3.872%, mature August 20 $ 55,03C $ 64,89¢
September 25, 2009, TALF loar

fixed rate 3.796%, mature

September 201 116,36¢ 137,74¢

Total $ 171,39: $ 202,64t

Principal repayments are due on the TAl&ricing when principal is collected on the undedyCMBS securities, which principal can
paid off earlier or later than expected based otatemarket factors including asset sales or befaults. As of December 31, 2010, the
Company had no anticipation of early principal ggpants or loan defaults of the underlying CMBS.

On March 31, 2010, Starwood Property Magg8&ub-1, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-1"), an indirect whodysed subsidiary of the Company
entered into a Master Repurchase and Securitieg@bifthe "Wells Repurchase Agreement") with WEkggo Bank, National Association
("Wells Fargo"). The
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6. Secured Financing Agreements (Continued)

Wells Repurchase Agreement is secured by approzlyn@B895 million of the diversified loan portfolithe "TIAA Assets") purchased from
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of Ao@eon February 26, 2010. The Wells Repurchase Aggaeprovides for asset purchases
of up to $275 million (the "Wells Facility").

Advances under the Wells Repurchase Agraeaterue interest at a per annum pricing rateldguhe sum of (i) 30 day LIBOR plus
(ii) the pricing margin of 3.0%. During the existenof an event of default (as defined in the WRkpurchase Agreement), interest accrues at
the default rate, which is equal to the pricingenalus 4.0%. The maturity date of the Wells RepasehAgreement is May 31, 2013. The Wells
Facility allowed for advances through May 31, 2048.0f December 31, 2010, $274.6 million was oudiag under the Wells Facility.

In connection with the Wells Repurchaseeg®gnent, the Company guarantees the obligation®8f Sub-1 under the Wells Repurchase
Agreement up to a maximum liability of 25% of tiemh currently outstanding repurchase price of @itpased assets.

On August 6, 2010, Starwood Property Maggg&ub-2, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-2"), an indirect whotiysned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a second Master Repurchase and Ses@intract (the "Second Wells Repurchase Agre&ineith Wells Fargo. The Second
Wells Repurchase Agreement is being used by SPM2S3alfinance the acquisition or origination of aoercial mortgage loans (and
participations therein) and mezzanine loans. Thwse Wells Repurchase Agreement provides for ggsehases by the Company of up to
$350 million (the "Second Wells Facility").

Advances under the Second Wells RepurchAgseement accrue interest at a per annum pricitegaqual to the sum of 30 day LIBOR
plus a margin of between 1.75% and 6.0% dependirth@type of asset being financed under the Se¥elts Facility. During the existence
of an event of default (as defined in the Second3\Repurchase Agreement), interest accrues atdfalt rate, which is equal to the pricing
rate plus 4.0%. The initial maturity date of the@wsd Wells Facility is August 6, 2013, subjectwmtone year extension options, each of w
may be exercised by the Company upon the satigfaofi certain conditions set forth in the Secondl$epurchase Agreement. In
connection with the Second Wells Repurchase Agregérntee Company guarantees the obligations of SBMZunder the Wells Repurchase
Agreement up to a maximum liability of either 25%180% of the then currently outstanding repurchage of purchased assets, depending
upon the type of asset being financed on the Sed¢elts Facility. As of December 31, 2010, $4.0 moillwas outstanding under the Second
Wells Facility. The carrying value of the loansqded as collateral under the Second Wells Facildyg $98,767 as of December 31, 2010.

On December 2, 2010, Starwood Property §aare Sub-3, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-3"), an indirect whawned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a Master Repurchase Agreement (th&lh@m Repurchase Agreement") with Goldman Sachdddge Company. The Goldman
Repurchase Agreement will be used to finance theiaition or origination by SPM Sub-3 of commergiadrtgage loans that are eligible for
CMBS securitization. The Goldman Repurchase Agregmpevides for asset purchases of up to $150anilthe "Goldman Facility"). In
connection with the Goldman Repurchase AgreemeatCbmpany guarantees the obligations of SPM SQuiidar the
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6. Secured Financing Agreements (Continued)

Goldman Repurchase Agreement up to a maximumilialoil 25% of the then currently outstanding refharse price of all purchased loans.

Advances under the Goldman Repurchase Aggeeaccrue interest at a per annum pricing rataleq the sum of 30 day LIBOR plus a
margin of between 1.95% and 2.25% depending olotreto-value ratio of the purchased mortgage I@aming the existence of an event of
default (as defined in the Goldman Repurchase Ageed), interest accrues at the default rate, wisi@gual to the applicable pricing rate plus
2.0%. The maturity date of the Goldman Facilitpecember 3, 2012. As of December 31, 2010, $5.lomivas outstanding under the
Goldman Facility. The carrying value of the loatedged as collateral under the Goldman Facility $25,774 as of December 31, 2010.

Under the Wells Repurchase Agreement, #uiid Wells Repurchase Agreement, and the Goldreaari@hase Agreement, the
counterparty retains the sole discretion over bdibther to purchase the loan or security from uk anbject to certain conditions, the market
value of such loan or security for purposes of igeitieing whether we are required to pay margin ®dbunterparty.

On December 3, 2010, SPT Real Estate Swh.@ ("SPT 1I"), a direct, whollyswned subsidiary of the Company, entered intora tear
Credit Agreement (the "Credit Agreement") with BasfkAmerica as administrative agent (the "Agentijl as lender, and the Company and
certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors. The iCAggteement provides for loans of up to $125,19ally, with the possibility of increasing
the amount of the loans to $150,000 (the "Bank mwiefica Facility"). The initial draw under the oktiCredit Agreement were used, in part, to
partially finance the acquisition of a senior seclinote due March 15, 2015 in the amount of $2@b(6i "Purchased Note") from Bank of
America. The Purchased Note is due from certaigiappurpose entities that were formed to hold wutifally all of the assets of a worldwide
operator of hotels, resorts and timeshare propertie

Advances under the Credit Agreement accrigeest at a per annum rate based on LIBOR osa late, at the election of SPT Il. The
margin can vary between 2.35% and 2.50% over LIB&W, between 1.35% and 1.50% over base rate, baste performance of the assets
securing the Purchased Note. The initial maturéiedf the Credit Agreement is November 30, 20Bjext to a 12 month extension option,
exercisable by SPT Il upon satisfaction of certinditions set forth in the Credit Agreement. Bahlmerica retains the sole discretion,
subject to certain conditions, over the market @aificollateral assets for purposes of determimihgther the Company is required to pay
margin to the Bank of America. As of December 311@® $124.8 million was outstanding under the GrAdreement. The carrying value of
the loans pledged as collateral under the Cred@&eagent was $178.8 million as of December 31, 2010.

In connection with the Credit AgreementT3Pentered into a Security Agreement with the Ageinder which SPT Il granted a security
interest in substantially all its assets to the ®ges security for its obligations under the Crédjteement, including, among other things, the
Purchased Note. In connection with the Credit Agrest, the Company entered into a Pledge Agreemigintire Agent, under which the
Company granted a security interest in its memiyeiliskerests in SPT Il to the Agent as securityifsobligations as a guarantor under the
Credit Agreement.
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The Credit Agreement provides for customeargnts of default. If an event of default occurd & continuing, then the Agent may declare
the principal of, and any accrued interest onJdhes made under the Credit Agreement to be dugayable immediately. In addition, upon
the occurrence and during the continuance of antedfedefault, interest will accrue at an additib2% per annum over the rate applicable to
base rate loans.

The following table represents our fivedypencipal repayments schedule for the securezhfimgs assuming no defaults, or expected
extensions of the underlying CMBS assets and thiisWacility, the Second Wells Facility, the Goldm@&acility and the Bank of America
Facility, excluding collateralized debt obligationssecuritization trust (refer to Footnote 7 figaission).

2011 $ 85,80¢
2012 90,49"
2013 403,35
2014 —
2015 and thereafte —
Total $ 579,65¢

Secured financing maturities in 2011 retata portion of the TALF loans used to lever tied.F CMBS. The proceeds from the principal
repayments on the TALF CMBS will be used to pay ddke TALF loans.

7. Securitization and Financing Arrangements

During 2010, the Company participated coenmercial mortgage securitization which generaturecourse match funded financing
with an effective cost of funds of approximatel$%. The Company separated five mortgage loansamithggregate face value of $178 mil
into senior and junior loans. It contributed theefsenior loans, or A notes (the "Contributed L&gngith a face value of approximately
$84 million to the securitization trust and receiapproximately $92 million in proceeds, while miag $94 million of junior interests. The
Contributed Loans are secured by office, retail imddistrial properties and have remaining matwgibietween four and seven years.

Each of the five Contributed Loans wasaesitbriginated or acquired by the Company as paatfakt mortgage loan. In connection with
the securitization, two of the first mortgage loareye each split by the Company into an A noteaBdnote and three of the first mortgage
loans had each been previously split into A ndBesotes and C notes.

The secured financing liability relateswm of the Contributed Loans that we securitizetidid not qualify for sale treatment under
GAAP.

As of December 31, 2010, the balance ofdhas pledged to the securitization trust was $8@llion and the related liability of the
securitization trust was $54.1 million.
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For the other three Contributed Loans,e@ffre control" was surrendered and the loans néd to the securitization qualified for sales
treatment under GAAP. The sale of these loanstebin a gain of $9.3 million, which is includedrigalized gain on sale of investments in the
2010 consolidated statement of operations.

8. Derivatives and Hedging Activity
Risk Management Objective of Using Derivativ

The Company is exposed to certain riskragifrom both its business operations and econaaiglitions. The Company principally
manages its exposures to a wide variety of busimedoperational risks through management of its basiness activities. The Company
manages economic risks, including interest rateigm exchange, liquidity, and credit risk primatily managing the amount, sources, and
duration of its debt funding and the use of demxafinancial instruments. Specifically, the Compamters into derivative financial instrume
to manage exposures that arise from businesstégitiat result in the receipt or payment of fatknown and uncertain cash amounts, the
value of which are determined by interest ratesfarglgn exchange rates. Our derivative financiatiuments are used to manage differences
in the amount, timing, and duration of the Compsikyiown or expected cash receipts and known orategeash payments principally related
to our investments and borrowings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Forecasted Interest Payments

The Company's objectives in using interatg derivatives are to add stability to interegte;se and to manage its exposure to interes
movements. To accomplish this objective, the Comgaimarily uses interest rate swaps as part ahiterest rate risk management strategy.
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hexgalse the receipt of variable amounts from a deyparty in exchange for the Company
making fixed-rate payments over the life of theesgnents without exchange of the underlying notianadunt.

In connection with the our repurchase agesgs, the Company has entered into four inteegéstswaps that have been designated as casl
flow hedges of forecasted interest payments. ABeafember 31, 2010, the aggregate notional amouhedhterest rate swaps designated as
cash flow hedges of interest rate risk totaled $823illion. Under these agreements, the Companlypaif fixed monthly coupons at a fixed
rates ranging from 0.722% to 1.155% of the noti@mbunt to the counterparty and receive floating taBOR. The interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges risk have maturéieging from November 2012 to November 2015.

The effective portion of changes in the failue of derivatives designated and that qualifycash flow hedges is recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income and is subsequentlgssified into earnings in the period that the hddgeecasted transaction affects earnings.
The ineffective portion of the change in fair vabfehe derivatives is recorded directly in earsinQuring the year ended December 31, 2010
the Company recorded $46 of losses as hedge itigffaess.
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Amounts reported in accumulated other cahensive income related to derivatives designagerhsh flow hedges will be reclassified to
interest expense as interest payments are made @ompany's variablete debt. Over the next twelve months, the Compsatiynates that
additional $1.8 million will be reclassified as merease to interest expense. The Company is hgdlgiexposure to the variability in future
cash flows for forecasted transactions over a mamirperiod of 59 months.

Non-designated Hedges

Derivatives not designated as hedges areadiges that do not meet the criteria for hedgeoainting under GAAP or which the Company
has elected not to designate as hedges. The Condpasynot use these derivatives for speculativeqaas but they are instead used to manage
our exposure to foreign exchange rate movementénagist rate changes.

During 2010, the Company entered into &sef forward contracts whereby the Company agi@ssll an amount of GBP for an agreed
upon amount of USD at various dates through Octob2013. These forward contracts were executettémomically fix the USD amount of
GBP-denominated cash flows expected to be receslated to the Company's GRIenominated loan investments. Changes in the &hirevol
derivatives not designated in hedging relationshigsrecorded directly in earnings and totaled #7ldon of losses for the year ended
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, thegaomnhad 16 foreign exchange forward derivativeh witotal notional amount of GBP
101.1 million that were not designated as hedges.

During 2010, the Company entered into thinéerest rate swaps that were not designateddgeleUnder these agreements, the Company
will pay fixed monthly coupons at a fixed ratesgary from 1.88% to 2.23% of the notional amounthi® counterparty and receive floating |
LIBOR. These interest rate swaps are used to thmeifprice exposure of certain loan assets duedong#s in benchmark USD-LIBOR swap
rates from which the pricing of these loans iswksti The loan assets associated with these swaesrg carried at fair value, with change
fair value recorded through earnings, see NoteA$3f December 31, 2010, the aggregate notionalataf these interest rate swaps totaled
$128 million. Changes in the fair value of theseriest rate swaps are recorded directly in earrangstotaled $0.1 million of losses for the
year ended December 31, 20
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The table below presents the fair valuthefCompany's derivative financial instruments a$ as their classification on the balance s
as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 200gthtat there were no derivative financial instratseduring the period from August 17,
2009 (Inception) to December 31, 2009).

Tabular Disclosure of Fair Values of Derivative Ingruments

Derivatives in a Asset Position Derivatives in a Liability Position

As of As of As of As of
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair
Location Value  Location Value Location Value Location Value
Derivatives designated as
hedging instrument
Interest rate swaps Derivative $ 89 N/A $ — Derivative $ 1,71¢ N/A $ —
Assets Liabilities
Total derivatives designated as $ 8¢ $ — $ 1,71« $ —
hedging instrument
Derivativesnot designated as
hedging instrument
Interest rate swaps Derivative  $ 24& N/A $ — Derivative $ 30 N/A G —
Assets Liabilities
Foreign exchange contracts N/A — N/A — Derivative 7,385 N/IA —
Liabilities
Total derivativesiot designated $ 24¢ $ — $ 7,68¢ $ —

as hedging instrumen

The Company estimates that substantiallgfahe existing losses recognized in accumulatbeér comprehensive income as of
December 31, 2010 will be reclassified into earsidgring the year ending December 31, 2011.

The tables below present the effect ofGbenpany's derivative financial instruments on tbesolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2010.

Cash flow hedges impact for the year ended DeceBihe2010:

($'s in thousands)

Location of
loss
reclassified
from
Amount of loss accumulatec Amount of loss Location of gain Amount of gain
recognized in OClI reclassified from recognized in recognized in
OcClI into income  accumulated OCI income on income on
Derivative type for on derivative (effective into income derivative derivative
cash flow hedge (effective portion) portion) (effective portion)  (ineffective portion) (ineffective portion)
Interest Interest
Interest Rat $ 3,367 Expense $ 1,74% Expense $ 46
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Non-designated derivatives impact for the year endeceimber 31, 2010:

Amount of Loss

Location of Loss Recognized in
Derivatives Not Designated Recognized in Income on
as Hedging Instruments Income on Derivative Derivative
Interest Rate Contract  Unrealized loss on  $ 1,68t

currency hedges ar
interest rate swaf

Foreign Exchange Unrealized loss on $ 7,49¢
Contracts currency hedges ar
interest rate swaf

Credit-risk-related Contingent Features

The Company has entered into agreemenisagitain of its derivative counterparties thattagmprovisions where if the Company were
to default on any of its indebtedness, includinfadi where repayment of the indebtedness hasewt hccelerated by the lender, the
Company may also be declared in default on itsvdévie obligations. The Company also has certairemgents that contain provisions where
if the ratio of the Company's principal amountrudébtedness to total assets at any time exceedsti@&fthe Company could be declared in
default on its derivative obligations.

As of December 31, 2010, the fair valuel@fivatives in a net liability position, which intles accrued interest but excludes any
adjustment for nonperformance risk related to tteggeements, was $9.6 million. As of December 8102the Company has not posted any
collateral related to these agreements. If the Gomphad breached any of these provisions at Deae®ih@010, it could have been require
settle its obligations under the agreements at thehination liability value of $9.6 million.

9. Related-Party Transactions

The Company entered into a management axgnetewith its Manager upon closing of its initiallgic offering, which provides for an
initial term of three years with automatic one-yeatensions thereafter unless terminated as descbhblow. Under the management
agreement, the Manager, subject to the oversigbtioboard of directors, is required to managedéneto-day activities of the Company, for
which the Manager receives a base management feis afigible for an incentive fee and stock awaiidsee Manager is also entitled to charge
the Company for certain expenses incurred on belidtfe Company, as described below.

Base Management Fee.The base management fee is 1.5% of our stodktsllequity per annum and calculated and payalzgerly in
arrears in cash. For purposes of calculating theag@ment fee, our stockholders' equity meanshé&3um of (1) the net proceeds from all
issuances of our equity securities since inceg@tincated on a pro rata daily basis for such issaa during the fiscal quarter of any such
issuance), plus (2) our retained earnings at tdeoéthe most recently completed calendar quawtéhéut taking into account any non-cash
equity compensation expense incurred in curreprior periods), less (b) any amount that we payepurchase our common stock since
inception. It also excludes (1) any unrealized gaind losses and other non-cash items that have
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impacted stockholders' equity as reported in marfcial statements prepared in accordance with G&RAR (2) one-time events pursuant to
changes in GAAP, and certain non-cash items narefise described above, in each case after dismsbetween our Manager and our
independent directors and approval by a majoritgwfindependent directors. As a result, our stolddrs' equity, for purposes of calculating
the management fee, could be greater or less figaamount of stockholders' equity shown on oumfiia statements.

For the year ended December 31, 2010 angehiod ended December 31, 2009, approximatelyl®hidlion and $5.1 million,
respectively, was incurred for base management ééeghich $3.8 million and $3.4 million was payalas of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009, respectively.

Incentive Fee. From August 17, 2009 (the effective date ofManagement Agreement), our Manager is entitldoktpaid the incentive
fee described below with respect to each calendarter (or part thereof that the management agneeisién effect) if (1) our Core Earnings
(as defined below) for the previous 12-month pefmdpart thereof that the management agreememteBect) exceeds an 8% threshold, and
(2) our Core Earnings for the 12 most recently cletel calendar quarters (or part thereof that taeagement agreement is in effect) is gre
than zero.

The incentive fee will be an amount, nesléhan zero, equal to the difference betweerhglptoduct of (x) 20% and (y) the difference
between (i) our Core Earnings (as defined belowjte previous 12-month period (or part thereof tha management agreement is in effect),
and (ii) the product of (A) the weighted averagehef issue price per share of our common stocl of aur public offerings multiplied by the
weighted average number of all shares of commarksiatstanding (including any restricted stock syréiny restricted shares of common st
and other shares of common stock underlying awgmraisted under our equity incentive plans) in sugvipus 12month period (or part there
that the Management Agreement is in effect), anyd3@, and (2) the sum of any incentive fee paidupnManager with respect to the first th
calendar quarters of such previous 12-month pdoo@art thereof that the management agreementdfféct). For purposes of calculating the
incentive fee prior to the completion of a 12-mopériod following the effective date of the managetagreement, Core Earnings was
calculated on an annualized basis.

One half of each quarterly installmentlod thcentive fee is payable in shares of our comsatock so long as the ownership of such
additional number of shares by our Manager wouldviwate the 9.8% stock ownership limit set foirttour articles of incorporation, after
giving effect to any waiver from such limit thatrdBoard of Directors may grant in the future. Teeainder of the incentive fee is payable in
cash. The number of shares to be issued to our §¢agequal to the dollar amount of the portiohef quarterly installment of the incentive
fee payable in shares divided by the average ofltdsng prices of our common stock on the NY SEtlfer five trading days prior to the date
which such quarterly installment is paid.

Core Earnings is a non-GAAP measure defag@AAP net income (loss) excluding non-cash gaquitnpensation expense, the incentive
fee, unrealized gains, losses, depreciation andtaration of real estate, or other non-cash itefile incentive fee shall be payable one-half in
common stock so long as the ownership of shardséanager does not exceed the 9.8% stock owpelistit set
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9. Related-Party Transactions (Continued)

forth in the Company's articles of incorporatioheTremainder of the incentive fee will be payahleash.

As of December 31, 2010, $1.2 million haerbaccrued relating to the earnings which areeabiwy 8% hurdle described above and is
included in related party payable on the consadiddtalance sheets. There was no incentive feea@aswf December 31, 2009.

Expense ReimbursementThe Company is required to reimburse the Manfigeoperating expenses incurred by the Managdyedralf
of the Company. In addition, pursuant to the teofithe management agreement, the Company is rebuaneimburse the Manager for the
cost of legal, tax, consulting, auditing and ottienilar services rendered for the Company by thedder's personnel provided that such costs
are no greater than those that would be payalihe i§ervices were provided by an independent ffarty. The expense reimbursement is not
subject to any dollar limitations but is subjectéview by the Company's independent directors tii®@year ended December 31, 2010 and the
period ended December 31, 2009, approximately @dllin and $0.2 million, respectively, was incudrior compensation and other
reimbursable expenses, of which approximately $tilBon and $0.1 million was payable as of Decembgr2010 and December 31, 2009,
respectively.

Termination Fee. After the initial three-year term, the Compamay terminate the management agreement withouecasglefined in
the management agreement, with an affirmative tvims$ vote by the Company's independent directods180 days written notice to the
Manager. Upon termination without cause, the Man&gdue a termination fee equal to three timesstim of the average annual base
management fee and incentive fee earned by the déamaer the preceding eight calendar quartergeNnination fee is payable if the
Manager is terminated for cause, as defined imthragement agreement, which can be done at anwiitm&0 days written notice from the
Company's board of directors.

10. Stockholders' Equity

The Company's authorized capital stock isteef 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock,1$pa0 value per share, and 500,000,000
shares of common stock, $0.01 par value per share.

On August 17, 2009, the Company sold 47,@Xbshares of its common stock (including 1,000 8i8ares sold to an entity controlled by
Starwood Capital Group pursuant to a simultaneoivafe placement) in an initial public offeringaat offering price of $20 per share.

In December 2010, the Company completaalev-on offering of 23,000,000 shares of its conmsbock at a price of $19.73 per share.

The Company's board of directors declardividend of $0.22 per share of common stock fergbarter ended March 31, 2010 on
March 4, 2010. The dividend was paid on April 161@ to common stockholders of record as of March2810. The board also declared a
dividend of $0.25 per share of common stock forgharter ended June 30, 2010. The dividend wasguaitily 15, 2010 to common
stockholders of record as of June 30, 2010. Thedbfoather declared a dividend of $0.33 per shémmmon stock for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010. The dividend was paid on Octthe2010 to common stockholders of record asepft@mber 30, 2010. On November
2010,
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10. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

the board declared a dividend of $0.40 per shaomwimon stock for the quarter ended December 310.2The dividend was paid on

January 17, 2011 to common stockholders of recomf ®ecember 31, 2010. The dividends declare®i®2epresented ordinary income
distributions for federal income tax purposes. @ivédends declared during the period from AugustZ2009 (Inception) to December 31, 2009
represented return of capital distributions forefed income tax purposes.

Equity Incentive Plans

The Company has reserved an aggregatd ®? 500 shares of common stock for issuance uhéestarwood Property Trust, Inc. Equity
Plan and Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Manager ty@lan and an additional 100,000 shares of comsbaek for issuance under the Starw
Property Trust, Inc. Non-Executive Director StodlrR These plans provide for the issuance of ietlistock or restricted stock units. The
holders of awards of restricted stock or restricteatk units will be entitled to receive dividermts'distribution equivalents," which will be
payable at such time dividends are paid on the Gmyip outstanding common shares.

The Company granted each of its four indelpat directors 2,200 restricted shares concuyrevith its initial public offering, with a total
fair value of approximately $175. The grants vesally in three annual installments on each ofithg second, and third anniversaries of the
grant date, subject to the director's continuediser In addition, effective August 19, 2010, then@pany granted each of its four independent
directors an additional 1,000 restricted sharet) witotal fair value of approximately $75. Thergraill vest in one annual installment on the
first anniversary of the grant, subject to the clio€'s continued service. For the year ended Deeelib, 2010, approximately $86 was inclu
in general and administrative expense relatedgathnts.

In August 2009, the Company granted 1,037 festricted stock units with a fair value of appmately $20.8 million at the grant date to
the Manager under the Manager Equity Plan. Thetgnagst ratably in quarterly installments over éhyears beginning on October 1, 2009,
with 86,458 shares vesting each quarter, respégtiveaccordance with the supplemental equity rifiiggin December 2010, the Company
granted 1,075,000 restricted stock units with evfalue of approximately $21.8 million at the grdate to the Manager under the Manager
Equity Plan. The grants will vest ratably in qudsténstallments over three years beginning on M&t, 2010, with 89,583 shares vesting ¢
quarter, respectively.For the year ended Decembe2(@®L0O and the period from August 17, 2009 (Inceptto December 31, 2009,
approximately $7.4 million and $2.4 million werecinded in management fees related to these grasitst December 31, 2010, 432,292 sh
had vested and were issued to the Manager. Theeeneeshares issued to the Manager as of Decerib2089.

The Company granted to an employee 5,08®icted stock units with a fair value of $100 untlee Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Equity
Plan in August 2009. The award was scheduled tbra&sbly in quarterly installments over three pelaeginning on October 1, 2009. Upon the
departure of this employee, the Company issued1sBh&ares of its common stock relating to the vegtetion of the award, while the
remaining 3,750 unvested units were forfeited.theryear ended December 31, 2010, approximatelywsistincluded in general and
administrative expense in relation to this grant.
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10. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

Schedule of Non-Vested Share and Share Equivalents

Restricted Restricted Restricted
Stock Grantsto  Stock Unit Stock Unit
Independent Grants to Grants to
Directors Employees Manager Total
Beginning
Balance 8,80( 4,58: 951,04 964,42¢
Granted 6,20( — 1,075,000 1,081,20!
Vested (2,199 (833 (345,83) (348,86()
Forfeited (2,200 (3,750 — (5,950
December 3:
2010 10,60: — 1,680,20¢ 1,690,80!
Vesting Schedule
Restricted Restricted Restricted
Stock Grants to Stock Unit Stock Unit
Independent Grants to Grants to
Directors Employees Manager Total
2011 6,932 — 748,95¢ 755,89(
2012 2,931 — 617,70¢ 620,64!
2013 732 — 313,54: 314,27
Total 10,60! — 1,680,20 1,690,80!

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive incomeimprised of the following, net of noncontrollingémnests in consolidated subsidiaries:

December 31, 2010
Cumulative unrealized gain on availe-for-

sale securitie $ 9,82¢
Effective portion of cumulative loss on cash

flow hedges (1,625)
Total $ 8,20z
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12. Net Income per Share

Net income per share for the year endeceBer 31, 2010 is computed as follows (amounteongands except share and per share):

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period
August 19,
2009
(Inception) to
December 31,
2009

Basic and Diluted:

Net income (loss) attributable to Starwood Prope@riyst, Inc.  $ 57,04¢
Weighted average number of shares of common stock

outstanding 49,138,72
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 1.1¢
Weighted average number of shares of diluted stock

outstanding 50,021,822
Diluted net income(loss) per sh: $ 1.14

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

$

$

$

(3,017)

47,575,63
(0.06)

47,575,63
(0.06)

GAAP establishes a hierarchy of valuatiechhiques based on the observability of inputizetllin measuring financial instruments at
values. GAAP establishes market-based or obseruanlgs as the preferred source of values, follobgstaluation models using management
assumptions in the absence of market inputs. Tilee tlevels of the hierarchy are described below:

Level [I—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

Level ll—Prices are determined using other significant alzg#e inputs. Observable inputs are inputs thagrotarket
participants would use in pricing a security. Thesgy include quoted prices for similar securitiaggrest rates, prepayment speeds,

credit risk and others.

Level lll—Prices are determined using significant unobseevadguts. In situations where quoted prices or plagde inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment) unobservahfauiits may be used. Unobservable
inputs reflect our own assumptions about the fadioat market participants would use in pricingaaset or liability, and would be

based on the best information available.

Any changes to the valuation methodologl Ivé reviewed by our management to ensure thegdsmare appropriate. The methods used
may produce a fair value calculation that may reoirtolicative of net realizable value or reflectofefuture fair values. Furthermore, while the
Company anticipates that its valuation methods bégleppropriate and consistent with other marketg@ants, the use of different
methodologies, or assumptions, to determine thevédile of certain financial instruments could tegua different estimate of fair value at the
reporting date. The Company uses inputs that aremuas of the measurement date, which may ingheti®ds of market dislocation, during

which price transparency may be reduced.
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The following table presents the Compafigancial instruments carried at fair value on eurging basis in the consolidated balance sheet
as of December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010

Total Level | Level Il Level Il

Mortgage-

backed

securities $ 397,68 $ — $ 397,68( $ —
Loans held-for-

sale, at fair

value 144,16: — — 144,16
Other

investment: 8,171 8,171 — —
Derivative asse! 337 337
Derivative

liabilities (9,400 — (9,400 —
Total $ 540,95 $ 8,177 $ 388,61° $ 144,16
* There were no available-for-sale mortgage-backedrgges, other investments or derivative liabégias of

December 31, 2009. Therefore, no comparative ialpeesentec

The changes in investments classified aglUé are as follows for the year ended Decenier2010:

Beginning balanc—January 1, 201 $ —
Purchases of loans h-for-sale at fair valu 144,16:
Ending balanc—December 31, 201 $ 144,16

In December 2010 the Company originatedghoans that it intends to sell in the near tekhthe time of the origination, the Company
elected to account for these loans at fair valire dssociated interest rate derivative was nogdated as a hedging instrument for accounting
purposes. As a result, changes in the fair valubefnterest rate derivative are reported in t@mpanying consolidated statements of
operations. It is expected that changes in thevidire of the three loans, which will also be releat through earnings as a result of the
Company's fair value election, will materially aff¢he changes in the fair value of the interett darivative. The unpaid principal balance on
the loans was 143.9 million at December 31, 2010.

GAAP requires disclosure of fair value imfmtion about financial instruments, whether orneabgnized in the financial statements, for
which it is practical to estimate the value. Inemw/here quoted market prices are not availakiteyditues are based upon the estimation of
discount rates to estimated future cash flows usiagket yields or other valuation methodologiesn€derable judgment is necessary to
interpret market data and develop estimated fdirevaAccordingly, fair values are not necessarilgicative of the amount the Company could
realize on disposition of the financial instrumefitee use of different market assumptions or edtomanethodologies could have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

The fair value of cash and cash equivajextsrued interest and accounts payable approxintiag¢ér carrying value due to their short term
nature. CMBS and RMBS securities are valued by
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13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

reviewing broker quotes from dealers in those s@esras well as other available market data seudéscounted cash flows, credit and tenant
review as well as other quantitative and qualimfactors are evaluated to estimate the fair vafuir loan portfolio.

Currently, the Company uses interest raps to manage its interest rate risk and foreigrency forwards to manage foreign exchange
risk. The valuation of these instruments is detagdiusing widely accepted valuation techniquesittinly discounted cash flow analysis on
expected cash flows of each derivative. To compth ¥he provisions of GAAP, the Company incorposateedit valuation adjustments to
appropriately reflect both its own nonperformarisk and the respective counterparty's nonperformaisk in the fair value measurements

The fair value of secured financing famhtis determined based on projected future digeoucash flows, current interest rates,
assessment of the yield curve environment andtcaediysis of the Company's credit.

The following table presents the fair vatdall of the Company's financial instruments oatried at fair value on the consolidated bal:
sheet:

Fair Fair
Value as of Value as of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Financial Assets

CMBS(a) $ — $ 249,45
Loans $ 1,319,97" $ 215,57!
Other investment $ 6,00 $ —
Financial Liabilities:
Secured financing

agreement $ 637,49¢ $ 170,86¢

(a}—During 2010, all CMBS were reclassified to "Availe-for-Sale" from "Hel-to-Maturity”
14. Commitments and Contingencies

In connection with our initial public ofieg, the Company is required to pay $27.2 millidrunderwriters' fees if Core Earnings excee
8% performance threshold over four consecutivetgumas defined in the purchase agreement entaiedith the underwriters. Based on the
Company's original and current business plan,peets to achieve this level of earnings. Therefdre Company recorded a deferred liability
and an offsetting reduction in additional paid-apital for the full $27.2 million and expects toygtiout over the next twelve months.

As described in Note 5, as of DecemberB1p, the Company has unfunded commitments tot&g million related to an investment.

On July 2, 2010, the Company closed on% p@rticipation in a $138 million renovation loar the Hyatt Regency New Orleans. The
year loan is expected to be advanced over a 12mpantod and has an 11% coupon rate. The Compsingte of the loan is $69 million. As
December 31,
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14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

2010 the Company's unfunded obligation relatethimlban was approximately $54.3 million, whicteigoected to be funded over the next six
months.

Management is not aware of any other cohied obligations, legal proceedings, or any otftettingent obligations incurred in the norr
course of business that would have a material adveffect on the Company's financial statements.

15. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table summarizes our quagtéiancial data which, in the opinion of manageineeflects all adjustments, consisting only
of normal recurring adjustments, necessary foirgfasentation of our results of operations:

For the Three-Month Periods Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31

2010:
Net interest margi $ 12,39¢ $ 17,97¢ $ 22,82: $ 24,53t
Net income 6,26( 11,41( 23,28: 17,88¢
Net income allocable to Starwood Prope

Trust 5,941 10,84¢ 22,68: 17,57:
Total earnings per she—Basic(a) $ 01z $ 028 % 047 $ 0.3¢
Total earnings per she—Diluted(a) $ 01z $ 02z $ 047 $ 0.3¢
2009:
Net interest margi $ $ 612* $ 4,411
Net (loss) a,77* (809)
Net (loss) allocable to Starwood Property T (1,919 (1,099

Total (loss) per sha—Basic(a)
Total (loss) per sha—Diluted(a)

(0.09*$  (0.02)
(0.09*$  (0.02

©® &
©® &H

* Represents the period from August 17, 2009 (Inoaptio September 30, 20C
16. Subsequent Events

On March 1, 2011, the Company's board kfatiors declared a dividend of $0.42 per shar¢gh@first quarter of 2010, which is payable
on April 15, 2011 to common stockholders of recasbf March 31, 2011.
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Prior Face Carrying Interest Payment Maturity
Description/Location Liens(1) Amount Amount Rate(3) Terms(2) Date
First Mortgages
Industrial / Various, Fl $ 11,09¢ $ 19,94 $ 14,38¢ 8.1¢% 1/0* 8/31/202:
Industrial / Various, Fl 30,23¢ 9,272 4,722 8.16% /0 8/31/202:
Retail / Orland Park, Il — 2,487 2,46: 24.16% P&l 12/31/201.
Office / Chicago, IL — 21,66( 21,47¢ 13.1% 1/10* 6/1/201*
Hotel / Various, Worldwid¢ — 204,40« 178,78 L+1.75% P&l 11/12/201!
Industrial / Various, Fl — 11,09¢ 9,51¢ 7.8(% P&l 8/31/201°
Retail / Orland Park, Il — 13,39¢ 13,27: 5.0(% P&l 12/31/201.
Hotel / Laguna Beach, C — 18,00( 17,87: 9.0(% 110 21/1/201:
Hotel/Various, USA — 73,72: 72,517 9.5(% /10 1/1/201¢
Office / Various, USA — 39,14¢ 39,43t 7.64% P&l 10/1/201.:
Retail, Chicago, IL — 85,78( 86,36¢ 7.15% P&l 9/1/201:
Mixed Use / Minnetonka, M! — 9,721 9,837 7.65% P&l 9/1/201:
Mixed Use/ Minnetonka, M — 23,23( 23,48: 7.68% P&l 9/1/201.
Mixed Use/Minnetonka, M — 23,18¢ 23,44 8.1(% P&l 9/1/201:
Office/ Fort Worth, TX — 28,77 29,09¢ 7.45% P&l 10/1/201.
Retail/Various, US£ — 70,92¢ 71,34¢ 8.25% P&l 7/1/201:
Office/Chicago, IL — 37,34( 37,02¢ 5.0(% 1/10* 6/1/201*
Hotel/New Orleans, L4 — 14,69° 12,33¢ 11.0% /0 7/10/201¢
Retail/Chester, N — 15,30( 15,17« 7.7%% 1/10* 10/5/201!
Hotel / New York, NY — 26,50( 26,25( 8.15% 1/10* 11/1/201:
Retail/Various, US# — 25,90: 25,77¢ 4.7(% 1/10* 1/6/201¢
Various/ Vail, CO — 33,00( 32,690 6.2€% /0 6/11/201:
Hotel / Various, US/ — 14,00( 14,07: 10.0% /10 1/6/201:
Hotel / Various, US£ — 110,00( 110,46¢ 6.0(% 1/10* 1/6/201¢
Hotel/Various, USA — 45,00( 45,19: 10.41% 1/10* 1/6/201¢
Hotel / Estes Park, C — 8,00( 7,92( 5.0(% P&l 1/6/201¢
Hotel/ Estes Park, C — 7,30C 7,221 12.3% P&l 1/6/201¢
Subordinated Debt & Mezzanin
Industrial/Various, US# $ 32,52( $ 57,18. $ 43,65¢ 8.1¢% 1/0* 8/31/202:
Industrial / Various, US# 45,377 15,21 8,61¢ 8.16% /0 8/31/202:
Retail / Various, US# 100,00( 42,40( 42,04* 14.28% 1/10* 11/1/201!
Retail/Houston, T 57,31% 30,76: 30,86¢ 7.66% P&l 4/1/201:
Hotel/New York, NY 55,00( 15,00( 13,74¢ 10.0% /10 11/25/201:
Office/Los Angeles, C# 114,93t 79,73( 80,71¢ 7.3(% P&l 5/11/201:
Office/New York, NY 262,83. 11,63¢ 9,93¢ 7.1% P&l 7/11/201
Retail/Columbus, OF 320,00( 85,00( 69,35 6.97% /0 8/8/201"
Hotel/Various, UK 1,164,301 144,20! 121,21¢ 3L+2.24% /10 10/5/201:
Hotel/ Estes Park, C — 7,80( 7,722 10.0% P&l 1/6/201¢
Retail/Various, US# — 8,08: 8,04: 11.81% 1/10* 1/6/201¢
Hotel/Various, USA — 37,00( 37,17¢ 11.01% 1/10* 1/6/201¢
$ 219361 $ 1,52560 $ 1,42524
Notes to Schedule IV:
1) Represents third-party priority liens. Third papyrtions of pari-passu participations are not adber®d prior liens. Additionally, excludes the oatsting debt on
third party joint ventures of underlying borrowers.
) P&I = principal and interest; I/O = interest onl§Q* = principal payments begin later in loan pekio

3) L = one month Libor rate, 3L = three month Libotera
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For the year ended December 31, 2010, ipctelated to the loans originated and loans aegliby the company is as follows:

Beginning Balance, at December 31, 2! $ 214,52:
Acquisitions/Originatior 1,352,25:
Capitalized Interes 3,328
Carrying amount of loans so (28,91)
Loan maturities (114,71)
Principal repayment (13,642)
Discount/premium amortizatic 6,33¢
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement 6,07
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 1,425,24.

From inception to December 31, 2009, atgtikélated to the loans originated and loans aeguiy the company is as follows:

Originations/acquisition $ 215,04t
Capitalized Interes 30E
Principal pay down (2,150
Discount/premium amortizatic 31¢
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 214,52:

98




Table of Contents

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and ProceduresWe maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatedesigned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed parguo the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aediithe "Exchange Act"), is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pienieds specified in the SEC's rules and formsthatisuch information is accumulated :
communicated to our management, including the GExefcutive Officer, as appropriate, to allow timdpcisions regarding required
disclosures.

As of the end of the period covered by tkgort, we conducted an evaluation, under thersigien and with the participation of our
management, including the Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, of the effectivenesgivé design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on Hadw&tion, our Chief Executive Officer and Chieh&icial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivef ghe end of the period covered by this report.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for establisaimgmaintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting. Our internal control o¥egrancial reporting is a process designed undesstipervision of our principal executive and
principal financial officers to provide reasonablsurance regarding the reliability of financigdoging and the preparation of our financial
statements for external reporting purposes in aagare with accounting principles generally acceptetie United States of America.

As of December 31, 2010, our managemendwucted an assessment of the effectiveness of tamad control over financial reporting
based on the framework establishedhiternal Control—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafribe
Treadway Commission. Based on this assessmentmanagement has concluded that our internal coote financial reporting as of
December 31, 2010 is effective.

Our internal control over financial repagiincludes policies and procedures that pertathéaonaintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactiansl dispositions of assets; provide reasonableasses that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statesin accordance with accounting principles gaheaccepted in the United States of
America, and that receipts and expenditures argheaade only in accordance with authorizationswfrnanagement and directors; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of our assets that could
have a material effect on our financial statements.

The effectiveness of our internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2010b&en audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report appearing on pages 64-6%isfAnnual Report on Form 10-K, which
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrd our internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2010.

Changes to Internal Control Over FinandrRgporting. No change in internal control over financigiagting (as defined in Rule 13a-15
(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during theryzaled December 31, 2010 that has materially @ffieor is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial repagi

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance.

Information regarding the Company's dirextincluding the audit committee and audit comeeittinancial experts, and executive officers
and compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securkirshange Act of 1934, as amended, will be includettie Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business CoraautEthics for all directors, officers and emplayeéthe Company which is available on
website at www.starwoodpropertytrust.com. In additistockholders may request a free copy of thee@bddusiness Conduct and Ethics fr«

Starwood Property Trust, Inc.
Attention: Investor Relations
591 West Putnam Avenue
Greenwich, CT 06830

(202) 422-7700

We have also adopted a Code of Ethics fimcal Executive Officer and Senior Financial iOéfrs setting forth a code of ethics
applicable to our principal executive officer, mijpal financial officer and principal accountindioér, which is available on our website at
www.starwoodpropertytrust.com. Stockholders mayiest a free copy of the Code of Ethics for Prinicipeecutive Officer and Senior
Financial Officers from the address and phone nurabeforth above.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have also adopted Corporate Governanggeles, which are available on our website atwatarwoodpropertytrust.com.
Stockholders may request a free copy of the CotpdBavernance Guidelines from the address and phaméer set forth above under

ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item wak included in the Proxy Statement and is incotgdraerein by reference.
Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficikOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Métrs.

The information required by this item wak included in the Proxy Statement and is incotgdraerein by reference.
ltem 13. Certain Relationship and Related Transetions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item wak included in the Proxy Statement and is incofgdraerein by reference.
Iltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item wak included in the Proxy Statement and is incotgdraerein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes.
(@) Documents filed as part of this repc
(1) Financial Statements:
See Item 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemedtaty”, filed herewith, for a list of financial staments.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate.
(3)  Exhibits Files:

Eﬁltljl.)lt Description
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of StarwBmperty Trust, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's QuartBdyport on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 200¢

3.2 Bylaws of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. (Incorperhby reference to Exhibit 3.2 of t
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.1 Private Placement Purchase Agreement, dated Adgu&009, between Starwood Prope
Trust, Inc. and SPT Investment, LLC (Incorporatgddference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.z Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 1792@hong Starwood Property Trust, I
SPT Investment, LLC and SPT Management, LLC (Inoafed by reference to Exhibit 10.2
of the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.z Management Agreement, dated August 17, 2009, ar8&igManagement, LLC ar
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. (Incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.4 Co-Investment and Allocation Agreement, dated ¥sid 7, 2009, among Starwood Property
Trust, Inc., SPT Management, LLC and Starwood @ag@toup Global, L.P. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's QarrtReport on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 200¢

10.t Starwood Property Trust, Inc. N-Executive Director Stock Plan (Incorporated by refiee
to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's Quarterly Repartrmrm 1(-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.€ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Indegent Directors (Incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's QuartReport on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 200¢

10.7 Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Manager Equity Rlanorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 of the Company's Quarterly Report annfr 1(-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.¢ Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated Asidly, 2009, between Starwood Property
Trust, Inc. and SPT Management, LLC (Incorporatgddference to Exhibit 10.8 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.¢ Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Equity Plan (Incogied by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of 1
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q filed November 16, 200¢
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Exhibit
No

Description

10.1¢

10.11

10.1%

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.z

32.1

32.2

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated Asidiy, 2009, between Starwood Property
Trust, Inc. and Barbara J. Anderson (Incorporateteberence to Exhibit 10.10 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q filed November 16, 200¢

Underwriting Agreement, dated as of August 11, 2@08ong Starwood Property Trust, Ir
SPT Management, LLC and the underwriters nameeith¢incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 of the Company's Quarterly Reporfanm 1(-Q filed November 16, 200¢

Loan Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated Febt6a®010, among Starwood Property
Mortgage Sub-1, L.L.C., Teachers Insurance and Aypmssociation of America and
Chicago Title Insurance Company, as escrow aganb(porated by reference to Exhibit 1
of the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed May 10, 2010

Master Repurchase and Securities Contract, ddsedh 31, 2010, between Starwood
Property Mortgage Sub-1, L.L.C. and Wells FargolBaational Association (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's QarrtReport on Form 10-Q filed May 10,
2010)

Master Repurchase and Securities Contract, datgd#i6, 2010, between Starwc
Property Mortgage Sub-2, L.L.C. and Wells FargolBaational Association (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's QurReport on Form 8-K filed August 12,
2010)

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated December 2, B8ideen Starwood Prope!
Mortgage Sub-3, L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs Mortgag@@ny (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Current Reporfonm ¢-K filed December 6, 201(

Credit Agreement, dated December 3, 2010, am&igReal Estate Sub Il, LLC, Starwood
Property Trust, Inc. and certain subsidiaries af@bod Property Trust, Inc., as guarantors,
and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agémtorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Current Report onmnf+é-K filed December 6, 201(
Subsidiaries of the Compal

Consent of Deloitte & Touche, LL

Certification pursuant to Section 302(a) of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification pursuant to Section 302(a) of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Starwood Property Trust, Inc.

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /s/ BARRY S. STERNLICHT

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /sl BARRY S. STERNLICHT

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors (Principal Executive
Officer)

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /s/ JEROME SILVEY

Jerome Silvey
Chief Financial Officel

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /s/ JEFFREY G. DISHNER
Jeffrey G. Dishner
Director
Date: March 1, 2011 By: /s/ BOYD W. FELLOWS

Boyd W. Fellows
President and Directo

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /s/ RICHARD D. BRONSON

Richard D. Bronson
Director

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /s/ JEFFREY F. DIMODICA

Jeffrey F. DiModica
Director

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /sl CAMILLE J. DOUGLAS

Camille J. Douglas
Director

Date: March 1, 2011 By: /sl STRAUSS ZELNICK

Strauss Zelnick
Director
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Subsidiary

CorAmerica Realty Financing Company, L.L.

SPT CA Fundings, LL(

SPT Operations, LL(

SPT Real Estate Sub I, LL
SPT Real Estate Sub I, LL
SPT TALF Sub I, LLC

SPT TALF Sub II, L.L.C.
SP1-HII-VIII CA Fundings, L.L.C.
SPT-HII-VIII Partners, L.L.C.
SPT-HII-VIII Partners I, L.L.C.
SPT1-HII-VIII -TALF, L.L.C.
SPT-VIIl Partners, L.L.C.
SPT-VIII CA Fundings, L.L.C.
SP1-VIII -TALF, L.L.C.
Starwood Mortgage WD, L.L.C

Starwood Property Mortgage BC, L.L
Starwood Property Mortgage Holdings I, L.L
Starwood Property Mortgage <-1, L.L.C.
Starwood Property Mortgage $-2, L.L.C.
Starwood Property Mortgage <-3, L.L.C.
Starwood Property Mortgage Sul-A, L.L.C.
Starwood Property Mortgage, L.L.(

88t Street Partners L.L.C.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of
Formation

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Delaware
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe following Registration Statements of aepart dated March 1, 2011, relating to the
consolidated financial statements and financidestant schedule of Starwood Property Trust, Ind.subsidiaries (the "Company"), and the
effectiveness of the Company's internal controlrdwvencial reporting appearing in this Annual Repm Form 10-K of Starwood Property
Trust, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2010.

. Registration Statement No. 333-161402 on Form S-8

. Registration Statement No. 169008 on Form-3
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey

March 1, 2011
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Barry S. Sternlicht, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. for the periogtled December 31, 201
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

C. Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 201 /sl BARRY S. STERNLICHI1

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Jerome Silvey, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. for the periogtled December 31, 201
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

C. Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 201 /sl JEROME SILVEY

Jerome Silvey
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with Starwood Property Truist.'s (the "Company") Annual Report on Form 10eKthe period ended December 31, 2010
(the "Report”), I, Barry S. Sternlicht, do herelgytdy, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgearExchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

Date: March 1, 2011 /sl BARRY S. STERNLICHT

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with Starwood Property Truist.'s (the "Company") Annual Report on Form 10eKthe period ended December 31, 2010
(the "Report”), I, Jerome Silvey, do hereby certyrsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursa&n®06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgesrExchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

Date: March 1, 2011 /sl JEROME SILVEY

Jerome Silvey
Chief Financial Officel
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